
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 

PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA 

TUESDAY 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 

  
6:00 P.M.  

 
2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California 

 

  
Peter Murray, Mayor 

Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 

Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

 
Public Comment: The public is encouraged to address the City Council on any matter listed on the agenda or on 
any other matter within its jurisdiction subject to the rules of decorum described in Council Resolution 2019-03.  If you 
wish to address the City Council, please complete the gold card that is provided at the rear entrance to the Council 
Chambers and hand the card to the City Clerk.  City Council will hear public comment on items listed on the agenda 
during discussion of the matter and prior to a vote.  City Council will hear public comment on matters not listed on the 
agenda during Citizens to be Heard, Agenda Item 5.  
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service.  Assisted listening devices are available 
at this meeting.  Ask the City Clerk if you desire to use this device. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 2131 Pear Street during 
regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday – Thursday, and on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  
You may also contact the City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
 
COUNCIL MEETINGS ARE TELEVISED LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 
p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  City Council 
meetings are video-streamed live on the City’s website, and remain archived on the site for five (5) years. 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 

1 of 200

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/


Pinole City Council  
Agenda –September 17, 2019 
Page 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   

A. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54956.8 
Property:  401-162-003 (Bank), 401-162-001 (Corner), 401-142-010 (Blackies) &  
401-142-011 (Collins) 
Agency negotiator:  City Manager Fitzer and Assistant City Manager De La Rosa 
Negotiating parties:  Jimmy Zhou 
Under negotiation:  Price and terms 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Fitzer and Assistant 
City Manager De La Rosa 
Employee Organizations:  AFSCME, Local 1, IAFF, PPEA

OPEN SESSION WILL COMMENCE UPON COMPLETION OF CLOSED 
SESSION DISCUSSIONS, WHICH MAY OCCUR BEFORE 7:00 PM 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION

5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 

6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS

A. Proclamations
1. California Firefighters Memorial Day

B. Presentations / Recognitions 
1. Recognition of Pinole Valley High School Art Students for Mural in PD
Building 

2 of 200



 

City Council   
Agenda – September 17, 2019 
Page 3  

 
2.  Police Department Update by Chief Gang 
 
3. Republic Services Annual Report by Bielle Moore 
 
 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of August 20, and August 27, 2019 
 

B. Receive the August 31, 2019 – September 13, 2019  List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $542,513.53 and the September 6, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of 
$392,469.12    
 

C. Receive The Development Impact Fee Report For The Fiscal Year Ended June 
30, 2019 [Action:  Receive Report and Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (A. Miller(] 
 

D. Authorize Council Member Salimi To Vote Yes On The League Of California 
Cities Annual Conference Resolutions [Action:  Provide Authorization per Staff 
Recommendation (Fitzer)] 
 

E. Approve An Amendment To The Contract And Issue A Task Order For CSG For 
Staff Augmentation For An Interim Planning Manager And Building Inspector In 
An Amount Not To Exceed $151,000 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 

F. Ordinance Amending Chapters 9.28 & 9.30 Of The Pinole Municipal Code 
Regarding The Regulation Of Tobacco Products And Tobacco Retailers [Action:  
Conduct Second Reading and Adopt Ordinance, per staff Recommendation (Mog)] 
 

G. Approve An Amendment To The Contract With Interactive Resources For 
Preparation Of Design And Specifications For The Faria House In An Additional 
Amount Of $6,017 For A Total Contract Amount Not To Exceed $91,397, And 
Amend The Budget Appropriation [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 
 

   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
  NONE 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
NONE 

3 of 200



 

City Council   
Agenda – September 17, 2019 
Page 4  

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 A. Approve The City Of Pinole Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year 
  Capital Improvement Plan And Adopt the FY 2019-20 Capital Budget [Action:   
  Approve CIP Plan and Adopt Budget per Staff Recommendation (A. Miller)] 

 
 

11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 
A. Mayor Report 

1. Announcements 
 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of October 1, 2019 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz and Stella Faria. 
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  September 12, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

4 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 

August 20, 2019 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Murray called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 6:02 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 

Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Councilmember 
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember 
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 

B. STAFF PRESENT 

Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
Scott Kouns, Fire Chief 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 

City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on August 15, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  

City Clerk Iopu announced that additional materials pertaining to Items 6B1 and 9A on the 
Agenda were provided at the dais for the Council and copies were placed at the rear of the 
Chamber for the public,  

Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION

The City Council convened into closed session at 6:05 p.m. 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2)  
Number of Potential Cases: 1  

5 of 200

7A



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 2 
 

4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 7:01 Mayor Murray reconvened the meeting and announced that there was no 
reportable action. 
 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
 
At 7:01pm, the Mayor inquired if there were any Public Comments.The following speakers 
addressed the City Council: 
 
John Irminger,  expressed concerns regarding existing and proposed charter schools in Pinole:  
increased traffic, lack of diversity of students in violation of their petition, no public meetings held 
in Contra Costa, large scale of private spending in what was formerly a public domain, and 
absorption of invested parents and students from the public school system. 
 
Joseph Gladzer, expressed concerns regarding the proposed Making Waves charter school.  
Existing charter school is disruptive of existing public school classes.  Funding will be redirected 
to Charter schools and away from public education systems.  Discouraged City Council from 
approving another charter school in Pinole. 
 
Mitzi Perez-Caro, encouraged Council to consider implementing moratorium on charter schools 
as was done in Richmond. 
 
Maureen Toms, resident of Pinole, spoke against proposed Making Waves charter school.  
Encouraged staff to evaluate the impact on public facilities and land use plan and housing 
element. 
 
Mayor Murray made comments. 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 

A. Proclamations  
 
 

B. Presentations / Recognitions 
 
1.  Update on Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) by Randy Iwasaki, 
Executive Director of the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) 

 
Randy Iwasaki, Executive Director of the CCTA gave a presentation on the TEP and reviewed 
current and completed projects.  Discussed future plans and highlighted financial needs. 
 
Council members made comments and asked questions.  Director Iwasaki and staff addressed 
questions. 

 
2.     Pinole Valley Road, Back to School Traffic Plan by Police Lieutenant Gene 
Alameda 

 
Lt. Matthew Avery introduced the item and presented a video of the Back to School Traffic Plan 
that the Police Department created and posted online before the start of the school year. The 
video highlighted the changes made in the area surrounding the high school and the best 
practices for student drop-off and pick-up. 

6 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 3 
 

 
Council members asked questions.  Staff addressed questions. 
 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following item was continued to the September 3, 2019 meeting. 
 
K. Amending The Master Fee Schedule For The Recreation Department Youth   
 Center Fee [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 
 
The following speaker made comment on the Consent Calendar items: 
 
Vincent Wells, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding items 7C, made comments regarding safety 
conditions of living quarters at the firehouse and requested that Council consider funding 
improvements to address those safety concerns. 
 
City Manager Fitzer addressed the public comment.   
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of June 29 and July 2, 2019. 
 

B. Receive the July 13, 2019 – August 16, 2019  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$2,184,914.00;the July 26, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $395,271.76; and the 
August 9, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $406,554.31 
 

 C. Approve An Additional Funding Allocation Of $17,500 To Complete The   
  Remodel Project At Fire Station 73 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff   
  Recommendation (Kouns) 
 
 D. Declare The Listed Property As Surplus And Designate A Purchasing Officer To  
  Dispose Of The Listed Property In Accordance With The Procurement Policy  
  [Action: Adopt  Resolution per Staff Recommendation  (T. Miller)] 
 
 F. Authorize Responses To Grand Jury Report No. 1907, Stormwater Trash   
  Reduction” [Action: Authorize Mayor to Sign Response Letter (Fitzer)] 
 
 G. Placement Of Liens For Delinquent Unpaid Waste Collection Charges Falling  
  Delinquent Between January & April 2019, Considered At An Administrative  
  Hearing On June 6, 2019 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff Recommendation  
  (Iopu)] 
 
 H. Approve An Amendment To The Contract With Raney Planning And Management 
  Inc.  For Environmental Review For A Development Project At 2151 Appian Way  
  In An Amount Not To Exceed $52,025 [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff  
  Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 
 J. Ordinance Amending Chapter 8.36 Of The Pinole Municipal Code    
  Regarding Balcony Inspections [Action:  Second Reading and Adoption   
  of Ordinance per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 
 
  
 

7 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 4 
 

ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Martinez-Rubin/Swearingen to approve Consent 
Calendar Items A, B, C D, F, G H & J 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
The following Consent Calendar item was pulled for further discussion by Councilmember 
Salimi: 
 
 E. Designating The Assistant City Manager As The City’s Board Member To The  
  Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA) Of Northern California (“Authority”) And The  
  Finance Director As The Alternate Board Member 2019 [Action: Adopt   
  Resolution per Staff Recommendation  (Fitzer)] 
 
Councilmembers made comments and asked questions regarding the item. 
 
City Manager Fitzer addressed comments and questions.  
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Martinez-Rubin to approve Consent 
Calendar Items 7E 
 
Vote:   Passed  3-2 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin 
Noes:   Salimi, Tave 
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
The City Council pulled the following item for discussion: 
 
I.  Approving The Purchase Of A Seagrave Type 1 Fire Engine From Derotic   
 Emergency Equipment In The Amount Of $884,033, Plus $85,500 Special   
 Equipment For A Total Cost Of $969,533; And Considering Approval Of The   
 Purchase Of A Utility  Terrain Vehicle (UTV) In The Amount Of $27,000 [Action:   
 Approve Resolutions per Staff Recommendation (Kouns)] 
 
Vincent Wells, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding item 7I.   Raised concern that a purchase of 
a new vehicle is being proposed without having a “meet and confer” with the Firefigher’s union. 
 
Council members asked questions.  City Manager Fitzer and Fire Chief Kouns responded to 
questions. 
 
Discussion by the City Council and staff regarding the use of the UTV vehicle and implications 
with regard to employee responsibilities. 
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Martinez-Rubin/Tave to approve Consent Calendar 
Items I 

8 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 5 
 

 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 
 NONE 
 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
 A. Discussion Regarding Proposed FY 2019-20 Municipal Code Updates And  
  Prioritization For Updating Specific Sections [Action:  Discuss and Provide  
  Direction (Casher)] 
 
City Attorney Casher introduced the item and outlined the action.  
 
Mayor Murray asked to add an item to the list regarding height restrictions on residences.   
 
Council gave consensus.   Council directed staff to move forward with the list as presented. 
 
 
 B. Consider A Resolution Approving The Fifth Amendment And Restatement Of The  
  Joint Exercise Of Powers Agreement (JEPA) Of The West Contra Costa Integrated  
  Waste Management Authority [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff   
  Recommendation (Fitzer) 
 
City Manager Fitzer presented the report and outlined the action.  Gave the history of the JEPA 
agreement. 
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Salimi to Adopt Resolution Approving 
The Fifth Amendment And Restatement Of The Joint Exercise Of Powers Agreement 
(JEPA) Of The West Contra Costa Integrated Waste Management Authority 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 C. Approving The Council Norms Of Behavior Established During The City Council  
  Team Building Workshop [Action: Approve Resolution per Staff 
  Recommendation (Fitzer) 
 
City Manager Fitzer presented report and outlined the action. Reviewed the “Council Norms” that 
were generated at the recent City Council Teambuilding workshop on June 29, 2019. 

9 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 6 
 

 
Discussion by Council members and staff regarding the list of Council “Norms”.   Council 
members suggested revisions to the list.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Murray/Tave to Approve The Council Norms Of 
Behavior Established During The City Council Team Building Workshop, as revised 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
None 
 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 
A. Mayor Report 

1. Announcements 
 
Mayor Murray announced Coastal Clean Up Day to take place on September 21st. 
 
Mayor Murray announced Dumpster Day on October 5th. Councilmember Swearingen asked 
whether we will be taking electronics and requested that the Community Services Commission 
distribute flyers.  
 
Assistant City Manager De La Rosa announced that the details of what types of items will be 
received on Dumpster Day are on the City website and that banners will be posted ahead of the 
event. 
 
Mayor Murray announced the grand opening event of Pinole High School.  Gave details of the 
program and praised the speakers and performers.  Thanked all of the organizers for putting on 
a great event.  Also thanked the voters for approving the bond measure that funded the new 
facility. 
 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments    
 

1. Strategic Plan Sub Committee 
 

City Manager Fitzer provided context for the need to create a Strategic Plan Sub Committee to 
assist staff in moving forward in the Strategic Plan process.  Consensus of the Council given to 
appoint Mayor Murray and Councilmember Tave as the Strategic Plan Sub-Committee. 
 

C. City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 
Councilmember Salimi announced that he will be late to next Council meeting as he will attend 
the French General Council and French Senators in order to promote Pinole to French 
government. 
 

10 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 7 
 

Councilmember Martinez-Rubin reported attending the Mayor’s Conference in Brentwood on 
August  1st and announced that the Census efforts by the County were discussed.  
 
Councilmember Martinez-Rubin reported attending a Town Hall meeting regarding immigration 
issues on August 5th held by Congressional representative Mark DeSaulnier.   
 
Councilmember Martinez-Rubin announced Mike Thompson will hold a Town Hall locally on 
September 26th and encouraged Pinole residents to attend. 
 
Councilmember Swearingen attended East Bay Cities meeting.  Discussed the importance of 
the Census 2020 outreach efforts.  Announced the Townhall meeting of Congressman Mike 
Thompson.   
 
Councilmember Swearingen will attend Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) meeting. 
Cities will receive a draft report with regard to the sales tax measure being proposed in March 
2020. 
 
Councilmember Tave attended a community event hosted by Sequoia Real Estate.   
 
Councilmember Tave attended Fairmede Community Meeting Job Fair.  Has information from 
the event that he would like to share with the public.  Materials will be submitted to City Clerk to 
retain for any members of the public who are interested in viewing them. 
 
Councilmember Tave attended John Muir Land Trust Stargazing Night.  Thanked the attendees 
and volunteers and stated that it is a great event for children. 
 
Councilmember Tave attended the Pinole High School opening.  Announced the Congressman 
Mike Thompson Town Hall meeting on August 26th. Announced National Night Out was a very 
successful event.    
 
Councilmember Tave submitted letter for the September 3rd City Council meeting agenda item 
regarding detention centers. 
 
Councilmember Tave spoke regarding the Town Hall that was attended by Councilmember 
Tave and Salimi in Pinole. Expressed that this was an information gathering event.  Outlined the 
intent and gave details of the meeting. 
 
Council members asked questions and made comments regarding Councilmember Tave’s 
report.   
 
City Attorney Casher responded to questions from Council. 
 

D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
Councilmember Martinez-Rubin asked for agenda item to discuss the representation of City 
Council at town hall type meetings and how to acquire information from the public. Consensus 
given by Council. 
 
Councilmember Tave requested an agenda item to discuss a job fair hosted by the City. 
Consensus given by Council. 
 
 
 

11 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 8 
 

E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 
No report. 
 

F. City Attorney Report 
 

No report. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 3, 2019 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
At 10:25 p.m., Mayor Murray adjourned to the City Council Meeting of September 3, 2019 
In Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk  
 
Approved by City Council:  

12 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 20, 2019 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 

August 27, 2019 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS

The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Murray called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 5:04 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 

Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Councilmember 
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember 
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 

B. STAFF PRESENT 

Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Scott Kouns, Fire Chief 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 

City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on August 22nd at 4:00 p.m. then amended 
and posted on August 23rd at 1:00 p.m..  All legally required notice was provided.  

City Clerk Iopu announced that additional materials pertaining to Agenda Item 5A on the agenda 
were provided at the dais for the Council and copies were placed at the rear of the Chamber for 
the public. 

Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   

3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT 
Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54957 
Title:  City Manager 

The City Council convened into closed session at 5:06 p.m. 

7A-1

13 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 27, 2019 
Page 2 
 

 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:08 Mayor Murray reconvened the meeting and City Attorney Casher announced that there 
was no reportable action. 
 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 A.   Fire Study & Potential Ballot Measure Timing  [Action:  Discuss & Provide Direction 

(Fitzer)] 
 
City Manager Fitzer introduced the item. 
 
Councilmember Salimi presented a report he created regarding his opinion of the timeline of the 
fire study and potential ballot measure.  Expressed concerns regarding not having sufficient 
time to move forward with a ballot measure in March 2020. 
 
City Manager Fitzer provided information in response to Council member Salimi’s report.  
 
Council members asked questions of Council member Salimi regarding his report.  
 
Council member Salimi responded to questions.  
 
Discussion by Council members and staff regarding the existing timeline for the current Fire 
Study and proposing a ballot measure for the March 2020 Primary Election.  Discussion of the 
possibility to wait for the November 2020 election  
 
The following speakers addressed the City Council: 
 
Thelma McPherson, resident of Pinole, stated that more code enforcement and weed 
abatement would help with fire hazards and expressed opposition to an increase in any 
additional tax. 
 
Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding Council member Salimi’s report.  Stated that 
the tax being proposed by the CCTA will clearly be different than the one from the City.  Made 
comments regarding funding of fire study and asked whether other types of taxes are being 
considered other than a parcel tax. Asked that the public have the opportunity to give input on 
the draft study. 
 
Ivette Ricco, resident of Pinole, expressed that fire safety is of great concern to the community.  
Asked whether the City has the information it needs in order to be successful in regards to a 
ballot measure. 
 
Sandy McNeel, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding the importance of public education efforts 
for a fire study and expressed concerns regarding the first community fire study workshop.  
 
Chris Wimmer, resident of Pinole, spoke that he has lived here 60 years, spoke regarding the 
importance of having a fire station in Pinole Valley.  Expressed not wanting to rush the ballot 
measure question so that it has a better chance for success. 
 
Debbie Long, resident of Pinole, stated that there is not enough time to put the ballot measure 
forward in March 2020 and expressed that the public hasn’t been given enough information it 

14 of 200



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – August 27, 2019 
Page 3 
 

needs in order to make the decision. Encouraged the Council to wait until the November 2020 
election. 
 
Vincent Wells, spoke regarding the timing of the ballot measure.  Asked for clarification 
regarding what the next steps will be at the conclusion of this meeting.  Made comments 
regarding the process and asked that the City slow down in order to get more community 
support. 
 
Bob Kopp, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding the need to provide more information from the 
public.  Agreed with Council member Salimi’s proposal to extend the ballot measure timeline. 
 
Allen Dorsey, spoke regarding the community and importance of educating the public ahead of 
placing a measure on the ballot.  Encouraged the Council to increase community outreach in 
order to gather more information and make the best decision. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions and made comments. 
 
Staff responded to comments and questions of Council members. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Martinez-Rubin/Swearingen to Move the Fire Ballot 
Measure Question from the March 2020 Election to the November 2020 Election, Provided 
That All Scheduled Steps Have Been Completed and the City Has Sufficient Information. 
 
Vote:   Passed  4-1 

Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Salimi  
Noes:   Martinez-Rubin 
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of September 3, 2019 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
At 8:13  p.m. p.m., Mayor Murray adjourned to the City Council Meeting of September 3, 2019 
In Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk  
 
Approved by City Council:  

15 of 200



16 of 200



17 of 200



18 of 200



19 of 200



20 of 200



21 of 200



22 of 200



23 of 200



24 of 200



25 of 200



26 of 200



27 of 200



28 of 200



29 of 200



30 of 200



31 of 200



32 of 200



   

 CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7C

 
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREA MILLER, FINANCE DIRECTOR  
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council receive the Development Impact Fee Report 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and adopt a resolution finding that all 
development impact fees collected are committed or expended.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Recognizing that new construction of residential and business development may 
have adverse growth related impacts on existing public streets, highways, public 
buildings and public services; Chapter 5 of the California Government Code 
authorizes the collection of development impact fees.  Sections 66000-66009 of the 
State's Government Code prescribe a method for the equitable and consistent 
collection of fees for public improvements and facilities that are needed to mitigate 
the impacts of new development. These statutes require that public agencies 
provide periodic fiscal reconciliations of the amount of growth impact fees assessed 
and collected against new construction, and the use of those fees collected. 
Effective January I, 1989, AB 1600 imposed specific accounting procedures 
regarding the collection and use of development impact fees. Specifically, 
Government Code (GC) section 66001 (d) provides for an annual review of fees 
collected, based on a five year "holding and use" period following the deposit of the 
fees.  AB 1600 requires the City to make findings annually, subsequent to the 
deposit of these fees with respect to any portion of the fee that may remain 
unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted. The findings must identify the 
purpose that the fee is to be put, demonstrate a nexus between the fee and the 
purpose for which it was originally charged, identify the sources and amounts of 
anticipated funding used to complete incomplete improvements and identify 
approximate dates on which the anticipated funding is expected to be deposited.  
 
Additionally, the provisions of AB-1600 expanded GC 66002(b), the accountability 
standard to require annual reviews of the proposed use of these fees through the 
inclusion of eligible projects in public agency capital improvement plans. The 
Proposed FY2019/20 – 2023/24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan, which 

33 of 200



City Council Report 7C 
September 17, 2019  2 

includes projects eligible for funding using development impact fees is on the 
September 17, 2019 City Council agenda for adoption.   
 
The following projects have been committed for partial funding from development 
impact fees: 

 Rehabilitation of Play Fields at Fernandez Park 
o Parkland Dedication Fund 275 - $15,509 
o Park Grants Fund 327 - $24,491 

 
 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements 

o Measure S 2014 Fund 106 - $192,000 
o Growth Impact Fund 276 - $8,000    

 
 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 

o Growth Impact Fund 276 - $31,500    
o Unfunded - $18,500 

 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
In August of 1984, the City Council established a cumulative growth impact fee. 
Ordinance Number 462 provided fees to be collected from developers for both 
residential and business development impacts on public facilities and services and 
for residential impacts on parklands and recreation. The fees were updated to the 
following amounts effective April 3, 2018: 
 

Development Impact Fees 
(Resolution No. 2018-29/April 3, 2018) 

Facility 
Category Single Family 

 
Multi-Family

 
Office 

 
Commercial

 
Industrial 

 
Institutional 

Fee per Dwelling Unit Fee per 1,000 Building Square 
Police $1,148.95 $870.42 $435.21 $139.27 $348.17 $34.82 
Fire Protection $1,468.25 $1,112.31 $556.16 $177.97 $444.92 $44.49 
Public Facilities 
& Equipment 

$1,981.29 $1,500.98 $750.49 $240.16 $600.39 $60.04 

Wastewater $4,943.00 $3,707.00 $2,296.00 $2,296.00 $1,879.00 $1,252.00 
Transportation $414.83 $294.53 $555.87 $1389.68 $365.05 $1053.67 
Drainage $1,104.82 $66.29 $162.32 $162.32 $321.27 $380.45 
Growth Impact 

Total 
 

$11,061.14 
 

$7,551.53 
 

$4,756.05
 

$4,405.40
 

$3,958.80 
 

$2,825.47 

 
Parks and 
Recreation 

$8,013.78 $6,071.05 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Subtotal $19,074.92 $13,622.58 $4,756.05 $4,405.40 $3,958.80 $2,825.47 

Administration 
3% 

$572.25 $408.68 $142.68 $132.16 $118.76 $84.76 

Total $19,647.17 $14,031.26 $4,898.73 $4,537.56 $4,077.56 $2,910.23 

34 of 200



City Council Report 7C 
September 17, 2019  3 

Pinole Municipal Code (PMC) 3.20.096 (b) allows for an annual adjustment to the 
amount of the impact fees by a percentage equal to the percentage change in the 
Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index for San Francisco Bay Area. The 
fees were reviewed and adopted effective April 3, 2018.   
 
In addition, PMC 3.20.96 (c) requires a review of the basis of the impact fees at least 
once every five years to determine whether the fees are still reasonably related to 
the needs of new development.  The last Development Impact Mitigation Fee Nexus 
Study prepared by its consultant, PMC on May 27, 2008.  An updated Mitigation Fee 
Nexus Study is currently underway.  
 
The City maintains separate accounts for growth impact fees within the Growth 
Impact Fund - 276 and the Parkland Dedication Fund - 275.  All interest earned on 
the fees held in these accounts is used to augment the development fees financing 
of growth related projects and activities. 
 
Growth Impact Fund - 276 
 
Since the development impact fees have been put in place, the City has collected 
the following fees for the mitigation of growth impacts in the Growth Impact Fund – 
276: 
 

Fiscal Year Fee Income & Interest Expenditures Residual Balances 
Prior to 2008-09  $        3,162,923  $        2,924,091  $           237,979 
2008-09 to 2017-18              317,121              564,213                 (9,113)
2018-19                86,004                  3,524                73,367 

Totals  $        3,480,044  $        3,488,304  
 
As of June 30, 2019, a fund balance of $73,367 is reported in the Growth Impact 
Fund.   
 
Staff has reviewed the development impact fees collected from July 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2019.  No development impact fee, collected prior to July 1, 2014, the 
subject compliance year of this report, remains unexpended or uncommitted.   
 
Two projects have been identified for funding from impact fees in the Proposed 
FY2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan scheduled for 
adoption by Council September 17, 2019:  

 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements – $8,000 
 Hazel Street Gap Closure - $31,500 

 
These projects are also included in the Development Impact Fee Report 
included as Attachment A. 
 
 
 

35 of 200



City Council Report 7C 
September 17, 2019  4 

Parkland Dedication Fund - 275 
 
Since the development impact fees have been put in place, the City has collected 
the following fees for park and recreation projects in the Parkland Dedication Fund – 
275: 
 

Fiscal Year Fee Income & Interest Expenditures Residual Balances 
Prior to 2008-09  $        2,424,729  $        2,311,672  $           113,057 
2008-09 to 2017-18                72,918              161,381                24,608 
2018-19                36,528                         -                61,137 

Totals  $        2,497,647  $        2,473,054  
 
As of June 30, 2019, a fund balance of $61,137 is reported.  There is $4,379.85 that 
remains unexpended for fees collected prior to July 1, 2014, the subject compliance 
year of this report; however, all of the unexpended fees are committed to eligible 
project expenditures, as will be discussed below.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code 66002(b), these expenditures were 
identified in the Parkland Dedication Impact Fee Five-Year Forecast approved by 
Council September 2, 2008 for a projected total of $120,000; the Capital 
Improvement Plan for fiscal years 2009-10 through 2013-14 approved by Council on 
October 20, 2009 for a projected total of $75,000; the Capital Improvement Plan for 
fiscal years 2010-11 through 2014-15 approved by Council on August 17, 2010 for a 
projected total of $90,000; and the Capital Improvement Plan for fiscal years 2017-
18 through 2021-22 approved by Council on October 4, 2011 for a projected total of 
$15,509.  The City has expended impact fees in the sum of $161,381. 
 
The unexpended Parkland Dedication Impact Fee in the amount of $4,379.85, 
collected prior to July 1, 2014 is committed to the project listed below: 
 

 Rehabilitation of Playfields at Fernandez Park Project - $15,509.  
 

This project was first approved in the FY2016-17 through 2020-21 Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan adopted by Council on September 20, 2016, and carried forward 
to subsequent fiscal years.  This project is also included in the Development Impact 
Fee Report included as Attachment A. 
 
Findings 
 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 66001(d), the City is 
reporting the following findings as of June 30, 2019: 

 
 In FY2018-19, Administrative Overhead fees which total $3,523.71 were 

recorded to Development Services Fund - 212.  These fees were allocated to 
administrative overhead costs.  Administrative Overhead fees collected to 
administer Development Impact Fees are tracked with accounting code 
34410-Impact Fees/Admin. 

36 of 200



City Council Report 7C 
September 17, 2019  5 

 Parkland Dedication Fund - 275 reports a balance of $4,379.85 held past five 
years.  These funds are committed to the Fernandez Park Play Fields 
Rehabilitation project. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Staff has reviewed the development impact fees collected from July 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2019. For Growth Impact Fund – 276, no development impact fees 
collected prior to July 1, 2014, the subject compliance year of this report, remain 
unexpended or uncommitted.  For Parkland Dedication Fund – 275, $4,379.85 is 
held past five years, unexpended but committed.  
 
Current rates and fee adjustments will be reevaluated with the development of the 
Capital Improvement Plan budget for FY 2020-21.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Development Impact Fee Report for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
B – Resolution  
 

37 of 200



Development Impact 
Fee Report 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 
 

 

 

City of Pinole
2131 Pear Street
Pinole, CA 94564 

 
 

  

ATTACHMENT A

38 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page i  

TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
Legal Requirements For Development Impact Fee Reporting ................................................................. 1 
Description of Development Impact Fees ................................................................................................ 3 
Current Fee Schedule ................................................................................................................................. 4 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Financial Summary Report – Development Impact Fees .................................................................... 5 
Growth Impact Fund .............................................................................................................................. 6 
Parkland Dedication Fund ..................................................................................................................... 7 

NOTES TO THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT 
Note # 1 – Bonds ................................................................................................................................. 8 
Note # 2 – Notes Payable ................................................................................................................... 9 
Note # 3 – Refunds Payable ............................................................................................................... 9 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE PROJECT IDENTIFICATION ................................................................... 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT A

39 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 1 
 

 
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORTING 

 
A. CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 66006 (b) 

 
California Government Code Section 66006 (b) defines the specific reporting 
requirements for local agencies that impose AB 1600 development impact fees on new 
development. Annually, for each development impact fee collected and expended, the 
local agency shall, within 180 days after the last day of each fiscal year, make available 
to the public the information shown below for the most recent fiscal year.  

 
 A brief description of the type of fee in the account or fund; 
 The amount of the fee; 
 The beginning and ending balance of the account or fund; 
 The amount of the fees collected and interest earned; 
 Identification of each public improvement on which fee revenue was expended and 

the amount of expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with fee revenue;  

 Identification  of  the approximate  date  by  which  the  construction  of  the  public  
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds 
have been  collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement;  

 A description of each inter-fund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, 
including  interest rates, repayment dates, and a description of the improvements on 
which the transfer or loan will be expended;  

 The amount of any refunds or allocations made pursuant to Section 66001, 
paragraphs (e) and (f).   
 

B. CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 66001 (d) 
 

For all funds established for the collection and expenditure of development impact fees, 
California Government Code Section 66001 (d) has additional requirements. For the fifth 
fiscal year following the first deposit into the fund and every five years thereafter, the local 
agency shall make all of the following findings with respect to that portion of the fund 
remaining unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted: 

 
 Identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put; 
 Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and purpose for which it is 

charged; 
 Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in 

incomplete improvements; 
 Designate the approximate dates on which the funding is expected to be deposited 

into the appropriate account or fund. 
 

As of June 30, 2019, the City is reporting the following findings: 
 

 In FY2018-19, Administrative Overhead fees which total $3,523.71 where recorded 
in the Development Services Fund 212. These fees were allocated to administrative 
overhead costs.  Administrative Overhead fees collected to administer Development 
Impact Fees are tracked with accounting code 34410-Impact Fees/Admin.  

 
 Parkland Dedication Fund reports a balance of $4,379.85 held past five years.  

These funds are committed to the Fernandez Park Play Fields Rehabilitation 
project. 

ATTACHMENT A

40 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 2 
 

 
 

C. ADDITIONAL NOTES 
 

The State of California Government Code Section 66002 states that local agencies that 
have developed a fee program may adopt a CIP indicating the approximate location, size 
and timing of projects, plus an estimate for the cost of all facilities or improvements to 
be financed by fees. A formal CIP is recommended, at a minimum, as a five‐year plan. 
The City annually produces a five‐ year CIP which helps to maintain and support the 
City’s General Plan.  

 
The City’s current, proposed 2019-20 – 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan can be found 
on the City’s website at https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us. 
 

 
D. ESTABLISHING A REASONABLE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE FEE AND THE 

PURPOSE FOR WHICH IT IS CHARGED 
 

The City’s Development Impact Fee Program has been in effect since September 19, 1984. 
The current Development Impact Fee was adopted on July 1, 2008. Adjustments to the 
fees may be made annually in accordance with the Engineering News Record 
Construction Cost Index-San Francisco Bay Area. The program sets forth the relationship 
between contemplated future development, facilities needed to serve future development 
and the estimated costs of those improvements based on the current General Plan for 
build‐out. A comprehensive fee study is currently underway to ensure the program 
continues to reflect the appropriate fees in relation to updated costs. 

 
The City’s capital improvements provide infrastructure to the residents and businesses 
in Pinole in order to keep pace with ongoing development in, and adjacent to the 
community. Information on current CIP projects that are funded from Development Impact 
Fees can be found on page 10.  Impact fees may also be used to pay the principal, interest 
and other cost of bonds, notes and other obligations issued or undertaken by or on behalf 
of the City to finance such facilities.   

 
E. FUNDING OF INFRASTRUCTURE 

 
The Fiscal Year 2019-20 – 2023-24 CIP identifies all funding sources and amounts for 
individual projects through FY 2023-24. The CIP is updated annually to reflect the current 
infrastructure needs of the City. As a CIP project is identified, the project is evaluated to 
determine the portion of the project that will service existing residents and businesses 
versus new development. 

 
Once the determination of use is made, the percentage of use attributable to new 
development is then funded by the appropriate development fee based on the type of 
project. The percentage of use associated with existing residents or businesses are 
funded from other appropriate sources as identified on each individual project sheet in 
the CIP. All future planned infrastructure needs are outlined in the Development Fee 
Program. Estimated construction start dates for projects are adjusted, as needed, to 
reflect the needs of the community. 

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

41 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 3 
 

F. CURRENT MAJOR CIP PROJECTS 
 

Currently, construction is in‐progress on the Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) 
Upgrade Project funded in part by Wastewater Facility Fees and Development Impact 
Fees.  

 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES 

 
Police Facility Fee – To provide for the expansion, design and construction of police 
facilities, or to upgrade existing police facilities. To purchase vehicles, enhance 
communication systems and/or perform refurbishment within the parameters allowed by 
Government Code 66000. 
 
Fire Protection Facility Fee – To provide for the expansion, design and construction of fire 
facilities, or to upgrade existing fire facilities. To purchase equipment and vehicles, 
enhance communication systems and/or perform refurbishment within the parameters 
allowed by Government Code 66000. 
 
Public Facility & Equipment Fee – To provide for the expansion, design and construction 
of municipal or community facilities, or to upgrade existing facilities; to purchase equipment 
and vehicles, enhance communication systems and/or perform refurbishment within the 
parameters allowed by Government Code 66000. 
 
Wastewater Facility Fee – To provide for the upgrade and expansion of sewer collection 
and wastewater treatment capacities at the Water Pollution Control Plant.  
 
Transportation Facility Fee – To provide for traffic improvements that include arterial 
roadway and intersection improvements to accommodate new development. 
 
Drainage Facility Fee – To provide for the expansion of drainage facilities to 
accommodate new development. 
 
Parks and Recreation Facility Fee – To provide for the acquisition and development of parks 
as specified in the City’s Parkland Dedication Ordinance (PDO) (Municipal Code Sec. 
16.28) which requires as a condition of approval for the subdivision of land, the dedication of 
park land or payment of a fee in-lieu of dedication, pursuant to California Government Code 
66477 (the “Quimby Act”). The Quimby Act allows the City to require the dedication of land 
for park purposes up to the rate of the existing acreage per 1,000 population, which stands 
at 3.34 acres. The City may collect the full AB1600 park impact fees for park acquisition and 
development at the issuance of building permits, but may not impose the land dedication 
requirement at the subdivision stage. The City may collect on either the PDO or the impact 
fee, but not both.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

42 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 4 
 

CURRENT FEE SCHEDULE 
 
The Development Impact Fees were adopted on April 3, 2018.  Fees are reviewed annually 
and adjustments may be made in conjunction with the development of the Cap i ta l  
Improvement  P lan  to ensure the Development Impact Fee is accounting for all planned 
future development.  The updated Development Impact Fee information is then used to 
determine the amount of fees available for the funding of the proposed CIP projects. 
 

Development Impact Fees 
(Resolution No. 2018-29/April 3, 2018) 

Facility 
Category Single Family 

 
Multi-Family 

 
Office 

 
Commercial 

 
Industrial 

 
Institutional 

Fee per Dwelling Unit Fee per 1,000 Building Square Feet 
Police $1,148.95 $870.42 $435.21 $139.27 $348.17 $34.82 
Fire Protection $1,468.25 $1,112.31 $556.16 $177.97 $444.92 $44.49 
Public Facilities 
& Equipment 

$1,981.29 $1,500.98 $750.49 $240.16 $600.39 $60.04 

Wastewater $4,943.00 $3,707.00 $2,296.00 $2,296.00 $1,879.00 $1,252.00 
Transportation $414.83 $294.53 $555.87 $1389.68 $365.05 $1053.67 
Drainage $1,104.82 $66.29 $162.32 $162.32 $321.27 $380.45 
Growth Impact 

Total 
 

$11,061.14 
 

$7,551.53 
 

$4,756.05 
 

$4,405.40 
 

$3,958.80 
 

$2,825.47 

 
Parks and 
Recreation 

$8,013.78 $6,071.05 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Subtotal $19,074.92 $13,622.58 $4,756.05 $4,405.40 $3,958.80 $2,825.47 
 

Administration 
3% 

$572.25 $408.68 $142.68 $132.16 $118.76 $84.76 

Total $19,647.17 $14,031.26 $4,898.73 $4,537.56 $4,077.56 $2,910.23 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

43 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 5  

Financial Summary Report 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
 

 
Development Impact Fees 

 

Description Growth Impact 
Parkland 

Dedication 
REVENUE 

Fees-Police             8,203.70                       -  
Fees-Fire            10,483.56                       -  
Fees-Transportation             5,685.73                       -  
Fees-Storm Drainage             4,571.92                       -  
Fees-Public Facilities            14,146.73                       -  
Fees-Wastewater            38,655.18                       -  
Fees-Administrative OH             3,523.71                       -  
Fees-Parks & Recreation                       -             36,183.44  
Interest                733.19                344.94  
Other Revenue                       -                        -  

Total Revenue            86,003.72            36,528.38  

EXPENDITURES 
Expenditures             3,523.71                       -  

Total Expenditures             3,523.71                       -  

REVENUE OVER (UNDER)             82,480.01            36,528.38  
EXPENDITURES 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year            (9,112.71)            24,608.42  
Fund Balance, End of Year            73,367.30            61,136.80  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

ATTACHMENT A

44 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 6  

Growth Impact Fund - 276 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance 

Last Five Fiscal Years 
 
Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17  FY 2017/18   FY 2018/19  
REVENUE 

Fees-Police             2,983.98             6,706.20             1,148.95            16,820.86     8,203.70 
Fees-Fire             3,813.20             8,569.70             1,468.25            21,495.26    10,483.56 
Fees-Transportation            13,390.20            66,916.26                414.83            30,737.54     5,685.73 
Fees-Storm Drainage             3,217.73             7,816.11             1,104.82             5,911.02     4,571.92 
Fees-Public Facilities             5,145.37            11,564.30             1,981.00            15,713.95    14,146.73 
Fees-Wastewater             8,293.53            43,738.36                       -                         -      38,655.18 
Fees-Administrative OH             1,553.35             4,359.56                482.15                       -       3,523.71 
Fees-Parks & Recreation                       -                         -                         -                         -                 -   
Interest                  13.23                396.56                  16.78                669.04        733.19 
Other Revenue                       -                         -                         -                         -                 -   

Total Revenue            38,410.59          150,067.05             6,616.78            91,347.67    86,003.72 

EXPENDITURES 
Expenditures                       -                         -                         -                         -       3,523.711 

Total Expenditures                       -                         -                         -                         -       3,523.71 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER)  
EXPENDITURES            38,410.59          150,067.05             6,616.78            91,347.67    82,480.01 

Fund Balance, Beginning of 
Year         (295,554.80)         (257,144.21)         (107,077.16)         (100,460.38)            (9,112.71)   

Fund Balance, End of Year         (257,144.21)         (107,077.16)         (100,460.38)            (9,112.71)    73,367.30 
 
 

 

 
 
 

  

                                                            
1 Administrative Overhead Impact Fees in the amount of $3,523.71 were recorded in the Development Services Fund – 212. This was 
allocated to salary and benefits for development staff.  

ATTACHMENT A

45 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 7  

Parkland Dedication Fund - 275 
 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance 

Last Five Fiscal Years 
 

Description FY 2014/15 FY 2015/16 FY 2016/17 FY 2017/18 FY 2018/19 
REVENUE 

Fees-Parks & Recreation            12,021.00                       -                         -               8,014.00    36,183.44 
Interest                    2.76                  50.01                    1.07                139.73        344.94 
Other Revenue                       -                         -                         -                         -                 -   

Total Revenue            12,023.76                  50.01                    1.07             8,153.73    36,528.38 

EXPENDITURES 
Expenditures                       -                         -                         -                         -                 -   

Total Expenditures                       -                         -                         -                         -                 -   

REVENUE OVER (UNDER)  
EXPENDITURES            12,023.76                  50.01                    1.07             8,153.73    36,528.38 

Fund Balance, Beginning of 
Year             4,379.852            16,403.61            16,453.62            16,454.69    24,608.42 

Fund Balance, End of Year            16,403.61            16,453.62            16,454.69            24,608.42    61,136.80 

 
 
  

                                                            
2 $4,379.85 is held past five years but committed to the Fernandez Park Play Fields Rehabilitation project. 

ATTACHMENT A

46 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 8 
 

NOTES TO THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE REPORT 
 
The Notes address two items required by California Government Code Section 66006 
(b).  First, Notes #1 and #2 provide information on bonds and notes payable associated 
with improvements to the City’s wastewater system and upgrade to the Water Pollution 
Control Plant.  Second, Note #3 provides information on refunds made, if applicable, 
due to sufficient funds being collected to complete financing on incomplete public 
improvements, and the amount of reallocation of funds made due to administrative 
costs of refunding unexpended revenues exceeding the amount to be refunded. 

 
 
NOTE # 1 – BONDS 

 
A. 2016 WASTEWATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS 

 
On June 30, 2016, the City of Pinole issued an $8,251,000 Wastewater Revenue 
Refunding Bond (Bank Qualified) to redeem its 2006 Wastewater Revenue Bonds which 
were issued to finance certain capital improvements to the City’s wastewater system.  
The bonds bear annual interest at 2.95% which is payable semi-annually on March 1 and 
September 1 of each year through 2036.  Principal payments are due annually beginning 
on September 1, 2016 through 2036.  The bond is secured with pledged net wastewater 
revenues.   
   
Bonds payable debt service requirements for business-type activities are shown below:  

                        

For the Year Ending, June 30 Principal Interest 

2019 $          298,000 $          219,097
2020 310,000 210,129
2021 318,000 200,866
2022 329,000 191,323
2023 341,000 181,440

2024-2028 1,857,000 748,489
2029-2033 2,150,000 453,504
2034-2037 1,973,000 118,634

$       7,576,000 $      2,323,479
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

47 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 9 
 

NOTE # 2 – NOTES PAYABLE 
 

A.  STATE WATER RESOURCES LOAN (WASTEWATER) 
 

On June 17, 2016, the City entered into a loan agreement with the State of California’s 
State Water Resources Control Board for the purpose of financing the Pinole-Hercules 
Wastewater Pollution Control Plant Upgrade project to comply with Regional Water 
Quality Board NPDES permit requirements. Under the terms of the contract, the City 
has agreed to repay the State $34,100,332 in exchange for receiving $26,635,666 in 
proceeds used to fund the project. The difference between the repayment obligation and 
proceeds amounted to $7,464,666 upon issue and represents interest on the outstanding 
balance. This interest amount is based on a yield of 1.7% per year and is amortized 
over the life of the agreement. Construction on the project began in May 2016, with an 
estimated completion date of September 2019.  Loan payments are estimated to begin in 
2020 with payment due annually on August 31 based on the preliminary payment 
schedule below:   
 

For the Year Ending, June 30 Principal Interest 

2020 $          623,106 $          352,731
2021 716,571 405,922
2022 713,462 429,467
2023 725,026 417,903
2024 737,351 405,578

2025-2029 3,879,097 1,835,546
2030-2034 4,220,223 1,494,420
2035-2039 4,591,347 1,123,296
2040-2044 4,995,108 719,535
2045-2049 5,434,376 280,267

$       26,635,666 $      7,464,666
 
 

 

NOTE # 3 – REFUNDS PAYABLE 
 

A. REFUNDS OF DEVELOPER FEES 
 

When the City no longer needs the funds for the purposes collected, or if the City 
fails to make required findings or perform certain administrative tasks prescribed by AB 
1600, the City may be required to refund, on a prorated basis, to owners of the 
properties upon which the fees for the improvement were imposed, the monies collected 
for that project and any interest earned on those funds. At this time, all fees being 
collected pursuant to the Development Fee Program have been earmarked for current 
or future capital projects necessary to maintain the current levels of service within 
existing service areas to serve new development. 

 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A

48 of 200



 
City of Pinole - Development Impact Fee Report 

 

Page 10 
 

DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE PROJECT IDENTIFICATION 
 

The Development Impact Fee funded projects listed below conform to the following 
reporting requirements defined by California Government Code Section 66006 (b): 
 

 An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and 
the amount of expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage 
of the cost of the public improvement that was funded with fees. 

 An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient 
funds have been collected to complete financing on an incomplete public 
improvement. 

 
All of the current projects including all funding sources and approximate dates of funding 
can be found in the FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan. 
 

Project # Project Amount Start Date End Date Source 
PA1704 Rehab Play Fields at Fernandez Park $15,509 July 2018 June 2020 Park Impact Fees 
PA1704 Rehab Play Fields at Fernandez Park $24,491 July 2018 June 2020 Park Grants 

Total $40,000 

SW1901 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements $192,000 July 2019 June 2020 Measure S 2014 Fund 
SW1901 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements $8,000 July 2019 June 2020 Drainage Impact Fees 

Total $200,000 

RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $31,500 July 2019 June 2020 Transportation Impact Fees 
RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $18,500 July 2019 June 2020 Unfunded 

Total $50,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT A

49 of 200



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, FINDING THAT DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FUNDS THROUGH 

FISCAL YEAR END JUNE 30, 2019 ARE COMMITTED OR EXPENDED  
        

WHEREAS, Government Code §66001(d), effective January 1, 1989, 
requires the City to make findings once each fiscal year with respect to any portion 
of a growth impact fee remaining unexpended or uncommitted in its development fee 
account(s) five or more years after deposit of the fee, and to identify the purpose to 
which the fee is to be put and to demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the 
fee and the purpose for which it was charged, identify the· sources and amounts of 
anticipated funding used to complete incomplete improvements and identify 
approximate dates on which the anticipated funding is expected to be deposited; and 

 
WHEREAS, Government Code §66006(d), effective January 1, 1989, 

requires that a report documenting these findings must be made within 180 days 
following the conclusion of each fiscal year by the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff have reviewed the development impact fees 
collected each fiscal year covering July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019 to determine if 
any such development fees remain unexpended or uncommitted; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has found that no development impact fees 

collected prior to July 1, 2014, the subject compliance year of this report, remain 
unexpended or uncommitted. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Pinole as follows: 
 

Section 1.  There are no funds remaining unexpended or uncommitted in the 
Growth Impact Fund – 276. 

 
Section 2.  There is $4,375.67 remaining unexpended but committed in the 

Parkland Dedication Fund – 275 as follows:  
 

 Rehabilitation of Playfields at Fernandez Park Project - $15,509 to be completed 
in fiscal year 2019-20.  
 

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day September 2019, by the following 

vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ATTACHMENT B

50 of 200



  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 17th 
day of September, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT B

51 of 200



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 7D 

 
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE COUNCIL MEMBER SALIMI TO VOTE YES ON THE 

LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
RESOLUTIONS 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that, by minute order, the City Council authorize Council member 
Salimi to vote yes on the two (2) League of California Cities annual conference 
resolutions. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Every year the League of California Cities hosts an annual conference.  On the last 
day of the conference each agencies Voting Delegate may vote on the resolutions 
presented for consideration.  This year Council member Salimi is attending the 
conference and was designated by the Council as Pinole’s Voting Delegate.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
For 2019 there are two (2) resolutions being presented for consideration.   
 

• Resolution #1 
 
The first resolution is sponsored by the City of City of Rancho Palos Verdes and 
supported by the cities of Hidden Hills, La Cañada Flintridge, Laguna Beach, 
Lakeport, Malibu, Moorpark, Nevada City, Palos Verdes Estates, Rolling Hills 
Estates, Rolling Hills, and Ventura. 
 
This Resolution, in response to intensifying fire seasons and hazards associated 
with exposed energized utility lines, proposes that the League of California Cities 
(League) call upon the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to amend the 
Rule 20A program by expanding the criteria for undergrounding overhead utilities to 
include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ). This 
Resolution also proposes that the League call upon the CPUC to increase utilities’ 
funding allocations for Rule 20A projects. 
 

52 of 200



City Council Report 7D 
September 17, 2019  2 

 

Rule 20A 
The first California overhead conversion program, Rule 20A, was created in 1967 
under then Governor Ronald Reagan. The program was created to provide a 
consistent and structured means of undergrounding utility lines throughout the state 
with costs covered broadly by utility ratepayers. 
 
Each year, Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs) propose their Rule 20A allocation 
amounts to the CPUC during annual general rate case proceedings. In this 
process, IOUs propose revised utility customer rates based on expected service 
costs, new energy procurement and projects for the following year, including Rule 
20 allocations. The CPUC then reviews, amends, and approves IOU rates. 
Currently, the cumulative budgeted amount for Rule 20A for Pacific Gas and 
Electric (PG&E), Southern California Edison (SCE), and San Diego Gas and 
Electric (SDG&E) totals around $95.7 million. 
 
The funding set aside by IOUs for Rule 20A is allocated to local governments 
through a credit system, with each credit holding a value to be used solely for the 
costs of an undergrounding project. The credit system was created so that local 
governments and IOUs can complete undergrounding projects without municipal 
financing. Through Rule 20A, municipalities that have developed and received city 
council approval for an undergrounding plan receive annual credits from the IOU in 
their service area. At the last count by the CPUC, over 500 local governments 
(cities and counties) participate in the credit system. 
 
While these credits have no inherent monetary value, they can be traded in or 
banked for the conversion of overhead lines. Municipalities can choose to 
accumulate their credits until their credit balance is sufficient to cover these 
conversion projects, or choose to borrow future undergrounding allocations for a 
period of up to five years. Once the cumulative balance of credits is sufficient to 
cover the cost of a conversion project, the municipality and the utility can move 
forward with the undergrounding. All of the planning, design, and construction is 
performed by the participating utility. Upon the completion of an undergrounding 
project, the utility is compensated through the local government’s Rule 20A credits. 
 
At the outset of the program, the amount of allocated credits were determined by a 
formula which factored in the number of utility meters within a municipality in 
comparison to the utilities’ service territory. However, in recent years the formula 
has changed. Credit allocations for IOUs, except for PG&E, are now determined 
based on the allocation a city or county received in 1990 and is then adjusted for 
the following factors: 
 

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for 
the ratio of the number of overhead meters in any city or unincorporated 
area to the total system overhead meters; and 

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for 

53 of 200



City Council Report 7D 
September 17, 2019  3 

 

the ratio of the number of meters (which includes older homes that have 
overhead services, and newer homes with completely underground 
services) in any city or the unincorporated area to the total system 
meters. 

 
As noted, PG&E has a different funding formula for their Rule 20A credit allocations 
as they are not tied to the 1990 base allocation. Prior to 2011, PG&E was allocating 
approximately five to six percent of its revenue to the Rule 20A program. The CPUC 
decided in 2011 that PG&E’s Rule 20A allocations should be reduced by almost half 
in an effort to decrease the growing accumulation of credits amongst local 
governments. Since 2011, PG&E’s annual allocations for Rule 20A have been 
around $41.3 million annually, which is between two and three percent of their total 
revenue. 
 
Criteria for Rule 20A Projects 
For an undergrounding project to qualify for the Rule 20A program, there are 
several criteria that need to be met. The project must have a public benefit and: 
 

1. Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines; 
2. Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic; 
3. Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest; 
4. Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines 
 
Notably, fire safety is excluded from the list of criteria that favors aesthetic and other 
public safety projects. 
 
The detailed League Staff Analysis for this resolution can be found starting on page 
11 of the attached Annual Conference Resolution Packet. 
  

• Resolution #2 
 
The second resolution is sponsored by the League of California Cities’ San Diego 
County Division. 
 
This Resolution states that the League of California Cities should call upon the 
State and Federal governments to restore and ensure proper funding for the U.S. – 
Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and work bi-nationally to 
address water quality issues resulting from transboundary flows from Mexico’s 
Tijuana River into the United States containing untreated sewage, polluted 
sediment, and trash. 
 
The League of California Cities’ San Diego County Division is sponsoring this 
resolution to address their concerns over the contaminated flows from the Tijuana 
River into California that have resulted in the degradation of water quality and water 
recreational areas in Southern California. 

54 of 200



City Council Report 7D 
September 17, 2019  4 

 

The Tijuana River flows north through highly urbanized areas in Mexico before it 
enters the Tijuana River Estuary and eventually the Pacific Ocean via waterways in 
San Diego County in California. Urban growth in Tijuana has contributed to a rise in 
rates of upstream flows from water treatment facilities in Mexico. These treatment 
facilities have raised the amount of untreated sewage and waste in the Tijuana River 
due to faulty infrastructure and improper maintenance. The federal government 
refers to the river as an “impaired water body” because of the presence of pollutants 
in excess, which pose significant health risks to residents and visitors in 
communities on both sides of the border.  
 
The detailed League Staff Analysis for this resolution can be found starting on page 
39 of the attached Annual Conference Resolution Packet. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact to the City of Pinole related to these resolutions. 
 
Resolution 1:   
 
The costs to the State associated with this Resolution will be related to the staff 
and programmatic costs to the CPUC to take the necessary measures to consider 
and adopt changes to Rule 20A to include projects in VHFHSZ to the list of criteria 
for eligibility. 
 
This Resolution calls for an unspecified increase in funding for Rule 20A projects, 
inferring that portions of increased funds will go towards newly eligible high fire 
hazard zones. While the Resolution does not request a specific amount be 
allocated, it can be assumed that these increased costs will be supported by utility 
ratepayers. According to the CPUC, the annual allocations towards Rule 20A are 
$95.7 million. 
 
Resolution 2:   
 
California’s economy is currently the sixth largest in the world, with tourism 
spending topping $140.6 billion in 2018. In the past five years, San Diego’s Border 
Field State Park has been closed for over 800 days because of pollution from the 
Tijuana River. A decline in the State’s beach quality and reputation could carry 
macroeconomic effects that could ripple outside of the San Diego County region 
and affect coastal communities throughout California. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A     2019 League of California Cities Annual Conference Resolution Packet 

55 of 200



Annual Conference 
Resolutions Packet 

2019 Annual Conference Resolutions 

Long Beach, California 

October 16 – 18, 2019 

56 of 200

fitzer
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES 

RESOLUTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS PACKET: The League bylaws provide that 
resolutions shall be referred by the president to an appropriate policy committee for review and 
recommendation. Resolutions with committee recommendations shall then be considered by the 
General Resolutions Committee at the Annual Conference. 

This year, two resolutions have been introduced for consideration at the Annual Conference and 
referred to League policy committees.   

POLICY COMMITTEES: Two policy committees will meet at the Annual Conference to consider 
and take action on the resolutions referred to them. The committees are: Environmental Quality and 
Transportation, Communication & Public Works. The committees will meet from 9:00 – 11:00 a.m. 
on Wednesday, October 16, at the Hyatt Regency Long Beach.  The sponsors of the resolutions have 
been notified of the time and location of the meeting. 

GENERAL RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE: This committee will meet at 1:00 p.m. on Thursday, 
October 17, at the Hyatt Regency Long Beach, to consider the reports of the policy committees 
regarding the resolutions. This committee includes one representative from each of the League’s 
regional divisions, functional departments and standing policy committees, as well as other 
individuals appointed by the League president.  Please check in at the registration desk for room 
location. 

ANNUAL LUNCHEON/BUSINESS MEETING/GENERAL ASSEMBLY: This meeting 
will be held at 12:30 p.m. on Friday, October 18, at the Long Beach Convention Center. 

PETITIONED RESOLUTIONS: For those issues that develop after the normal 60-day 
deadline, a resolution may be introduced at the Annual Conference with a petition signed by 
designated voting delegates of 10 percent of all member cities (48 valid signatures required) and 
presented to the Voting Delegates Desk at least 24 hours prior to the time set for convening the 
Annual Business Meeting of the General Assembly.  This year, that deadline is 12:30 p.m., 
Thursday, October 17.  Resolutions can be viewed on the League's Web site: 
www.cacities.org/resolutions. 

Any questions concerning the resolutions procedures may be directed to Carly Shelby 
cshelby@cacities.org 916-658-8279 or Nick Romo nromo@cacities.org 916-658-8232 at the 
League office. 

157 of 200

http://www.cacities.org/resolutions
mailto:cshelby@cacities.org
mailto:nromo@cacities.org


GUIDELINES FOR ANNUAL CONFERENCE RESOLUTIONS 

Policy development is a vital and ongoing process within the League. The principal means for 
deciding policy on the important issues facing cities is through the League’s seven standing policy 
committees and the board of directors. The process allows for timely consideration of issues in a 
changing environment and assures city officials the opportunity to both initiate and influence policy 
decisions. 

Annual conference resolutions constitute an additional way to develop League policy. Resolutions 
should adhere to the following criteria. 

Guidelines for Annual Conference Resolutions 

1. Only issues that have a direct bearing on municipal affairs should be considered or adopted
at the Annual Conference.

2. The issue is not of a purely local or regional concern.

3. The recommended policy should not simply restate existing League policy.

4. The resolution should be directed at achieving one of the following objectives:

(a) Focus public or media attention on an issue of major importance to cities.

(b) Establish a new direction for League policy by establishing general principles around
which more detailed policies may be developed by policy committees and the board of
directors.

(c) Consider important issues not adequately addressed by the policy committees and
board of directors.

(d) Amend the League bylaws (requires 2/3 vote at General Assembly).

258 of 200



LOCATION OF MEETINGS 

Policy Committee Meetings 
Wednesday, October 16, 9:00 – 11:00 a.m. 
Hyatt Regency Long Beach 
200 South Pine Avenue, Long Beach 

The following committees will be meeting: 
1. Environmental Quality 10:00 - 11:00 a.m.
2. Transportation, Communication & Public Works 9:00 - 10:00 a.m. 

General Resolutions Committee 
Thursday, October 17, 1:00 p.m. 
Hyatt Regency Long Beach 
200 South Pine Avenue, Long Beach 

Annual Business Meeting and General Assembly Luncheon 
Friday, October 18, 12:30 p.m.  
Long Beach Convention Center 
300 East Ocean Boulevard, Long Beach 

359 of 200



KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS 

Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned. 

Number  Key Word Index Reviewing Body Action 

1 2 3 
1 - Policy Committee Recommendation 
     to General Resolutions Committee 
2 – General 
 Resolutions Committee 
3 - General Assembly 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY POLICY COMMITTEE 
     1 2 3 

1 Amendment to Rule 20A 
2 International Transboundary Pollution Flows 

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION & PUBLIC WORKS POLICY COMMITTEE 
     1 2 3 

 1 Amendment to Rule 20A 

Information pertaining to the Annual Conference Resolutions will also be posted on each 
committee’s page on the League website: www.cacities.org.  The entire Resolutions Packet is 
posted at: www.cacities.org/resolutions. 

460 of 200

http://www.cacities.org/


KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS (Continued) 
 

Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned. 
 
 
 
KEY TO REVIEWING BODIES KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
1.  Policy Committee  

 
A  Approve 

 
2.  General Resolutions Committee 

 
D   Disapprove 

 
3.  General Assembly 

 
N   No Action 

 
 

 
R   Refer to appropriate policy committee for 

study 
ACTION FOOTNOTES 
 

 
a   Amend+ 
 

*  Subject matter covered in another resolution 
 

Aa   Approve as amended+ 

**  Existing League policy Aaa   Approve with additional amendment(s)+ 
 

***  Local authority presently exists 
 

Ra   Refer as amended to appropriate policy 
committee for study+ 

  
Raa   Additional amendments and refer+ 
 

  
Da   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and 

Disapprove+ 
 

 
 
 

Na   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and take No 
Action+ 

 
W         Withdrawn by Sponsor 

 
 
 
 
 
Procedural Note:   
The League of California Cities resolution process at the Annual Conference is guided by League Bylaws.  
A helpful explanation of this process can be found on the League’s website by clicking on this link:  
Guidelines for the Annual Conference Resolutions Process. 
 

 

561 of 200

https://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Policy-Advocacy-Section/Policy-Development/Page-Resources/Guidelines-for-Annual-Conference-Resolutions-Proce.aspx


League of California Cities Resolution Process 

REGULAR RESOLUTIONS 

Policy Committee Action General Resolutions 
Committee Action Calendar 

Approve Approve Consent Calendar1 
Approve Disapprove or Refer Regular Calendar2 
Disapprove or Refer Approve Regular Calendar 
Disapprove or Refer Disapprove or Refer Does not proceed to General 

Assembly 

PETITION RESOLUTIONS 

Policy Committee Action General Resolutions 
Committee Action Calendar 

Not Heard in Policy Committee Approve Consent Calendar 
Not Heard in Policy Committee Disapprove or Refer Regular Calendar 
Not Heard in Policy Committee Disqualified per Bylaws Art. 

VI 
Does not proceed to General 
Assembly 

Resolutions  
• Submitted 60 days prior to conference Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 4(a)
• Signatures of at least 5 supporting cities or city officials submitted with the proposed resolution

Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 2
• Assigned to policy committee(s) by League president Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 4(b)(i)
• Heard in policy committee(s) and report recommendation, if any, to GRC Bylaws Article VI, Sec.

4(b)(ii)
• Heard in GRC

 Approved by policy committee(s) and GRC, goes on to General Assembly on consent calendar
2006 General Assembly Resolution Sec. 2(C)

 If amended/approved by all policy committee(s) to which it has been referred and disapproved
by GRC, then goes on to General Assembly on the regular calendar. If not all policy
committees to which it has been referred recommend amendment or approval, and the GRC
disapproves or refers the resolution, the resolution does not move to the General Assembly
2006 General Assembly Resolution Sec. 2(A),(C); 1998 General Assembly Resolution, 1st

Resolved Clause
 If disapproved by all policy committees to which it has been referred and disapproved by the

GRC, resolution does not move to the General Assembly 2006 General Assembly Resolution
Sec. 2(C)

• Heard in General Assembly

1 The consent calendar should only be used for resolutions where there is unanimity between the policy committees and the 
GRC that a resolution should be approved by the General Assembly, and therefore, it can be concluded that there will be less 
desire to debate the resolution on the floor. 

2 The regular calendar is for resolutions for which there is a difference in recommendations between the policy committees 
and the GRC.  

662 of 200



Petitioned Resolutions 
• Submitted by voting delegate Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5 (a)
• Must be signed by voting delegates representing 10% of the member cities Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5

(c)
• Signatures confirmed by League staff
• Submitted to the League president for confirmation 24 hours before the beginning of the General

Assembly. Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5 (d)
• Petition to be reviewed by Parliamentarian for required signatures of voting delegates and for form

and substance Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5(e)
• Parliamentarian’s report is presented to chair of GRC
• Will be heard at GRC for action (GRC cannot amend but may recommend by a majority vote to the

GA technical or clarifying amendments) 2006 General Assembly Resolution sec. 6(A), (B)
• GRC may disqualify if:

 Non-germane to city issues
 Identical or substantially similar in substance to a resolution already under consideration

Bylaws Article VI, Sec. 5(e), (f)
• Heard in General Assembly

 General Assembly will consider the resolution following the other resolutions3 Bylaws Article
VI, Sec. 5(g)

 Substantive amendments that change the intent of the petitioned resolution may only be
adopted by the GA 2006 General Assembly Resolution sec. 6(C)

Voting Procedure in the General Assembly 

Consent Calendar:  Resolution approved by Policy Committee(s) and GRC. Petitioned resolution 
approved by GRC) 

 GRC Chair will be asked to give the report from the GRC and will ask for adoption of the
GRC’s recommendations

 Ask delegates if there is a desire to call out a resolution for discussion
 A voting delegate may make a motion to remove a resolution from the consent calendar for

discussion
 If a motion is made to pull a resolution, the General Assembly votes on whether to pull the

resolution from the consent calendar.
 If a majority of the General Assembly votes to pull the resolution, set “called out” reso(s)

aside. If the motion fails, the resolution remains on the consent calendar.
 If reso(s) not called out, or after ‘called out” reso is set aside, then ask for vote on remaining

resos left on consent
 Move on to debate on reso(s) called out
 After debate, a vote is taken
 Voting delegates vote on resolutions by raising their voting cards.4

3 Petitioned Resolutions on the Consent Calendar will be placed after all General Resolutions on the Consent Calendar. 
Petitioned Resolutions on the Regular Calendar will be placed after all General Resolutions on the Regular Calendar.  

4 Amendments to League bylaws require 2/3 vote 

763 of 200



Regular Calendar:  Regular resolutions approved by Policy Committee(s)5, and GRC recommends 
disapproval or referral; Regular resolutions disapproved or referred by Policy Committee(s)6 and GRC 
approves; Petitioned resolutions disapproved or referred by the GRC. 
 

 Open the floor to determine if a voting delegate wishes to debate a resolution on the regular 
calendar. 

 If no voting delegate requests a debate on the resolution, a vote to ratify the recommendation 
of the GRC on the resolution is taken. 

 Upon a motion by a voting delegate to debate a resolution, a debate shall be held if approved 
by a majority vote of the General Assembly. If a majority of the General Assembly to debate 
the resolution is not achieved, then a vote shall be taken on whether to ratify the GRC’s 
recommendation.  If a majority of the General Assembly approves of the motion to debate the 
resolution, debate will occur.  After debate on the resolution, a vote is taken based upon the 
substitute motion that was made, if any, or on the question of ratifying the GRC’s 
recommendation. 

 Voting delegates vote by raising their voting cards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 Applies in the instance where the GRC recommendation of disapproval or refer is counter to the recommendations of the 
policy committees. 
 
6 Applies in the instance where the GRC recommendation to approve is counter to the recommendations of the policy 
committees. 
 

864 of 200



1. RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES CALLING ON
THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION TO AMEND RULE 20A
TO ADD PROJECTS IN VERY HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES TO
THE LIST OF ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA AND TO INCREASE FUNDING
ALLOCATIONS FOR RULE 20A PROJECTS

Source: City of Rancho Palos Verdes 
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials 
Cities: City of Hidden Hills, City of La Cañada Flintridge, City of Laguna Beach, City of 
Lakeport, City of Malibu, City of Moorpark, City of Nevada City, City of Palos Verdes Estates, 
City of Rolling Hills Estates, City of Rolling Hills, City of Ventura 
Referred to: Environmental Quality Policy Committee; Transportation, Communications, and 
Public Works Policy Committee 

WHEREAS, the California Public Utilities Commission regulates the undergrounding 
conversion of overhead utilities under Electric Tariff Rule 20 and; 

WHEREAS, conversion projects deemed to have a public benefit are eligible to be 
funded by ratepayers under Rule 20A; and 

WHEREAS, the criteria under Rule 20A largely restricts eligible projects to those along 
streets with high volumes of public traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of undergrounding projects that do not meet Rule 20A criteria is 
left mostly or entirely to property owners under other parts of Rule 20; and 

WHEREAS, California is experiencing fire seasons of worsening severity; and 

WHEREAS, undergrounding overhead utilities that can spark brush fires is an important 
tool in preventing them and offers a public benefit; and 

WHEREAS, brush fires are not restricted to starting near streets with high volumes of 
public traffic; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Rule 20A criteria to include Very High Fire Hazard Severity 
Zones would facilitate undergrounding projects that would help prevent fires; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Rule 20A criteria as described above and increasing funding 
allocations for Rule 20A projects would lead to more undergrounding in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones; and now therefore let it be, 

RESOLVED that the League of California Cities calls on the California Public Utilities 
Commission to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to 
the list of criteria for eligibility and to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A projects. 

965 of 200



Background Information on Resolution No. 1 

Source: City of Rancho Palos Verdes 

Background: 
Rancho Palos Verdes is the most populated California city to have 90 percent or more of 
residents living in a Cal Fire-designated Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zone. Over the years, 
the Palos Verdes Peninsula has seen numerous brush fires that were determined to be caused by 
electrical utility equipment.  

Across the state, some of the most destructive and deadly wildfires were sparked by power 
equipment. But when it comes to undergrounding overhead utilities, fire safety is not taken into 
account when considering using ratepayer funds to pay for these projects under California’s 
Electric Tariff Rule 20 program. The program was largely intended to address visual blight when 
it was implemented in 1967. Under Rule 20A, utilities must allocate ratepayer funds to 
undergrounding conversion projects chosen by local governments that have a public benefit and 
meet one or more of the following criteria: 

• Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines;
• Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic;
• Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest; and,
• Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the Governor’s Office of

Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines.

As we know, brush fires are not restricted to erupting in these limited areas. California’s fire 
season has worsened in severity in recent years, claiming dozens of lives and destroying tens of 
thousands of structures in 2018 alone. 

Excluding fire safety from Rule 20A eligibility criteria puts the task of undergrounding power 
lines in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones squarely on property owners who are proactive, 
willing and able to foot the bill. 

The proposed resolution calls on the California Public Utilities Commission to amend Rule 20A 
to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. 
To facilitate more undergrounding projects in these high-risk zones, the proposed resolution also 
calls on the CPUC to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A projects. 

If adopted, utilities will be incentivized to prioritize undergrounding projects that could 
potentially save millions of dollars and many lives. 

1066 of 200



League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 1 

Staff:  Rony Berdugo, Legislative Representative, Derek Dolfie, Legislative 
Representative, Caroline Cirrincione, Legislative Policy Analyst 

Committees:  Environmental Quality; Transportation, Communications, and Public Works 

Summary: 
This Resolution, in response to intensifying fire seasons and hazards associated with exposed 
energized utility lines, proposes that the League of California Cities (League) call upon the 
California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to amend the Rule 20A program by expanding 
the criteria for undergrounding overhead utilities to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones (VHFHSZ). This Resolution also proposes that the League call upon the CPUC 
to increase utilities’ funding allocations for Rule 20A projects.  

Background 

California Wildfires and Utilities  
Over the last several years, the increasing severity and frequency of California’s wildfires have 
prompted state and local governments to seek urgent prevention and mitigation actions. Record 
breaking wildfires in Northern and Southern California in both 2017 and 2018 have caused 
destruction and loss of life. This severe fire trend has local officials seeking solutions to combat 
what is now a year-round fire season exacerbated by years of drought, intense weather patterns, 
untamed vegetation and global warming.  

These conditions create a dangerous catalyst for wildfires caused by utilities as extreme wind and 
weather events make downed power lines more of a risk. In response to recent catastrophic 
wildfires, Governor Newsom established a Strike Force tasked with developing a 
“comprehensive roadmap” to address issues related to wildfires, climate change, and utilities. 
The Strike Force report acknowledges that measures to harden the electrical grid are critical to 
wildfire risk management. A key utility hardening strategy: undergrounding lines in extreme 
high-fire areas.  

Governor Newsom’s Wildfire Strike Force program report concludes, “It’s not a question of “if” 
wildfire will strike, but “when.” 

Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones 
This Resolution seeks to expand the undergrounding of overhead utility lines in VHFHSZ. 
California Government Code Section 51178 requires the Director of the California Department 
of Forestry and Fire Protection (CalFIRE) to identify areas in the state as VHFHSZ based on the 
potential fire hazard in those areas. VHFHSZ are determined based on fuel loading, slope, fire 
weather, and other relevant factors. These zones are in both local responsibility areas and state 
responsibility areas. Maps of the statewide and county by county VHFHSZ can be found here.1 

1 https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-

severity-zones-maps/ 

1167 of 200

https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/Wildfires-and-Climate-Change-California%E2%80%99s-Energy-Future.pdf
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=51178
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps/
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps/
https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/wildfire-prevention-planning-engineering/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps/


More than 25 million acres of California wildlands are classified under very high or extreme fire 
threat. Approximately 25 percent of the state’s population, 11 million people, live in those high-
risk areas.  Additionally, over 350,000 Californians live in cities that are nearly encompassed 
within Cal Fire’s maps of VHFHSZ. Similar to the proponents of this Resolution, City of Rancho 
Palos Verdes, over 75 communities have 90 percent or more of residents living in a VHFHSZ.   

CPUC Rule 20 Program  
The CPUC’s Rule 20 program lays out the guidelines and procedures for converting overhead 
electric and telecommunication facilities to underground electric facilities. Rule 20 funding and 
criteria is provided at four levels. Levels A, B, and C, reflect progressively diminishing ratepayer 
funding for undergrounding projects. Recently added Rule 20D is a relatively new program that 
is specific to San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E), which was created in response to the 
destructive 2007 wildfires. Each of these levels will be discussed below:  

Rule 20A  
The first California overhead conversion program, Rule 20A, was created in 1967 under then 
Governor Ronald Reagan. The program was created to provide a consistent and structured means 
of undergrounding utility lines throughout the state with costs covered broadly by utility 
ratepayers.  

Each year, Investor Owned Utilities (IOUs) propose their Rule 20A allocation amounts to the 
CPUC during annual general rate case proceedings. In this process, IOUs propose revised utility 
customer rates based on expected service costs, new energy procurement and projects for the 
following year, including Rule 20 allocations. The CPUC then reviews, amends, and approves 
IOU rates. Currently, the cumulative budgeted amount for Rule 20A for Pacific Gas and Electric 
(PG&E), Southern California Edison (SCE), and San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E) totals 
around $95.7 million.  

The funding set aside by IOUs for Rule 20A is allocated to local governments through a credit 
system, with each credit holding a value to be used solely for the costs of an undergrounding 
project. The credit system was created so that local governments and IOUs can complete 
undergrounding projects without municipal financing. Through Rule 20A, municipalities that 
have developed and received city council approval for an undergrounding plan receive annual 
credits from the IOU in their service area. At the last count by the CPUC, over 500 local 
governments (cities and counties) participate in the credit system.  

While these credits have no inherent monetary value, they can be traded in or banked for the 
conversion of overhead lines. Municipalities can choose to accumulate their credits until their 
credit balance is sufficient to cover these conversion projects, or choose to borrow future 
undergrounding allocations for a period of up to five years. Once the cumulative balance of 
credits is sufficient to cover the cost of a conversion project, the municipality and the utility can 
move forward with the undergrounding. All of the planning, design, and construction is 
performed by the participating utility. Upon the completion of an undergrounding project, the 
utility is compensated through the local government’s Rule 20A credits. 

1268 of 200



At the outset of the program, the amount of allocated credits were determined by a formula 
which factored in the number of utility meters within a municipality in comparison to the 
utilities’ service territory. However, in recent years the formula has changed. Credit allocations 
for IOUs, except for PG&E, are now determined based on the allocation a city or county 
received in 1990 and is then adjusted for the following factors:  

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for the ratio of the
number of overhead meters in any city or unincorporated area to the total system
overhead meters; and

• 50% of the change from the 1990 total budgeted amount is allocated for the ratio of the
number of meters (which includes older homes that have overhead services, and newer
homes with completely underground services) in any city or the unincorporated area to
the total system meters.

As noted, PG&E has a different funding formula for their Rule 20A credit allocations as they are 
not tied to the 1990 base allocation. Prior to 2011, PG&E was allocating approximately five to 
six percent of its revenue to the Rule 20A program. The CPUC decided in 2011 that PG&E’s 
Rule 20A allocations should be reduced by almost half in an effort to decrease the growing 
accumulation of credits amongst local governments. Since 2011, PG&E’s annual allocations for 
Rule 20A have been around $41.3 million annually, which is between two and three percent of 
their total revenue. 

Criteria for Rule 20A Projects  
For an undergrounding project to qualify for the Rule 20A program, there are several criteria that 
need to be met. The project must have a public benefit and:  

1. Eliminate an unusually heavy concentration of overhead lines
2. Involve a street or road with a high volume of public traffic
3. Benefit a civic or public recreation area or area of unusual scenic interest,
4. Be listed as an arterial street or major collector as defined in the Governor’s Office of

Planning and Research (OPR) Guidelines

Notably, fire safety is excluded from the list of criteria that favors aesthetic and other public 
safety projects.  

Rule 20A Credit System Imbalance Threatens Program Effectiveness 
Allocations are made by utilities each year for Rule 20A credits. These current budget 
allocations total $95.7 million a year. Currently, the cumulative balance of credits throughout the 
state totals over $1 billion dollars. The Rule 20A cumulative balances aggregated by region can 
be found here.2  

2 Program Review, California Overhead Conversion Program, Rule 20A for Years 2011-2015, “The Billion Dollar Risk,” California Public Utilities 
Commission. 
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/uploadedFiles/CPUC_Public_Website/Content/About_Us/Organization/Divisions/Policy_and_Planning/PPD_Work_Pr
oducts_(2014_forward)(1)/PPD_Rule_20-A.pdf 

1369 of 200

https://www.cacities.org/Resources-Documents/Policy-Advocacy-Section/Legislative-Resources/Rule-20A-Cummulative-Balances-Aggregated-by-Region.aspx
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/uploadedFiles/CPUC_Public_Website/Content/About_Us/Organization/Divisions/Policy_and_Planning/PPD_Work_Products_(2014_forward)(1)/PPD_Rule_20-A.pdf
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/uploadedFiles/CPUC_Public_Website/Content/About_Us/Organization/Divisions/Policy_and_Planning/PPD_Work_Products_(2014_forward)(1)/PPD_Rule_20-A.pdf


Note: The existing credit allocation formulas do not consider a municipality’s need or plans for 
overhead conversion projects, resulting in large credit balances in some jurisdictions.  

Cities and counties are, however, able to trade or sell unallocated Rule 20A credits if they will 
not be used to fund local undergrounding projects. There have been several cases where one 
agency has sold their unused credits, often for less than the full dollar value of the credits 
themselves to another agency. 

Rule 20B 
Rule 20B projects are those that do not fit the Rule 20A criteria, but do, however, involve both 
sides of the street for at least 600 feet. These projects are typically done in conjunction with 
larger developments and are mostly paid for by the developer or applicant. Additionally, the 
applicant is responsible for the installation.  

Rule 20C 
Rule 20C projects are usually small projects that involve property owners. The majority of the 
cost is usually borne by the applicants. Rule 20C applies when the project does not qualify for 
either Rule 20A or Rule 20B. 

Rule 20D--Wildfire Mitigation Undergrounding Program 
Rule 20D was approved by the CPUC in January of 2014 and only applies to SDG&E. The Rule 
20D program was established largely in response to the destructive wildfires that occurred in San 
Diego in 2007 as a wildfire mitigation undergrounding program. According to SDG&E, the 
objective of the Rule 20D undergrounding is exclusively for fire hardening as opposed to 
aesthetics. The program is limited in scope and is restricted to communities in SDG&E’s Fire 
Threat Zone (now referred to as the High Fire Threat District or HFTD). As of this time, the 
program has yet to yield any projects and no projects are currently planned. 

For an undergrounding project to qualify for the Rule 20D program, a minimum of three of the 
following criteria must be met. The project must be near, within, or impactful to: 

• Critical electric infrastructure
• Remaining useful life of electric infrastructure
• Exposure to vegetation or tree contact
• Density and proximity of fuel
• Critical surrounding non-electric assets (including structures and sensitive environmental

areas)
• Service to public agencies
• Accessibility for firefighters

Similar to Rule 20A, SDG&E must allocate funding each year through their general rate case 
proceedings to Rule 20D to be approved by the CPUC. This funding is separate from the 
allocations SDG&E makes for Rule 20A. However, the process of distributing this funding to 
localities is different. The amount of funding allocated to each city and county for Rule 20D is 
based on the ratio of the number of miles of overhead lines in SDG&E Fire Threat Zones in a 
city or county to the total miles of SDG&E overhead lines in the entire SDG&E fire zone. The 

1470 of 200

ftp://ftp.cpuc.ca.gov/safety/fire-threat_map/2018/PrintablePDFs/8.5X11inch_PDF/High_Fire-Threat_District_Map_final.pdf


Rule 20D program is administered by the utility consistent with the existing reporting, 
engineering, accounting, and management practices for Rule 20A.  

The Committee may want to consider whether Rule 20D should instead be expanded, adapted, or 
further utilized to support funding for overhead conversions within VHFHSZ throughout the 
state.  

Fiscal Impact: 
The costs to the State associated with this Resolution will be related to the staff and 
programmatic costs to the CPUC to take the necessary measures to consider and adopt changes 
to Rule 20A to include projects in VHFHSZ to the list of criteria for eligibility.  

This Resolution calls for an unspecified increase in funding for Rule 20A projects, inferring that 
portions of increased funds will go towards newly eligible high fire hazard zones. While the 
Resolution does not request a specific amount be allocated, it can be assumed that these 
increased costs will be supported by utility ratepayers. According to the CPUC, the annual 
allocations towards Rule 20A are $95.7 million. 

The CPUC currently reports a cumulative credit surplus valued at roughly $1 billion that in 
various regions, given the approval of expanded eligibility called for by this Resolution, could be 
used to supplement and reduce the level of new dollars needed to make a significant impact in 
VHFHSZ. The CPUC follows that overhead conversion projects range from $93,000 per mile for 
rural construction to $5 million per mile for urban construction.  

The Resolution states that “California is experiencing fire seasons of worsening severity” which 
is supported by not only the tremendous loss of property and life from recent wildfires, but also 
in the rising costs associated with clean up, recovery, and other economic losses with high 
estimates in the hundreds of billions of dollars.  

The Committee may wish to consider the costs associated with undergrounding utility lines in 
relation to the costs associated with past wildfires and wildfires to come.  

Comments: 
CPUC Currently Exploring Revisions to Rule 20 
In May 2017, the CPUC issued an Order Instituting Rulemaking to Consider Revisions to 
Electric Rule 20 and Related Matters. The CPUC will primarily focus on revisions to Rule 20A 
but may make conforming changes to other parts of Rule 20. The League is a party in these 
proceedings will provide comments. 

Beyond Rule 20A: Additional Options for Funding Undergrounding Projects 
There are various ways in which cities can generate funding for undergrounding projects that fall 
outside of the scope of Rule 20A. At the local level, cities can choose to forgo the Rule 20A 
process and opt to use their own General Fund money for undergrounding. Other options are also 
discussed below:   

1571 of 200



Rule 20D Expansion 
The City of Berkley in a 2018 study titled “Conceptual Study for Undergrounding Utility Wires 
in Berkley,” found that the city could possibly qualify for Rule 20D funding if they actively 
pursued this opportunity in partnership with PG&E and the CPUC.  

One of the study’s recommendations is to advocate for release of 20D funds (now earmarked 
exclusively for SDG&E) to be used for more aggressive fire hardening techniques for above-
ground utility poles and equipment, for undergrounding power lines, and for more aggressive 
utility pole and vegetation management practices in the Very High Hazard Fire Zone within 
Berkeley’s city limits. 

As an alternative to changing the criteria for Rule 20A, the Committee may wish to consider 
whether there is the opportunity to advocate for the expansion of Rule 20D funding more 
broadly, expanding its reach to all IOU territories.  

Franchise Surcharge Fees 
Aside from Rule 20 allocations, cities can generate funding for undergrounding through 
franchise fee surcharges. For example, SDG&E currently operates under a 50-year City franchise 
that was granted in 1970. Under the franchises approved by the San Diego City Council in 
December 1970, SDG&E agreed to pay a franchise fee to the City equivalent to 3% of its gross 
receipts from the sales of both natural gas and electricity for 30 years. 

These fees were renegotiated in 2000 and in 2001 an agreement was between the City of San 
Diego, SDG&E, and the CPUC to extend the existing franchise fee to include revenues collected 
from surcharges. SDG&E requested an increase of 3.88% to its existing electric franchise fee 
surcharge. The bulk, 3.53% of this increase is to be used for underground conversion of overhead 
electric wires.  

Based on SDG&E's revenue projections, the increase would result in an additional surcharge 
revenue amount of approximately $36.5 million per year. SDG&E estimates that this would 
create a monthly increase of approximately $3.00 to a typical residential customer's electric bill. 
These surcharge revenues would pay for additional undergrounding projects including those that 
do not meet the Rule 20A criteria. The City of Santa Barbara has also adopted a similar franchise 
surcharge fee. 

Having this funding source allows the City of San Diego to underground significantly more 
miles of above ground utility lines than other municipalities. However, the surcharge is currently 
being challenged in court, as it is argued that the City had SDG&E impose a tax without a ballot 
measure.  

1672 of 200

https://www.berkeleyside.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/2018-02-20-WS-Item-03-Conceptual-Study-for-Undergrounding.pdf
https://www.berkeleyside.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/2018-02-20-WS-Item-03-Conceptual-Study-for-Undergrounding.pdf


Utility Bankruptcy and Undergrounding Funding 
In considering this Resolution, it is important to understand that Rule 20A allocations have been 
more substantial in the past. As mentioned earlier, prior to 2011, PG&E was allocating 
approximately 5% to 6% of its revenue to the Rule 20A program. Therefore, it is not 
unreasonable to encourage an increase in Rule 20A allocations as history shows that utilities had 
the capacity to do so in the past. 

However, in a time where IOUs such as PG&E are facing bankruptcy as the result of utility 
caused wildfires, there is the possibility that expanding rule 20A funding will generate more 
costs for the ratepayers.  

Questions to Consider: 
1) Is Rule 20A or Rule 20D the more appropriate program to advocate for such an

expansion?
2) Are there any wildfire risks outside of VHFHSZ that could be mitigated by

undergrounding projects?

Existing League Policy:  

Public Safety:  
The League supports additional funding for local agencies to recoup the costs associated with 
fire safety in the community and timely mutual aid reimbursement for disaster response services 
in other jurisdictions. (pg. 43) 

The League supports the fire service mission of saving lives and protecting property through fire 
prevention, disaster preparedness, hazardous-materials mitigation, specialized rescue, etc., as 
well as cities’ authority and discretion to provide all emergency services to their communities. 
(pg. 43)  

Transportation, Communication, and Public Works:  
Existing telecommunications providers and new entrants shall adhere to local city policies on 
public utility undergrounding. (pg. 54) 

The League supports protecting the additional funding for local transportation and other critical 
unmet infrastructure needs. (pg. 51) 

The League supports innovative strategies including public private partnerships at the state and 
local levels to enhance public works funding. (pg. 52) 

Environmental Quality 
The League opposes any legislation that interferes with local utility rate setting authority and 
opposes any legislation that restricts the ability of a city to transfer revenue from a utility (or 
other enterprise activity) to the city’s general fund. (pg. 9) 

1773 of 200



Cities should continue to have the authority to issue franchises and any program should be at 
least revenue neutral relative to revenue currently received from franchises. (pg. 9)  

The League is concerned about the impacts of escalating energy prices on low income residents 
and small businesses. The League supports energy pricing structures and other mechanisms to 
soften the impacts on this segment of our community. (pg. 10) 

2019 Strategic Goals 
Improve Disaster Preparedness, Recovery and Climate Resiliency. 
• Provide resources to cities and expand partnerships to better prepare for and recover from

wildfires, seismic events, erosion, mudslides and other disasters.
• Improve community preparedness and resiliency to respond to climate-related, natural and

man-made disasters.

Support: 
The following letters of concurrence were received: 
The City of Hidden Hills 
The City of La Cañada Flintridge 
The City of Laguna Beach 
The City of Lakeport  
The City of Malibu  
The City of Moorpark 
The City of Nevada City  
The City of Palos Verdes Estates  
The City of Rolling Hills Estates  
The City of Rolling Hills  
The City of Ventura 

1874 of 200



LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 1 

Amendment to Rule 20A 

1975 of 200



2076 of 200



2177 of 200



2278 of 200



2379 of 200



2480 of 200



City of Malibu 
Jefferson Wagner, Mayor 

23825 Stuart Ranch Road · Malibu, California · 90265-4861 
Phone (310) 456-2489 · Fax (310) 456-3356 · www.malibucity.org 

M:\City Council\Mayor Chron Files\2019\Rancho PV League Reso to Amend Rule 20A-Support_190815.docx Recycled Paper 

August 15, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President  
League of California Cities 
1400 K St., Ste. 400  
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: City of Rancho Palos Verdes Proposed Resolution to Amend California Public Utilities 
Commission Rule 20A – SUPPORT 

Dear Ms. Arbuckle: 

At its Regular meeting on August 12, 2019, the Malibu City Council unanimously voted to support the 
City of Rancho Palos Verdes’ effort to bring a resolution for consideration by the General Assembly at 
the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach. 

Undergrounding power lines is an important tool in preventing destructive wildfires that have devastated 
communities across our state, but California’s Rule 20A program, which allows local governments to 
pay for these costly projects with ratepayer funds, does not factor in fire safety for eligibility. Unless 
projects meet the program’s limited eligibility criteria, they are left to be funded by property owners who 
are proactive, as well as willing and able to foot the bill. The City of Malibu agrees with Rancho Palos 
Verdes that Rule 20A offers an important opportunity for fire prevention and that the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) should expand this program so more communities can utilize it. 

The resolution calls on the CPUC to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. To facilitate more undergrounding projects in these 
high-risk zones, the resolution also calls on the CPUC to increase funding allocations for Rule 20A 
projects. As a recent series of news stories on wildfire preparedness in California pointed out, there are 
more than 75 communities across the state with populations over 1,000, including Rancho Palos Verdes 
and Malibu, where at least 90 percent of residents live in a Cal Fire-designated Very High Fire Hazard 
Severity Zone. 

It is well-known that electric utility equipment is a common fire source, and has sparked some of the 
most destructive blazes in our state’s history. Moving power lines underground is, therefore, a critical 
tool in preventing them. Currently, Rule 20A primarily addresses visual blight, but with fire seasons 
worsening, it is key that fire safety also be considered when local governments pursue Rule 20A projects, 
and that annual funding allocations for the program be expanded. 

It is worth noting that the State does have a program, Rule 20D, that factors in fire safety for funding 
undergrounding projects. However, this is limited to San Diego Gas & Electric Company projects in 
certain areas only. This needs to be expanded to include projects in all projects within designated Very 
High Fire Hazard Severity Zones. 

25

81 of 200

http://www.malibucity.org/


Rancho PV League Resolution 
Amend Rule 20A 
August 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

M:\City Council\Mayor Chron Files\2019\Rancho PV League Reso to Amend Rule 20A-Support_190815.docx
Recycled Paper 

The proposed resolution is also in line with one of the League’s 2019 Strategic Goals of improving 
disaster preparedness, recovery and climate resiliency. 

For these reasons, the City of Malibu strongly concurs that the resolution should go before the General 
Assembly. 

Sincerely, 

Jefferson Wagner 
Mayor 

Cc:  Honorable Members of the Malibu City Council 
Reva Feldman, City Manager 
Megan Barnes, City of Rancho Palos Verdes, mbarnes@rpvca.gov 

26

82 of 200

mailto:mbarnes@rpvca.gov


CITY OF MOORPARK 

JANICE S. PARVIN 
Mayor 

CHRIS ENEGREN 
Councilmember 

ROSEANN MIKOS, Ph.D. 
Councilmember 

DAVID POLLOCK 
Councilmember 

KEN SIMONS 
Councilmember 

799 Moorpark Avenue, Moorpark, California  93021     

Main City Phone Number (805) 517-6200   |   Fax (805) 532-2205   |   moorpark@moorparkca.gov 

July 24, 2019 SUBMITTED ELECTRONICALLY 

Jan Arbuckle, President 
League of California Cities 
1400 K St., Ste. 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: SUPPORT FOR RANCHO PALOS VERDES RESOLUTION RE: POWER LINE 
UNDERGROUNDING 

Dear President Arbuckle: 

The City of Moorpark supports the City of Rancho Palos Verdes effort to bring a resolution for 
consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long 
Beach. 

Undergrounding power lines is an important tool in preventing destructive wildfires that have 
devastated communities across our state. But California’s Rule 20A program, which allows 
local governments to pay for these costly projects with ratepayer funds, does not factor in fire 
safety for eligibility. Unless projects meet the program’s limited eligibility criteria, they are left 
to be funded by property owners who are proactive, willing and able to foot the bill. We 
believe Rule 20A offers an important opportunity for fire prevention and that the California 
Public Utilities Commission should expand this program so more communities can utilize it. 

The resolution calls on the CPUC to amend Rule 20A to include projects in Very High Fire 
Hazard Severity Zones to the list of criteria for eligibility. To facilitate more undergrounding 
projects in these high-risk zones, the resolution also calls on the CPUC to increase funding 
allocations for Rule 20A projects.  

All cities in Ventura County, including Moorpark, have wildfire prevention fresh in our 
memories following the highly destructive 2017-2018 Thomas Fire, which was caused by 
above-ground power lines.  The 2018 Woolsey Fire similarly affected Ventura County, and 
lawsuits have been filed alleging it was also caused by above-ground power lines.  Each of 
these fires caused billions of dollars in damages and highlight the importance of 
undergrounding power lines.  

2783 of 200



League of California Cities 
Page 2 

The resolution is also in line with one of the League’s 2019 Strategic Goals of improving 
disaster preparedness, recovery and climate resiliency. 

For these reasons, we concur that the resolution should go before the General Assembly. 

Sincerely, 

Janice Parvin 
Mayor 

cc: City Council 
 City Manager 

2884 of 200



2985 of 200



3086 of 200



3187 of 200



3288 of 200



3389 of 200



2. A RESOLUTION CALLING UPON THE FEDERAL AND STATE GOVERNMENTS
TO ADDRESS THE DEVASTATING IMPACTS OF INTERNATIONAL
TRANSBOUNDARY POLLUTION FLOWS INTO THE SOUTHERNMOST
REGIONS OF CALIFORNIA AND THE PACIFIC OCEAN

Source:  San Diego County Division  
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials  
Cities: Calexico; Coronado; Imperial Beach; San Diego 
Individual City Officials: City of Brawley: Mayor Pro Tem Norma Kastner-Jauregui; Council 
Members Sam Couchman, Luke Hamby, and George Nava. City of Escondido: Deputy Mayor 
Consuelo Martinez. City of La Mesa: Council Member Bill Baber. City of Santee: Mayor John 
Minto, City of Vista: Mayor Judy Ritter and Council Member Amanda Young Rigby
Referred to: Environmental Quality Policy Committee 

WHEREAS, international transboundary rivers that carry water across the border from 
Mexico into Southern California are a major source of sewage, trash, chemicals, heavy metals 
and toxins; and  

WHEREAS, transboundary flows threaten the health of residents in the United States 
and Mexico, harm important estuarine land and water of international significance, force closure 
of beaches, damage farmland, adversely impact the South San Diego County and Imperial 
County economy; compromise border security, and directly affect U.S. military readiness; and  

WHEREAS, a significant amount of untreated sewage, sediment, hazardous chemicals 
and trash have been entering southern California through both the Tijuana River Watershed (75 
percent of which is within Mexico) and New River flowing into southern California’s coastal 
waterways and residential and agricultural communities in Imperial County eventually draining 
into the Salton Sea since the 1930s; and 

WHEREAS, in February 2017, an estimated 143 million gallons of raw sewage flowed 
into the Tijuana River and ran downstream into the Pacific Ocean and similar cross border flows 
have caused beach closures at Border Field State Park that include 211 days in 2015; 162 days in 
2016; 168 days in 2017; 101 days in 2018; and 187 days to date for 2019 as well as closure of a 
number of other beaches along the Pacific coastline each of those years; and  

WHEREAS, approximately 132 million gallons of raw sewage has discharged into the 
New River flowing into California through communities in Imperial County, with 122 million 
gallons of it discharged in a 6-day period in early 2017; and  

WHEREAS, the presence of pollution on state and federal public lands is creating unsafe 
conditions for visitors; these lands are taxpayer supported and intended to be managed for 
recreation, resource conservation and the enjoyment by the public, and  

WHEREAS, the current insufficient and degrading infrastructure in the border zone 
poses a significant risk to the public health and safety of residents and the environment on both 

3490 of 200



sides of the border, and places the economic stress on cities that are struggling to mitigate the 
negative impacts of pollution; and 

WHEREAS, the 1944 treaty between the United States and Mexico regarding Utilization 
of Waters of the Colorado and Tijuana Rivers and of the Rio Grande allocates flows on trans-
border rivers between Mexico and the United States, and provides that the nations, through their 
respective sections of the International Boundary Water Commission shall give control of 
sanitation in cross border flows the highest priority; and  

WHEREAS, in 1993, the United States and Mexico entered into the Agreement Between 
the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the United Mexican 
States Concerning the Establishment of a North American Development Bank which created the 
North American Development Bank (NADB) to certify and fund environmental infrastructure 
projects in border-area communities; and   

WHEREAS, public concerns in response to widespread threats to public health and 
safety, damage to fish and wildlife resources and degradation to California’s environment 
resulting from transboundary river flow pollution in the southernmost regions of the state 
requires urgent action by the Federal and State governments, and  

WHEREAS, Congress authorized funding under the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (EPA) Safe Drinking Water Act and established the State and Tribal Assistance Grants 
(STAG) program for the U.S.-Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) in 1996 to 
provide grants for high-priority water, wastewater, and storm-water infrastructure projects within 
100 kilometers of the southern border; and  

WHEREAS, the EPA administers the STAG and BWIP programs, and coordinates with 
the North American Development Bank (NADB) to allocate BWIP grant funds to projects in the 
border zone; and  

WHEREAS, since its inception, the BWIP program has provided funding for projects in 
California, Arizona, New Mexico and Texas that would not have been constructed without the 
grant program; and 

WHEREAS, the BWIP program was initially funded at $100 million per year, but, over 
the last 20 years, has been continuously reduced to its current level of $10 million; and  

WHEREAS, in its FY 2020 Budget Request, the Administration proposed to eliminate 
the BWIP program; and 

WHEREAS, officials from EPA Region 9, covering California, have identified a 
multitude of BWIP-eligible projects along the southern border totaling over $300 million; and 

WHEREAS, without federal partnership through the BWIP program and state support to 
address pollution, cities that are impacted by transboundary sewage and toxic waste flows are 

3591 of 200



left with limited resources to address a critical pollution and public health issue and limited legal 
remedies to address the problem; and  

WHEREAS, the National Association of Counties, (NACo) at their Annual Conference 
on July 15, 2019 and the U.S. Conference of Mayors at their Annual Conference on in July 1, 
2019 both enacted resolutions calling on the federal and state governments to work together to 
fund and address this environmental crisis; and  

WHEREAS, local governments and the public support the State’s primary objectives in 
complying with environmental laws including the Clean Water Act, Porter-Cologne Water 
Quality Control Act, and Endangered Species Act and are supported by substantial public 
investments at all levels of government to maintain a healthy and sustainable environment for 
future residents of California, and  

WHEREAS, League of California Cities policy has long supported efforts to ensure 
water quality and oppose contamination of water resources; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED at the League General Assembly, 
assembled at the League Annual Conference on October 18, 2019 in Long Beach, that the 
League calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper funding to the 
U.S- Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and recommit to working bi-
nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water quality and
contamination issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-
laden transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant health,
environmental, and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern border impacting
the state.

3692 of 200



Background Information on Resolution No. 2 

Source:  San Diego County Division 

Background: 
Along California’s southern border with Mexico, the New River in Imperial County and the 
Tijuana River in San Diego County are a major sources of raw sewage, trash, chemicals, heavy 
metals, and toxins that pollute local communities. Sewage contaminated flows in the Tijuana 
River have resulted in significant impacts to beach recreation that includes the closure of Border 
Field State Beach for more than 800 days over the last 5-years. Similarly, contaminated flows in 
the New River presents comparable hazards, impacts farm land, and contributes to the ongoing 
crisis in the Salton Sea. These transboundary flows threaten the health of residents in California 
and Mexico, harms the ecosystem, force closures at beaches, damage farm land, makes people 
sick, and adversely affects the economy of border communities. The root cause of this cross 
border pollution is from insufficient or failing water and wastewater infrastructure in the border 
zone and inadequate federal action to address the problem through existing border programs.  

The severity of cross border pollution has continued to increase, due in part to the rapid growth 
of urban centers since the passage of the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA). 
While economic growth has contributed to greater employment, the environmental infrastructure 
of the region has not kept pace, which is why Congress authorized the Border Water 
Infrastructure Program (BWIP) in 1996. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
administers the BWIP and coordinates with the North American Development Bank (NADB) to 
provide financing and technical support for projects on both sides of the U.S./Mexico border. 
Unfortunately, the current BWIP funding at $10 million per year is only a fraction of the initial 
program budget that shares funding with the entire 2,000 mile Mexican border with California, 
Arizona, New Mexico and Texas. EPA officials from Region 9 have identified an immediate 
need for BWIP projects totaling over $300 million just for California. Without federal 
partnerships through the BWIP and state support to address cross border pollution, cities that are 
impacted by transboundary sewage and toxic waste flows are left with limited resources to 
address a critical pollution and public health issue.  

The International Boundary and Water Commission (IBWC) is another important federal 
stakeholder that, under the Treaty of 1944 with Mexico, must address border sanitation 
problems. While IBWC currently captures and treats some of the pollution generated in Mexico, 
it also redirects cross border flows without treatment directly into California.  

Improving environmental and public health conditions for communities along the border is 
essential for maintaining strong border economy with Mexico. The IBWC, EPA, and NADB are 
the important federal partners with existing bi-national programs that are able to immediately 
implement solutions on cross border pollution. California is in a unique position to take the lead 
and work with local and federal partners to implement real solutions that will addresses the long 
standing and escalating water quality crisis along the border.  

For those reasons, the cities of Imperial Beach and Coronado requested the San Diego County 
Division to propose a resolution at the 2019 League Annual Conference calling upon the federal 

3793 of 200



and state governments to address the devastating impacts of international transboundary 
pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of California, San Diego and 
Imperial Counties and the Pacific Ocean.    

On August 12, 2019 at the regularly scheduled meeting of the San Diego County Division, the 
membership unanimously endorsed submittal of the resolution, with close to 75% membership 
present and voting.   

The Imperial County Division does not have a schedule meeting until after the deadline to 
submit proposed resolutions.  However, the City of Calexico, which is most directly impacted by 
initial pollution flow of the New River from Mexicali, sent a letter in concurrence of this 
resolution as well as numerous city official from cities within Imperial County and the Imperial 
County Board of Supervisors. The League Imperial County Division will place a vote to support 
this resolution on the agenda of their September 26, 2019 meeting.  

3894 of 200



League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 2 

Staff:  Derek Dolfie, Legislative Representative 
Carly Shelby, Legislative and Policy Development Assistant 

Committees: Environmental Quality 

Summary: 
This Resolution states that the League of California Cities should call upon the State and Federal 
governments to restore and ensure proper funding for the U.S. – Mexico Border Water 
Infrastructure Program (BWIP) and work bi-nationally to address water quality issues resulting 
from transboundary flows from Mexico’s Tijuana River into the United States containing 
untreated sewage, polluted sediment, and trash. 

Background: 
The League of California Cities’ San Diego County Division is sponsoring this resolution to 
address their concerns over the contaminated flows from the Tijuana River into California that 
have resulted in the degradation of water quality and water recreational areas in Southern 
California.  

The Tijuana River flows north through highly urbanized areas in Mexico before it enters the 
Tijuana River Estuary and eventually the Pacific Ocean via waterways in San Diego County in 
California. Urban growth in Tijuana has contributed to a rise in rates of upstream flows from 
water treatment facilities in Mexico. These treatment facilities have raised the amount of 
untreated sewage and waste in the Tijuana River due to faulty infrastructure and improper 
maintenance. The federal government refers to the river as an “impaired water body” because of 
the presence of pollutants in excess, which pose significant health risks to residents and visitors 
in communities on both sides of the border.  

Federal Efforts to Address Pollution Crisis  
To remedy the Tijuana River’s low water quality, the United States and Mexico entered into a 
Treaty in 1944 entitled: Utilization of Waters of the Colorado River and Tijuana Rivers and of 
the Rio Grande – the International Boundary and Water Commission (IBWC). The IBWC was 
designed to consist of a United States section and a Mexico section. Both sections were tasked 
with negotiating and implementing resolutions to address water pollution in the area, which 
includes overseeing the development of water treatment and diversion infrastructure.  

After the formation of the IBWC, the U.S. and Mexico entered into a treaty in 1993 entitled: 
Agreement Concerning the Establishment of a Border Environment Cooperation Commission 
and a North American Development Bank. This agreement established the North American 
Development Bank (NADB), which certifies and funds infrastructure projects located within 100 
kilometers (62 miles) of the border line. The NADB supports federal programs like the Border 
Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP), which was initially funded at $100 million, annually.   

The degradation of existing water treatment infrastructure along the border coincides with the 
federal government’s defunding of the BWIP, which has steadily decreased from $100 million in 
1996 to $10 million today. The Federal FY 2020 Budget proposes eliminating BWIP funding 

3995 of 200



altogether. EPA’s regions 6 and 9 (includes U.S. states that border Mexico) have identified a 
number of eligible projects that address public health and environmental conditions along the 
border totaling $340 million.  

The NADB has funded the development of water infrastructure in both the U.S. and Mexico. 
Water diversion and treatment infrastructure along the U.S – Mexico border includes, but is not 
limited to, the following facilities:  

• The South Bay International Wastewater Treatment Plant (SBIWTP). This facility was
constructed by the U.S. in 1990 and is located on the California side of the border and is
operated under the jurisdiction of the IBWC. The SBIWTP serves as a diversion and
treatment sewage plant to address the flow of untreated sewage from Mexico into the
United States.

• Pump Station CILA. CILA was constructed by Mexico in 1991 and is located along the
border in Mexico. This facility serves as the SBIWTP’s Mexican counterpart.

Both the SBIWTP and CILA facilities have had a multitude of overflows containing untreated 
sewage and toxic waste that spills into the Tijuana River. The cause of overflows can be 
attributed to flows exceeding the maximum capacity that the infrastructure can accommodate 
(this is exacerbated during wet and rainy seasons) and failure to properly operate and maintain 
the facilities. Much of the existing infrastructure has not had updates or repairs for decades, 
causing overflows to become more frequent and severe. The most notable overflow occurred in 
February 2017, wherein 143 million gallons of polluting waste discharged into the Tijuana River; 
affecting the Tijuana Estuary, the Pacific Ocean, and Southern California’s waterways.  

State Actions 
In response to the February 2017 overflow, the San Diego Water Board’s Executive Officer sent 
a letter to the U.S. and Mexican IBWC Commissioners which included recommendations on 
how to improve existing infrastructure and communications methods between both nations.  

In September of 2018, California Attorney General Xavier Becerra submitted a lawsuit against 
IBWC for Violating the Clean Water Act by allowing flows containing sewage and toxic waste 
to flow into California’s waterways, posing a public health and ecological crisis. The cities of 
Imperial Beach, San Diego, Chula Vista, the Port of San Diego, and the San Diego Regional 
Water Quality Board have also filed suit against the IBWC. The suit is awaiting its first 
settlement conference on October 19, 2019. If parties are unable to reach a settlement, the case 
will go to trial. 

Fiscal Impact: 
California’s economy is currently the sixth largest in the world, with tourism spending topping 
$140.6 billion in 2018. In the past five years, San Diego’s Border Field State Park has been 
closed for over 800 days because of pollution from the Tijuana River. A decline in the State’s 
beach quality and reputation could carry macroeconomic effects that could ripple outside of the 
San Diego County region and affect coastal communities throughout California.  

4096 of 200



Existing League Policy 
The League of California Cities has extensive language on water in its Summary of Existing 
Policy and Guiding Principles. Fundamentally, the League recognizes that beneficial water 
quality is essential to the health and welfare of California and all of its citizens. Additionally, the 
League advocates for local, state and federal governments to work cooperatively to ensure that 
water quality is maintained.  
The following policy relates to the issue of water quality:  

• Surface and groundwater should be protected from contamination.
• Requirements for wastewater discharge into surface water and groundwater to safeguard

public health and protect beneficial uses should be supported.
• When addressing contamination in a water body, water boards should place priority

emphasis on clean-up strategies targeting sources of pollution, rather than in stream or
end-of-pipe treatment.

• Water development projects must be economically, environmentally and scientifically
sound.

• The viability of rivers and streams for instream uses such as fishery habitat, recreation
and aesthetics must be protected.

• Protection, maintenance, and restoration of fish and wildlife habitat and resources.

Click here to view the Summary of Existing Policy and Guiding Principles 2018. 

Comments: 
1. Water quality issues are prevalent across California and have been a constant priority of

the State’s legislature and residents. In 2014, California’s voters approved Proposition 1,
which authorized $7.5 billion in general obligation bonds to fund water quality
improvement projects. In 2019, the Legislature reached an agreement to allocate $130
million from the State’s Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) to address failing
water infrastructure and bad water qualities for over one million of California’s residents
in rural communities. Water quality is not an issue unique to the County of San Diego
and communities along the border.

2. Tijuana River cross-border pollution has caught national attention. Members of Congress
have proposed recent funding solutions to address the pollution crisis, including:
• In February of 2019, California Congressional Representatives Vargas, Peters, and

Davis helped secure $15 million for the EPA to use as part of its BWIP.
• H.R. 3895 (Vargas, Peters, 2019), The North American Development Bank Pollution

Solution Act.  This bill seeks to support pollution mitigation efforts along the border
by increasing the NADB’s capital by $1.5 billion.

• H.R. 4039 (Levin, 2019), The Border Water Infrastructure Improvement Act.
This bill proposes increasing funding to the BWIP from the existing $10 million to
$150 million as a continuous appropriation until 2025.

Additionally, the National Association of Counties (NACo) and the U.S. Conference of 
Mayors enacted resolutions in support of increased funding for U.S. – Mexico border 
water infrastructure to address the environmental crisis in 2019.  

4197 of 200

https://www.cacities.org/CMSPages/GetFile.aspx?nodeguid=8969c128-df9a-492b-a906-f1aa17964003&lang=en-US


3. The border pollution problem has sparked action from local, state, and federal actors.
Should this resolution be adopted, League membership should be aware that future action
will be adapted by what is explicitly stated in the resolution’s language.  In current form,
the resolution’s resolve clause cites the BWIP as the only program that should receive
reinstated and proper funding. League staff recommends the language be modified to
state:

“NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED at the League General Assembly, 
assembled at the League Annual Conference on October 18, 2019 in Long Beach, 
that the League calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and 
ensure proper funding for environmental infrastructure on the U.S. – Mexico 
Border, including to the U.S- Mexico Border Water Infrastructure Program 
(BWIP), and recommit to working bi-nationally to develop and implement long-
term solutions to address serious water quality and contamination issues, such as 
discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-laden 
transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant health, 
environmental, and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern 
border impacting the state.” 

Modifying the language would ensure enough flexibility for the League to support 
funding mechanisms outside of the prescribed federally-operated BWIP.  

4. It remains unclear if there is an appetite in Washington to fund border-related
infrastructure projects that address environmental quality. Given the high probability of
another overflow containing waste and sewage from the existing infrastructure operated
by the IBWC, League membership should consider the outcome if no resolution is
reached to address the issue.

Support: 
The following letters of concurrence were received:  
Cities:  
The City of Calexico 
The City of Coronado  
The City of Imperial Beach  
The City of San Diego  
In their individual capacity:  
Amanda Young Rigby, City of Vista Council Member 
Bill Baber, City of La Mesa Council Member 
Consuelo Martinez, City of Escondido Deputy Mayor 
George A. Nava, City of Brawley Council Member 
John Minto, City of Santee Mayor
Judy Ritter, City of Vista Mayor 
Luke Hamby, City of Brawley Council Member 
Norma Kastner-Jauregui, City of Brawley Mayor Pro-Tempore 
Sam Couchman, City of Brawley Council Member 

4298 of 200



LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 2 

International Transboundary 
Pollution Flows 

4399 of 200



CITY OF CALEXICO

Viva Calexico!

608 Heber Ave.
Calexico, CA 92231-2840
Tel: 760.768.2110
Fax: 760.768.2103
www.calexico.ca.gov

August 15, 2019

Jan Arbuckle, President
League of California Cities
1400 K Street, Suite 400
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River
Pollution Flow Resolution

President Arbuckle:

The city of Calexico strongly supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to submit a resolution

for consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach.

The Division’s resolution calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper

funding of the Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) to address the devastating impacts of

international transboundary pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of

California (San Diego and Imperial Counties) and the Pacific Ocean.

Local government and the public support the State’s water and environmental quality objectives and

League policy has long supported efforts to ensure water quality and oppose contamination of water

resources. This resolution addresses the critical need for the federal and state governments to

recommit to work bi-nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water

quality and contamination issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and

trash-laden transboundary flows originating from Mexico, that result in significant heath,

environmental and safety concerns in communities along California’s southern border impacting the

state.

As members of the League, our city values the policy development process provided to the General

Assembly. We appreciate your time on this issue.

44100 of 200



Viva Calexico!

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at

760/768-2110.

Sincerely,

CITY OF CALEXICO

David Dale
City Manager

Cc: Honorable Mayor Bill Hodge

45101 of 200



46102 of 200



August 15, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President 
League of California Cities 
1400 K St. Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River 
Pollution Flow Resolution 

President Arbuckle: 

The city of Imperial Beach appreciates and supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to 
submit a resolution for consideration by the full membership of the League of California Cities. 

The Division’s resolution calls on Federal and State government to address the impacts of 
transboundary pollution flows into the Southwestern regions of California. The pollution in these 
areas is an environmental disaster that threatens the health and general welfare of residents near 
the Mexican border in Imperial and San Diego Counties. 

I encourage all voting delegates and elected officials in attendance at the 2019 Annual League of 
California Cities Conference in Long Beach to support this important resolution as it addresses 
the critical need for the federal and state government to recommit to work bi-nationally to 
address the serious contamination issues and to develop and implement long-term solutions. 

I am available for any questions or additional information related to this letter of support. 

Sincerely, 

Andy Hall 
City Manger 

Cc: Honorable Mayor Serge Dedina 
Honorable Mayor Pro Tem Robert Patton 
Honorable Councilmember Paloma Aguirre 
Honorable Councilmember Ed Spriggs 
Honorable Councilmember Mark West 

47103 of 200



August 16, 2019 

Jan Arbuckle, President 
League of California Cities 
1400 K Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: Environmental and Water Quality Impacts Of International Transboundary River Pollution Flow 
Resolution 

President Arbuckle: 

The city of Imperial Beach strongly supports the San Diego County Division’s effort to submit a resolution 
for consideration by the General Assembly at the League’s 2019 Annual Conference in Long Beach. 

The Division’s resolution calls upon the Federal and State governments to restore and ensure proper funding 
of the Border Water Infrastructure Program (BWIP) to address the devastating impacts of international 
transboundary pollution flows into the waterways of the southernmost regions of California (San Diego and 
Imperial Counties) and the Pacific Ocean. 

Local government and the public support the State’s water and environmental quality objectives and League 
policy has long supported efforts to ensure water quality and oppose contamination of water resources. This 
resolution addresses the critical need for the federal and state governments to recommit to work bi-
nationally to develop and implement long-term solutions to address serious water quality and contamination 
issues, such as discharges of untreated sewage and polluted sediment and trash-laden transboundary flows 
originating from Mexico, that result in significant heath, environmental and safety concerns in communities 
along California’s southern border impacting the state. 

As members of the League, our city values the policy development process provided to the General 
Assembly. We appreciate your time on this issue. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please do not hesitate to contact me at 619-423-8303. 

Sincerely, 

Serge Dedina 
Mayor 

48104 of 200



49
105 of 200



50106 of 200



51107 of 200



52108 of 200



53109 of 200



54110 of 200



55111 of 200



56112 of 200



57113 of 200



58114 of 200



   
 

CITY COUNCIL   
REPORT                                                          7E 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                            

                                                             

 
 
 

 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019  

 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT AND ISSUE A 

TASK ORDER FOR CSG FOR STAFF AUGMENTATION FOR AN 
INTERIM PLANNING MANAGER AND BUILDING INSPECTOR IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $151,000 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution to: 

 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract 

with CSG  for a Task Order for staff augmentation in an amount not to exceed 
$151,000; and 
 

2. Authorize the Finance Director to amend the adopted budget to re-allocate 
$110,000 from salaries and benefits to professional services in Fund 212, in 
Budget Units 461 and 462. 

   
BACKGROUND 

 
We have been and expect to continue to experience a lot of activity in the Building and 
Planning divisions of the Development Services Department. To be able to deliver 
service to the development community and home owners, it is necessary for the City to 
continue to augment staff with both a Building Inspector and an Interim Planning 
Manager. 
 
On November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2018-101 approving 
on-call contract services for a number of consulting firms. M-Group, 4Leaf, CSG, and 
Safebuilt are firms on the on call list able to provide these services. The City has most 
recently been utilizing the services of CSG for Building Inspector contract staffing while 
continuing to recruit for the budgeted position. The current recruitment closes on 
September 26th. 
 
The first round of recruiting to fill the Planning Manager vacancy was unsuccessful. 
Avery and Associates is working on a second recruitment to find the City a qualified 
member for our team. We had a Task Order with 4Leaf for an Interim Planning 
Manager. The Task Order with 4Leaf was to provide a Planning Manager for 16 weeks, 

115 of 200



City Council Meeting 7E 
September 17, 2019  2 

 

from late March to mid July. Dan Hortert has fulfilled the contract obligation and is now 
assigned to another city. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
We need to augment our staffing for the Planning Manager position. It is a vital position 
within Development Services. Additionally, the Planning Manager position oversees the 
Code Enforcement Division, which Council has increased funding and performance 
expectations for in the FY 19/20 budget. At this time CSG is able to provide an Interim 
Planning Manager for 3 days a week.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
To provide the funding necessary to cover this task order, $151,000 will need to be 
allocated within the Planning/Building Fund 212. $63,000 will be for the Interim 
Planning Manager 3 days a week through mid December, and $88,000 will be for the 
Building Inspector through the end of December.  
 
It is recommended to re-allocate $110,000 in funds from salaries and benefits to 
professional services, $40,000 in 461, Planning, and $70,000 in 462, Building.  The 
remainder of the required funding is already budgeted in the Professional Services line 
item. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 
A. Resolution  
B. CSG Contract Amendment Task Order 

 

116 of 200



  ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE,  

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ON CALL CONTRACT WITH  

CSG  ISSUING A TASK ORDER FOR INTERIM PLANNING MANAGER AND 
BUILDING INSPECTOR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TO $151,000 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized CSG for many years for a myriad of services 

including construction plan check services, fire plan check, and building inspection 
services;  

 
WHEREAS, in November 13, 2018, the City Council approved several on-call 

contracts which included CSG for a period of four (4) years ending November 13, 2022 
with the understanding that any contract amendments in excess of $45,000 be 
presented to the City Council for approval; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is currently recruiting for a Planning Manager and a Building 
Inspector; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City continues to experience high levels of building activity and 

Code Enforcement service requests from the public; and  
 
WHEREAS, CSG can provide the staff augmentation for the Interim Planning 

Manager, in addition to the building inspection services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the anticipated additional cost for a contract Planning Manager and 

Building Inspector for the remainder of the calendar year is expected to be $151,000; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the anticipated additional cost for a Planning Manager and a 

Building Inspector will be funds currently budgeted for professional services and by 
reallocating budgeted salaries and benefits for the vacant positions to professional 
services. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby take the following actions:  

 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract 

for a task order for CSG to provide an Interim Planning Manager and a 
Building Inspector for an amount not to exceed $151,000; and  
 

2. Authorize the Finance Director to re-allocate $110,000 in funds from salaries 
and benefits to professional services, $40,000 in 461, Planning, and $70,000 
in 462, Building.   

 
 

117 of 200



Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2019-__ 
Page 2 

 

 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 17th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:    

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:     

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 17th day of September 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

118 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

  

AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

CSG 
 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated November 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and CSG (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Exhibit A and B shall read as follows:  
 
Task Order to provide an Interim Planning Manager and Building Inspector in an 
amount not to exceed $151,000.  
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated November 20, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  
 

119 of 200



   

 

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7F 

 
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 9.28 & 9.30 OF THE 

PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE REGULATION OF 
TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND TOBACCO RETAILERS 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council waive the second reading of and adopt an 
ordinance to amend Chapters 9.28 and 9.30 of the Pinole Municipal Code regarding 
the regulation of tobacco products and tobacco retailers.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Pinole Municipal Code contains two chapters related to the regulation of 
tobacco:  Chapter 9.28, “Tobacco and Tobacco Products”, and Chapter 9.30, 
“Tobacco Advertising and Promotion – Tobacco Retailer Licensing”.  Together, 
these two chapters regulate many aspects of the sale and use of tobacco within the 
City.  Among other things, the Municipal Code establishes an extensive list of 
locations where smoking tobacco products is prohibited.  In addition, the Municipal 
Code requires any entity that wishes to sell tobacco products within the City to 
obtain a special license and establishes certain restrictions on the operation of such 
businesses.  For example, the Municipal Code contains limitations on the distribution 
of samples and marketing materials for tobacco products.  
 
On September 3, 2019, the City Council introduced and conducted a first reading of 
an ordinance to amend Chapters 9.28 and 9.30 to update the City’s regulations 
regarding the sale of tobacco products and expand the locations where smoking 
tobacco products is prohibited. The detailed staff report from that meeting is included 
as Attachment A.  
 
DISCUSSION 

The Proposed Ordinance amends the Municipal Code in the following ways:  

1. The Proposed Ordinance would prohibit the sale of any flavored tobacco 
products within the City, except for flavored cigarettes which are already regulated 

120 of 200



City Council Report 7F 
September 17, 2019 

 

by the Food and Drug Administration. This prohibition will not go into effect until after 
January 15, 2020.   

2. The Proposed Ordinance would prohibit the sale of an individual cigar, unless 
the cost of the single cigar is at least five dollars ($5).  The ordinance would also 
prohibit the sale of a package of five cigars for less than ten dollars ($10).  

3. The Proposed Ordinance will expand the list of places where smoking 
tobacco products is prohibited to include within all multi-family residential units and 
balconies. Consuming cannabis is automatically prohibited anywhere smoking 
tobacco products is prohibited.  

4. The Proposed Ordinance updates relevant definitions to fully capture the 
growing use of vaping technology for tobacco products.  To eliminate any ambiguity 
in existing definitions, the definition of “smoke” is being amended to explicitly include 
vapors from electronic cigarettes.  

5. The Proposed Ordinance amends the Municipal Code to remove provisions 
that have been preempted by State or Federal law since Chapters 9.28 and 9.30 
were originally adopted.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no direct fiscal impact to this Ordinance.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – September 3 Staff Report 
Attachment B – Ordinance   
 
 

121 of 200



 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 8A

DATE: SEPTEMBER 3, 2019 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 

COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 9.28 & 9.30 OF THE 
PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE REGULATION OF 
TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND TOBACCO RETAILERS 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council introduce and waive the first reading of an 
ordinance to amend Chapters 9.28 and 9.30 of the Pinole Municipal Code regarding 
the regulation of tobacco products and tobacco retailers.  

BACKGROUND 

The Pinole Municipal Code contains two chapters related to the regulation of 
tobacco:  Chapter 9.28, “Tobacco and Tobacco Products”, and Chapter 9.30, 
“Tobacco Advertising and Promotion – Tobacco Retailer Licensing”.  Together, 
these two chapters regulate many aspects of the sale and use of tobacco within the 
City.  Among other things, the Municipal Code establishes an extensive list of 
locations where smoking tobacco products is prohibited, including places of 
employment, enclosed places open to the public, and all City facilities, including 
parks.  In addition, the Municipal Code requires any entity that wishes to sell tobacco 
products within the City to obtain a special license and establishes certain 
restrictions on the operation of such businesses.  For example, the Municipal Code 
contains limitations on the distribution of samples and marketing materials for 
tobacco products.  

In addition to the Municipal Code, restrictions and regulations on tobacco and 
electronic cigarette retailing exist under state and federal law.  These state and 
federal law restrictions also apply locally in Pinole, but they also provide local 
jurisdictions with authority to enact retail licensing ordinances and other regulations 
that are more restrictive than what currently exists under state and federal law.   

Despite local, state and federal regulations, studies show that underage individuals 
are still able to gain access to tobacco and electronic cigarette products. 
Additionally, while regulations exist regarding the flavor and package size of 
cigarettes, similar regulations do not exist regarding the flavor and package size of 
electronic cigarettes and cigars.   

ATTACHMENT A

122 of 200



City Council Report 8A 
September 3, 2019 

Chapter 9.28 was adopted in 1994 and Chapter 9.30 was adopted in 1999.  Both 
chapters have only been minimally amended since initial enactment.  The tobacco 
industry has evolved significantly since the 1990s, as have public norms regarding 
tobacco use and smoking.  As part of the Municipal Code update for 2019, the City 
Council provided direction to the City Attorney’s Office to update the City’s tobacco 
ordinances.  The City Attorney’s office received further direction from the Municipal 
Code Update Subcommittee at a meeting on June 17, 2019.  The City Attorney’s 
Office presented a draft ordinance to the Subcommittee on July 15, 2019, and 
received additional input and feedback on the draft, which has been incorporated 
into the attached Proposed Ordinance. 

DISCUSSION 

The Proposed Ordinance amends the Municipal Code in a number of ways, each of 
which is described herein.  First, the Proposed Ordinance updates relevant 
definitions to fully capture the growing use of vaping technology for tobacco 
products.  Although the Municipal Code currently references e-cigarettes, “smoke” is 
defined as gases and particulates released into the air as a result of combustion.  
Significantly, e-cigarettes often use vaporization technology that does not 
necessarily qualify as combustion.  To eliminate any ambiguity, the definition of 
“smoke” is being amended to explicitly include vapors from electronic cigarettes.  

Second, the Proposed Ordinance will expand the list of places where smoking 
tobacco products is prohibited to include within multi-family residential units and 
balconies.  Currently, the Municipal Code prohibits smoking tobacco products within 
enclosed common areas in multi-family residential buildings and most unenclosed 
common areas.  However, most multi-family residential buildings have shared 
ventilation systems, so smoke and the related carcinogens generated in one unit can 
sometimes travel to other units.  This can expose other residents to harmful odors 
and smoke, and creates a nuisance.  For this reason, numerous jurisdictions in 
California, including Contra Costa County, prohibit smoking within multi-family 
residential units.  Since 1994, smoking has been prohibited within all newly 
constructed multi-family residential units in Pinole.  The Proposed Ordinance would 
apply this prohibition to multi-family residential units constructed before 1994. 
Relatedly, under California law, it is illegal to smoke cannabis products anywhere 
smoking tobacco products is prohibited.  

Third, the Proposed Ordinance implements two new restrictions regarding the sale 
of tobacco products aimed at decreasing youth use of tobacco products.  Currently, 
many e-cigarette companies produce a variety of flavored products, such as 
watermelon, cotton candy, and apple.  These products are believed to be specifically 
targeted and marketed toward minors.  While there are already laws and regulations 
regarding the flavoring of traditional cigarettes, no similar law exists for e-cigarettes.  
The proposed law would prohibit the sale of any flavored tobacco products within the 
City, except for flavored cigarettes which are already regulated by the Food and 
Drug Administration.  Similarly, while there are restrictions on the sale of individual 

123 of 200



City Council Report 8A 
September 3, 2019 

 

cigarettes, there is no similar law for cigars.  Selling individual cigars allows a retailer 
to charge a minimal amount, which makes the cigar more affordable for a minor to 
purchase.  The Proposed Ordinance would generally prohibit the sale of an 
individual cigar, as well as the sale of a package of five cigars for less than ten 
dollars ($10). The Proposed Ordinance allows the sale of individual cigars only if the 
cost of the single cigar is at least five dollars ($5).  This exception allows for the sale 
of higher quality and more expensive cigars individually, since those cigars are not 
usually marketed toward, or consumed by, minors.  

Fourth, the Proposed Ordinance amends the Municipal Code to remove provisions 
that are no longer necessary.  Chapter 9.28 was first adopted in 1994 and Chapter 
9.30 was adopted in 1999.  Since that time, laws regarding smoking have changed 
significantly, and parts of those chapters are now preempted by state and/or federal 
law.  For example, Chapter 9.28 currently contains provisions regarding a process 
for businesses to apply for an exemption from the Municipal Code’s prohibition on 
smoking within restaurants.  However, California law now prohibits smoking in all 
restaurants, so the exemption process is unnecessary.  

The changes implemented by the Proposed Ordinance are similar to the regulations 
that have been adopted by many other jurisdictions in the Bay Area.  For reference, 
each element of the Proposed Ordinance has previously been adopted by Contra 
Costa County and is applicable to unincorporated areas within the County.  

In addition to the City’s standard noticing for proposed ordinances, notice that the 
City Council would be considering the Proposed Ordinance at the September 3 
meeting was sent to businesses that sell tobacco products within the City.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no direct fiscal impact to this Ordinance.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A – Ordinance   
 
 
 

124 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  

AMENDING CHAPTERS 9.28 AND 9.30 OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE 

REGARDING THE REGULATION OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND TOBACCO 

RETAILERS 

WHEREAS, the United States Surgeon General has concluded that secondhand smoke 

exposure can cause serious health problems, especially in children; and 

WHEREAS, even occasional exposure to secondhand smoke is harmful, and low levels 

of exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke can lead to increased health risks; and 

WHEREAS, electronic cigarettes produce an aerosol or vapor of undetermined and 

potentially harmful substances, which may appear similar to the smoke emitted by 

traditional tobacco products; and 

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization (WHO) recommends that electronic 

smoking devices not be used indoors, especially in smoke free environments, in order to 

minimize the risk to bystanders of breathing in the aerosol emitted by the devices and to avoid 

undermining the enforcement of smoke free laws; and 

WHEREAS, the smoking of tobacco and the use of electronic cigarettes are forms of air 

pollution and are a danger to public health as well as a material public nuisance; and 

WHEREAS, the California Legislature has recognized the danger of tobacco use and has 

made reducing youth access to tobacco products a high priority; and 

WHEREAS, despite local, state, and federal efforts to limit youth access to tobacco, 

minors are still able to access tobacco products; and 

WHEREAS, the federal Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act, enacted 

in 2009, prohibited candy and fruit-flavored cigarettes, largely because these flavored products 

were marketed to youth and young adults, and younger smokers were more likely to have tried 

these products than older smokers; and  

WHEREAS, although the manufacture and distribution of flavored cigarettes (excluding 

menthol) is banned by federal law, neither federal nor California laws restrict sales of flavored 

non-cigarette tobacco products, such as cigars, cigarillos, smokeless tobacco, hookah tobacco, 

and electronic smoking devices and the nicotine solutions used in these devices; and 

WHEREAS, flavored non-cigarette tobacco products have become increasingly common 

and are available in a variety of flavors that appeal to children and young adults, including apple, 

cherry, chocolate, grape, peach, strawberry, and vanilla; and 

125 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

2 

WHEREAS, the U.S. Surgeon General has stated that flavored tobacco products are 

considered to be “starter” products that help establish smoking habits that can lead to long-term 

addiction; and  

WHEREAS, electronic cigarette companies have targeted minors with fruit-flavored 

products, and it is unknown if e-cigarettes may lead minors to try other tobacco products; and 

WHEREAS, the California Constitution, Article XI, Section 7, provides cities and 

counties with the authority to enact ordinances to protect the health, safety, welfare, and morals 

of their citizens; and 

WHEREAS, California state law prohibits the sale or distribution of free or nominal-cost 

cigarettes or smokeless tobacco products (or coupons, coupon offers, or rebate offers for such 

products) on public grounds or on private grounds that are open to the public; and 

WHEREAS, California state law specifically allows adoption of a local ordinance 

related to the distribution of free or nominal-cost tobacco products that is “more restrictive” and 

provides that a stricter local ordinance shall govern in the case of any inconsistency between the 

local ordinance and state law; and 

WHEREAS, the FDA and federal law also expressly grants state and local governments 

the right to enact measures that are more restrictive than those in the federal law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has a substantial interest in promoting compliance with 

federal, state, and local laws prohibiting the sale or furnishing of tobacco products and electronic 

cigarette products to minors; in discouraging the illegal purchase of tobacco and electronic 

cigarette products by minors; in promoting compliance with laws prohibiting sales of cigarettes 

and tobacco products to minors; and in protecting children from being lured into illegal activity 

through adult misconduct; and 

WHEREAS, since Chapter 9.28 and Chapter 9.30 were substantially adopted in 1994, 

stricter state and federal laws have been enacted preempting portions of those chapters; and  

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council, in enacting this ordinance, to ensure 

compliance with the business standards and practices of the City of Pinole and to encourage 

responsible tobacco retailing and to discourage violations of tobacco-related laws, especially 

those which prohibit or discourage the sale or distribution of tobacco and nicotine products to 

minors, but not to expand or reduce the degree to which the acts regulated by federal or state law 

are criminally proscribed or to alter the penalties provided therein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  

The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 

126 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

3 

Section 2. Approval of Amendment. 

 

The City Council hereby approves the amendments to Chapter 9.28 and 9.30 of the Pinole 

Municipal Code, as shown in attached Exhibit A, which is incorporated herein by reference 

(deletions in strikethrough; additions in underline).  

 

Section 3. Severability. 

 

If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is 

held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 

to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force 

and effect.  To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council of the City 

of Pinole hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 

paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held 

unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable. 

 

Section 4. California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 

 

The proposed amendments are exempt from CEQA based on the rule set forth in CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 

causing a significant effect on the environment.  As a series of text amendments and additions, it 

can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed amendments to the 

Municipal Code will have a significant effect on the environment. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date. 

 

In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall take effect 

and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 

 

Section 6. Publication. 

 

Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause this 

Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three public places in 

the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 

36933. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

127 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

4 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this ___ day of September, 2019, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Peter Murray, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Heather Iopu, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 

Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 

3337520.2 

128 of 200



Exhibit A 
(deletions in strikethrough; additions in underline).  

 
Chapter 9.28 

TOBACCO AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS 

 

Sections: 

  9.28.010   Findings. 

  9.28.020   Purpose. 

  9.28.030   Definitions. 

  9.28.040    Regulation of smoking within reasonable distance - 20 feet. 

  9.28.050   Prohibition of smoking in unenclosed areas. 

  9.28.060   Prohibition of smoking in enclosed places.  

  9.28.070   Regulation of smoking in places of employment. 

  9.28.080   Optional smoking areas; exemptions. 

  9.28.090   Procedures and conditions for granting exemptions for restaurants. 

  9.28.100   Posting requirements. 

  9.28.110   Distribution of free samples and coupons. 

  9.28.120   Out of package sales. 

  9.28.130   Enforcement. 

  9.28.140   Penalties. 

  9.28.150   Nonretaliation. 

  9.28.160   Other applicable laws. 

 

9.28.010   FINDINGS.  

 

The City Council finds that: 

   A.   The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has determined that tobacco smoke is the 

major contributor of particulate indoor air pollution; and 

   B.   Reliable studies have shown that breathing sidestream or secondhand smoke is a 

significant health hazard, in particular for elder people, individuals with cardiovascular disease, 

and individuals with impaired respiratory function; including asthmatics and those with 

obstructive airway disease; and 

   C.   Health hazards induced by breathing sidestream or secondhand smoke include heart 

disease, lung cancer, respiratory infection, decreased exercise tolerance, decreased respiratory 

function, bronchoconstriction, and bronchospasm; and 

   D.   Nonsmokers with allergies, respiratory diseases and those who suffer other ill effects of 

breathing sidestream or secondhand smoke may experience a loss of job productivity or may be 

forced to take periodic sick leave because of adverse reactions to same; and 

   E.   The smoking of tobacco is a danger to health; and 

   F.   The health care costs and lost productivity incurred by smoking related disease and death 

represent a heavy and avoidable financial drain on our community by increasing public health 

and medical costs;  

   G.   Exposure to secondhand smoke anywhere has negative health impacts, exposure to 

secondhand smoke does occur at significant levels outdoors, and to be completely free from 

129 of 200



exposure to secondhand smoke a person may need to move up to 20 feet away from the source of 

the smoke; and 

   H.    1.   The free distribution of cigarettes and other tobacco products encourages people to 

begin smoking and using tobacco products and tempts those who had quit smoking to begin 

smoking again, and 

       2.   Free distribution of cigarettes and other tobacco products promotes unsightly litter, 

thereby increasing the costs to the public in cleaning the streets; and also causes pedestrian 

traffic congestion.  

 

9.28.020   PURPOSE. 

   The compelling purpose and intent of this chapter includes, but is not limited to, generally 

promoting the health, safety, and welfare of all people in the community against the health 

hazards and harmful effects of the use of addictive tobacco products and the dangers of 

secondhand smoke.  

 

9.28.030   DEFINITIONS.   

   The following words and phrases, whenever used in this chapter, shall be construed as 

hereafter set out, unless it is apparent that they have a different meaning: 

   A.   BUSINESS.  Any sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, association, 

or other entity formed for profit-making or non-profit making purposes.  

   B.   DINING AREA.  Any Unenclosed Area, including streets and sidewalks, which is 

available to or customarily used by the general public or an employee, and which is designed, 

established, or regularly used for consuming food or beverages.  

   C.   DISTRIBUTE.  To give, sell, deliver, dispense, issue, or cause or hire any person to give, 

sell, deliver, dispense, issue or offer to give, sell, deliver, dispense or issue. 

   D.   EMPLOYEE.  Any person who is employed or retained as an independent contractor by 

any  Employer in consideration for direct or indirect monetary wages or profit or any person who 

volunteers his or her services for an Employer. 

   E.   EMPLOYER.   Any person, partnership, corporation, nonprofit entity, including municipal 

corporation or public entities, who employs the services of two or more persons or two (2) or 

more people conduct business within the establishment. 

   F.   ENCLOSED.   An area in which outside air cannot circulate freely to all parts of the area, 

an area that is closed in by a roof and walls with appropriate openings for ingress and egress. 

   G.   GENERAL PUBLIC.   Shoppers, customers, patrons, patients, students, clients and other 

similar invitees of a commercial enterprise or nonprofit entity. 

   H.   MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE. A property containing two (2) or more Units, including but 

not limited to apartments, condominiums, senior citizen housing, nursing homes, and single 

room occupancy hotels. The following types of housing are specifically excluded: 

      1.   Hotel or motel that meets requirements of California Civil Code Section 1940(b)(2); 

      2.   Mobile home park; 

      3.   Campground; 

      4.   Marina or port; 

      5.   Single-family home; and 

      6.   Single-family home with a detached or attached in-law or second Unit when permitted 

pursuant to California Government Code Sections 65852.1, 65852.150, 65852.1 or an ordinance 

adopted by the City pursuant to those sections.         

130 of 200



   I.   MULTI-UNIT RESIDENCE COMMON AREA. Areas of a Multi-Unit Residence that 

residents of more than one Unit of that Multi-Unit Residence are entitled to enter or use, 

including, for example, halls and paths, lobbies and courtyards, elevators and stairs, community 

rooms and playgrounds, gym facilities and swimming pools, parking garages and parking lots, 

shared restrooms, shared laundry rooms, shared cooking areas, and shared eating areas.  

   J.   PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT.  Any Enclosed area under the control of a Employer which 

Employees normally frequent during the course of employment, including but not limited to, 

work areas, employee lounges, conference rooms, and employee cafeterias.  A private residence 

is not a Place of Employment unless it is used as a child care or health care facility. 

   K.   PUBLIC AREA. Any place, publicly or privately owned, which is open to the general 

public regardless of any fee or age requirement.  

   L.   SERVICE AREA.  Any publicly or privately owned area, including streets and sidewalks, 

that is designed to be used or is regularly used by one or more persons to receive a service, wait 

to receive a service or to make a transaction, whether or not such service or transaction includes 

the exchange of money.  The term "Service Area" includes but is not limited to information 

kiosks, automatic teller machines (ATMs), ticket lines, bus stops or shelters, mobile vendor lines 

or cab stands. 

   M.   SMOKE. The gases and particulates or vapors released into the air as a result of 

combustion, electrical ignition or vaporization, when the apparent or usual purpose of the 

combustion, electrical ignition or vaporization is human inhalation of Tobacco Products. 

The term “smoke” includes, but is not limited to, tobacco smoke and electronic cigarette vapors. 

The term “smoke” also includes vapor generated through the use of an electronic cigarette in any 

manner or in any form. 

   N.   SMOKING.  The engaging in an act that generates Smoke, such as, for example: carrying, 

possessing or holding of a lighted pipe, cigar, or cigarette of any kind, or any other lighted 

smoking equipment or the lighting or emitting or exhaling the smoke of a pipe, cigar, or cigarette 

of any kind. 

   O.   TOBACCO PRODUCTS. Any substance containing tobacco leaf, in any product 

formulation of matter or formulation of matter containing biologically active amounts of nicotine 

that is manufactured, sold, offered for sale, or otherwise distributed with the expectation that the 

product or matter will be introduced into the human body, but does not include any cessation 

product specifically approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration for use in 

treating nicotine or tobacco dependence. This includes electronic cigarettes or e-cigarettes. 

   P.   UNENCLOSED. Any area that is not an Enclosed area. 

   Q.   UNIT.  A personal dwelling space, even where lacking cooking facilities or private 

plumbing facilities, and includes any associated exclusive-use Enclosed area or Unenclosed area, 

such as, for example, a private balcony, porch, deck, or patio. "Unit" includes but is not limited 

to an apartment; a condominium; a townhouse; a room in a long-term health care facility, 

assisted living facility, or hospital; a hotel or motel room; a room in a single room occupancy 

("SRO") facility; a room in a homeless shelter; a mobile home; a camper vehicle or tent; a single-

family home; and an in-law or second unit. 

 

9.28.040   REGULATION OF SMOKING WITHIN REASONABLE DISTANCE - 20 

FEET.   

   Smoking shall be prohibited within twenty (20) feet from any doorway, window, opening, 

crack, or vent into any Multi-Unit Residence or any Enclosed area in which Smoking is 

131 of 200



prohibited, except while actively passing on the way to another destination and provided Smoke 

does not enter any Multi-Unit Residence or any Enclosed area in which Smoking is prohibited.  

 

9.28.050   PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN UNENCLOSED AREAS. 

   A.   Smoking is prohibited in the Unenclosed areas of the following places within the City, 

except places where Smoking is already prohibited by state or federal law, in which case those 

laws apply: 

      1.   City property, whether owned, leased or operated by the City, including parking lots, 

public parks, trails, open spaces, nature areas or park facilities;   

      2.   Public events on public property, including open-air markets, parades, festivals, and other 

events open to the public.  No person may Smoke during an outside public event that occurs on 

property on which the City is owner, lessee, or otherwise holds a property interest; 

      3.   Service Areas; 

      4.   Outdoor Dining Areas; 

      5.   Outdoor, Unenclosed Multi-Unit Residence Common Areas, except for those exempt 

pursuant to Section 9.28.080.  

 

9.28.060   PROHIBITION OF SMOKING IN ENCLOSED PLACES.   

   Smoking is prohibited in the following Enclosed places within the City except such places in 

which Smoking is already prohibited by state or federal law in which case those laws apply: 

   A.   City facilities. Smoking is prohibited in all buildings, vehicles, parking lots, or other 

Enclosed areas occupied by City Employees, owned or leased by the City, or otherwise operated 

by the City;   

   B.   Enclosed public spaces. All Enclosed areas available to and customarily used by the 

general public and all businesses patronized by the public, including, but not limited to, retail 

stores, the common areas of hotels and motels, pharmacies, banks, shopping malls, indoor 

service areas, theaters, bowling alleys, public schools, health facilities and other offices; 

   C.   All restaurants and bars. The owner, manager or operator of the restaurant or bar shall post 

signs as prescribed by Section 9.28.100(A) and remove all ashtrays from tables; 

   D.   Private residences when used as child care or health care facilities shall be smokefree at all 

times. Board and care facilities shall provide smokefree living quarters for nonsmoking boarders; 

   E.    Enclosed Multi-Unit Residence Common Areas, unless that area is exempt in accordance 

with Section 9.28.080;  

   F.    Effective as of the date of this Chapter, smoking is prohibited in Any and all newly-

constructed All Multi-Unit Residences such that 100% of the Units and private outdoor spaces 

such as balconies, patios and decks shall be smoke-free, except for certain designated outdoor 

areas as provided in Section 9.28.080.   

   Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, any owner, operator, manager or other 

person who controls any establishment described in this section may declare that entire 

establishment as a nonsmoking establishment.  

 

9.28.070   REGULATION OF SMOKING IN PLACES OF EMPLOYMENT.  

   A.   Smoking is prohibited in any Place of Employment, including, but not limited to, open 

office areas, shared offices and private offices occupied by  Employees performing clerical, 

technical, administrative or other business or work functions; and, conference and meeting 

rooms, classrooms, auditoriums, restrooms, medical facilities, hallways, and elevators, except 

132 of 200



such places in which Smoking is already prohibited by state or federal law in which case those 

laws apply. 

   B.   Smoking is prohibited in any outdoor lounge area at Places of Employment, unless that 

area is exempt pursuant to Section 9.28.080. 

   C.   The provisions of this section shall be communicated to all  Employees within three (3) 

weeks of its adoption, and at least annually thereafter.  

 

9.28.080   OPTIONAL SMOKING AREAS; EXEMPTIONS.   

   Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter to the contrary, the following areas shall 

not be subject to the smoking restrictions of this chapter except such places in which Smoking is 

prohibited by state or federal law in which case those laws apply: 

   A.   A private residence, including one which may serve as a Place of Employment, except 

when covered by Section 9.28.060(D) and excluding Multi-Unit Residences; 

   B.   Hotel and motel rooms rented to guests; provided, however, that each hotel and motel 

designates not less than fifty percent (50%) of their guest rooms as nonsmoking rooms and 

removes ashtrays from these rooms; 

   C.   Outdoor, Unenclosed Multi-Unit Residence Common Areas.  A  person with legal control 

over such Multi-Unit Residence may designate a portion of that area for Smoking if the area 

meets the following criteria: 

      1.   The designated area does not overlap with any area where Smoking is otherwise 

prohibited by local, state, or federal law; 

      2.   The designated area must be located at least twenty-five (25) feet in all directions from 

areas where Smoking is prohibited; 

      3.   The designated area must not be used primarily by children; 

      4.   The designated area must be no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total outdoor, 

Unenclosed Multi-Unit Residence Common Area; 

      5.   The designated area must have a clearly marked perimeter; 

      6.   The designated area must be identified by conspicuous signs, pursuant to Section 

9.28.100.   

      7.   The designated area must be located at least twenty-five (25) feet in all directions from 

the lot line of any private residence. 

   D.   In Places of employment, Employers may provide specific Enclosed smoking areas 

for  Employees provided all of the following conditions are met: 

      1.   The smoking area shall be provided with a heatinghearing, ventilating and air 

conditioning (HVAC) system designed so that none of the air from the smoking area will be 

recirculated into the other areas of the building. 

      2.   The smoking area shall be completely separated from the remainder of the building by 

solid partitions or glazing without openings other than doors, and all doors leading to the 

smoking area shall be self-closing. The doors shall be provided with a gasket so installed as to 

provide a seal where the door meets the stop on both sides and across the top. 

      3.   The smoking areas shall maintain a minimum native pressure of 0.005-inch water column 

relative to nonsmoking areas. 

      4.   The Employer shall submit written verification and test results to the City Manager or 

his/her designees prepared by a licensed mechanical contractor or engineer that the HVAC 

system has been designed and tested and meets the requirements set forth in subsections (G)(D) 

(1) through (3) above. 

133 of 200



      5.   If the HVAC system is part of a smoke removal system or pressurization system, any 

modifications to these systems to provide smoking areas will require approval from the Pinole 

fire department. Written verification of this approval shall be provided to the city manager. 

      6.   If the specific smoking area is an employee break room, lunch room or other area which 

may be used by nonsmoking employees, then a separate nonsmoking break room, lunch room or 

other area shall be provided of equal or larger size and include at least equal facilities.  

   E.   In outdoor, Unenclosed Areas of Places of Employment, the Employer may designate a 

portion of such area for Smoking if the area meets the following criteria: 

      1.   The designated area does not overlap with any area where Smoking is otherwise 

prohibited by local, state, or federal law; 

      2.   The designated area must be located at least twenty-five (25) feet in all directions from 

areas where Smoking is prohibited; 

      3.   The designated area must not be used primarily by children; 

      4.   The designated area must be no more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the total outdoor, 

Unenclosed common area; 

      5.   The designated area must have a clearly marked perimeter; 

      6.   The designated area must be identified by conspicuous signs, pursuant to Section 

9.28.100.   

 

9.28.090   PROCEDURES AND CONDITIONS FOR GRANTING EXEMPTIONS 

FOR RESTAURANTS.  

   A.   Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter to the contrary, any owner or manager 

of a restaurant subject to this chapter may apply to the city manager for an exemption from or 

modification to the provisions of this chapter prohibiting smoking within restaurants. The 

application must be in writing and shall to based upon demonstrated significant financial 

hardship resulting from the application of the provisions of this chapter to the particular 

restaurant. For the purposes of this section, the city manager may delegate to another city 

employee the authority to receive, review and act upon applications. When used in this section 

the term “city manager” also refers to any employee to whom the manager has delegated 

authority as provided herein. 

   B.   The exemption or modification shall be limited to the establishment of a smoking section 

by designating for use by smoking patrons of a certain percentage of the seats in that part of the 

restaurant that is otherwise subject to the prohibition against smoking. For the 1994 calendar 

year, the maximum extent of the exemption or modification which may be granted pursuant to 

this section shall be the designation of not more than 20 percent of the seats otherwise subject to 

the prohibitions of this chapter. For the 1995 calendar year, the maximum extent of the 

exemption or modification which may be granted pursuant to this section shall be the designation 

of not more than ten percent of the seats otherwise subject to the prohibitions of this chapter. All 

seats subject to the exemption shall be located in a single smoking section. 

   C.   An exemption may be granted only if the city manager, or the city council on appeal, finds 

based upon substantial evidence that compliance with the provisions of this chapter without the 

exemption has clearly created a significant financial hardship for the restaurant. 

   D.   An exemption may be granted only after a hearing, fifteen days notice of which shall be 

given by posting in at least two public locations in the restaurant and in a place open to the 

public at city hall a notice of the proposed application and the hearing thereon. All interested 

persons may attend the hearing and shall be permitted to make oral or written presentations. The 

134 of 200



city manager shall announce this or her decision in writing. The decision shall be delivered by 

first-class mail to the applicant and posted for ten days commencing on the date of mailing in a 

place open to the public at the council chambers. The decision of the city manager shall become 

final unless appealed to the city council within ten days following the date of posting. 

   E.   Within ten days of the date of posting the decision of the city manager may be appealed by 

the applicant, any member of the city council, or any person who appeared and presented 

evidence at the hearing. An appeal shall be made in writing filed with the city clerk. 

   F.   Exemptions granted pursuant to this section shall be valid until the end of the calendar 

year. An exemption may be renewed upon an application submitted and processed in the same 

manner as an original application. The city manager may revoke the grant of an exemption at any 

time, upon ten days notice to the applicant, if the city manager determines that the exemption 

was granted based upon misinformation. 

   G.   The applicant for exemption, or an appellant (other than the applicant or a member of the 

city council) shall pay an application or appeal fee in an amount established by city council 

resolution at the time of submission of the application or appeal. 

   H.   The application for the exemption shall contain a diagram of the restaurant showing the 

location-of the proposed “smoking section”, current and historic sales tax or gross receipts 

information, employment records, profit and loss statements, invoices, contracts and other 

information which the city manager by written regulation may require. 

   I.   This section shall become null and void on the earlier of December 31, 1995, or when the 

two cities that border Pinole adopt an ordinance which in the opinion of the city attorney 

contains a ban on smoking in restaurants greater than, or equal to, the ban established elsewhere 

in this chapter. The opinion of the city attorney shall be communicated to the city manager in 

writing; any exemptions granted under this section shall become null and void on the same date.  

 

9.28.100   POSTING REQUIREMENTS.  

   A.   “Smoking” or “No Smoking” signs, whichever are appropriate, with letters of not less than 

one inch in height or the international “No Smoking” symbol (consisting of a pictorial 

representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it) shall be 

clearly, sufficiently and conspicuously posted in every building at each point of ingress and 

egress and at least one other conspicuous place within the buildings, or other place where 

smoking is controlled by this chapter, by the owner, operator, manager or other person having 

control of such building or other place. 

   B.   Every hotel or motel regulated by this chapter will have posted at its entrance a sign clearly 

stating that nonsmoking rooms are available, and every patron shall be asked as to his or her 

preference.  

   C.    Notwithstanding this section, the presence or absence of signs shall not be a defense to a 

charge of Smoking in violation of any provision of this Chapter.   

 

9.28.110   DISTRIBUTION OF FREE SAMPLES AND COUPONS. 

   A.   No person, firm, association or corporation in the business of selling or otherwise 

distributing cigarettes or other tobacco or smoking products for commercial purposes shall in the 

course of such business distribute, or direct, authorize, or permit any agent or employee to 

distribute: (1) any cigarette or other tobacco or smoking product, including any smokeless 

tobacco product; or (2) coupons, certificates, or other written material which may be redeemed 

135 of 200



for tobacco products without charge, to any person on any public street or sidewalk or in any 

public park or playground or on any other public ground or in any public building. 

   B.   No agent or employee of any person, firm, association or corporation in the business of 

selling or otherwise distributing cigarettes or other tobacco or smoking products for commercial 

purposes shall in the course of such business distribute: (1) any cigarette or products; or (2) 

coupons, certificates, or other written material which may be redeemed for tobacco products 

without charge, to any person on any public street or sidewalk or in any public park or 

playground or on any other public ground or in any public building. 

   C.   For purposes of this section, “public ground” and “public building” include sports arenas 

as defined in Section 9.28.030 (J) and any entertainment facility whether enclosed or not, except 

a bar, for which a charge is made for admission, whether publicly or privately owned.  

 

9.28.120   OUT OF PACKAGE SALES.  

   No person shall sell or offer for sale cigarettes or smokeless tobacco not in the original 

packaging provided by the manufacturer.  

 

9.28.130   ENFORCEMENT.  

   A.   Administration of this chapter shall be by the City Manager or his/her designees. 

   B.   Any person who desires to register a complaint hereunder may initiate enforcement 

consideration with the City Manager or his/her designees. 

   C.   No person, owner, manager, operator or Employer of any establishment controlled by this 

chapter shall knowingly permit Smoking in an area which is under the legal or defacto control of 

that person, owner, manager, operator or Employer and in which Smoking is prohibited by law, 

unless otherwise required by state or federal law.   

 

9.28.140   VIOLATION – PENALTIES. 
   A.   It is unlawful for any person who owns, manages, operates or otherwise controls the use of 

any premises subject to the restrictions of this section to fail to properly post signs required 

hereunder. 

   B.   It is unlawful for any person to  Smoke in any area restricted by the provisions of this 

chapter. 

   C.   Any person or  Business who violates subsection (A) or (B) of this section, or any other 

provision of this chapter, shall be guilty of an infraction, punishable by: 

      1.   A fine, not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for the first violation; 

      2.   A fine, not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation of this chapter 

within one (1) year; 

      3.   A fine, not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500), for each additional violation of this 

chapter within one (1) year.  

   D.   Each instance of Smoking in violation of this Chapter shall constitute a separate violation.   

   E.   The remedies provided in this Chapter are cumulative and in addition to any other 

remedies available at law or in equity.  

 

9.28.150   NONRETALIATION.  

  No person or Employer shall discharge, refuse to hire, or in any manner-retaliate against any 

Employee or applicant for employment because such Employee or applicant exercises any rights 

afforded by this chapter.  

136 of 200



 

9.28.160   OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS.  
   This chapter shall not be interpreted or construed to permit smoking where it is otherwise 

restricted by other applicable laws.  

 

 

Chapter 9.30 

TOBACCO ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION – TOBACCO RETAILER 

LICENSING AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

  9.30.010   Definitions. 

  9.30.020   Restriction on advertising tobacco products. 

  9.30.030   Exceptions. 

  9.30.040   Distribution of promotional items to minors. 

  9.30.050    Self-service displays. 

  9.30.060    Vendor assistance. 

  9.30.070    Administration and implementation. 

  9.30.080    Violations. 

  9.30.090    Intent as to additional legal restrictions and remedies. 

  9.30.100    Tobacco retailer license. 

  9.30.110   Retailer license application procedure. 

  9.30.120   Issuance and display of license. 

  9.30.130   Fees. 

  9.30.140   License not transferrable. 

  9.30.150   Suspension of license. 

  9.30.160   Administrative fine. 

  9.30.170   Disclaimers. 

 

9.30.010   DEFINITIONS.  

   The following words and phrases, whenever used in this chapter, shall be construed as 

hereafter set out, unless it is apparent that they have a different meaning: 

   A.   ADVERTISING DISPLAY SIGN.   A sign, billboard, poster, freestanding sign, balloon, 

pennant or banner that is temporarily or permanently placed on or affixed to the ground, the 

sidewalk, a pole or post, a fence, or a building, or is displayed in the windows or doors of a 

commercial establishment, and that is used to advertise or promote products. 

   B.   CITY MANAGER.   The City Manager for the city of Pinole or his or her designee. 

   C.   MOBILE BILLBOARD.   Any sign, placard, billboard, or other advertisement display 

upon or affixed to a vehicle which display is used to advertise a product illegal to sell to minors, 

when the supporting vehicle or trailer is parked within a public right of way or on private 

property and visible to the public for a duration of time and in a manner which clearly indicates 

that the sign is for advertising products illegal to sell to minors or which carry a specific brand 

name, logo, indicia of a product illegal to sell to minors. For the purpose of this chapter, a mobile 

billboard shall not include any advertisements on the side of a van, truck or other vehicle which 

is primarily used for the transportation of goods or products. 

137 of 200



   D.   PERSON.   Any individual, firm, partnership, cooperative association, private corporation, 

personal representative, receiver, trustee, assignee or other legal entity. 

   E.   PROMOTE OR PROMOTION.  A display of any logo, brand name, character, graphics, 

colors, designs, or recognizable color or pattern of colors, or any other indicia or product 

identification with, or similar to, or identifiable with, those used for any particular brand of 

tobacco product. 

   F.   PUBLICLY VISIBLE LOCATION.   Any outdoor location that is visible from any street, 

sidewalk, or other public thoroughfare, or any location inside a commercial establishment 

immediately adjacent to a window or door where such location is visible from any street, 

sidewalk, or other public thoroughfare. 

   G.   TOBACCO PRODUCTS.   Any substance containing tobacco, including e-cigarettes. 

   H.   TOBACCO RETAILER.  Any person who sells, offers for sale, or exchanges or offers to 

exchange for any form of consideration, tobacco, tobacco products or tobacco paraphernalia. 

“Tobacco retailing.  the doing of any of these things.  

 

9.30.020   RESTRICTION ON ADVERTISING TOBACCO PRODUCTS.  

   No person shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or maintained, in any manner, any 

advertising or promotion of cigarettes or tobacco products on an advertising display sign in a 

publicly visible location within one thousand six hundred feet of the perimeter of an elementary 

or secondary school, public playground or playground area in a public park (e.g., a public park 

with equipment such as swings and seesaws, baseball diamonds or basketball courts).  

 

9.30.030   EXCEPTIONS. 

   The restrictions contained in Section 9.30.020 shall not apply to advertising or promotions for 

tobacco products: 

   A.   Located inside a commercial establishment, unless such advertising display sign or 

promotion is attached to, affixed to, leaning against, or otherwise in contact with any window or 

door in such a manner that it is visible from a street, sidewalk or other public thoroughfare; 

   B.   On vehicles, other than mobile billboards; 

   C.   On any sign located inside or immediately outside a commercial establishment if the sign 

provides notice that the establishment sells tobacco products, so long as the sign does not 

promote any brand of tobacco product; 

   D.   On tobacco product packaging.  

 

9.30.040   DISTRIBUTION OF PROMOTIONAL ITEMS TO MINORS.  

   No person may market, license, distribute, sell, or cause to be marketed, licensed, distributed or 

sold any item or service to a minor, which bears the brand name, alone or in conjunction with, 

any other word, logo, symbol, motto, selling message, recognizable color or pattern of colors, or 

any other indicia or product identification identical with, or similar to, or identifiable with, those 

used for any brand of tobacco product.  

 

9.30.050   SELF-SERVICE DISPLAYS. 

   It is unlawful for any person to sell, permit to be sold, offer for sale, or display for sale, any 

tobacco product by means of self-service display, rack, counter-top or shelf that allows self-

service sales for any tobacco product other than vendor-assisted sales.  

 

138 of 200



9.30.060   VENDOR ASSISTANCE.  

   All tobacco products shall be offered for sale exclusively by means of vendor assistance with 

tobacco products in a locked case, or in an area not accessible to the public, and requiring 

employee assistance to retrieve the tobacco products.  

 

9.30.063  MINIMUM PACK SIZE FOR CIGARS 

A. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Chapter, no Tobacco Retailer shall sell, offer 

for sale, or exchange for any form of consideration: 

 (1) Any single cigar, whether or not packaged for individual sale; 

 (2) Any number of cigars fewer than the number contained in the manufacturer’s 

 original consumer packaging designed for retail sale to a consumer; or 

 (3) Any package of cigars at a price that is less than Ten Dollars ($10.00) per five 

 (5) cigars, including all applicable taxes and fees. 

B. This subsection does not apply to the sale or offer for sale of a single cigar for which the 

retail price exceeds either Five Dollars ($5.00) or the dollar amount adopted by resolution of the 

City Council and adjusted from time to time, whichever is higher. The public shall be given 

notice of any such resolution in the manner notice is given of ordinances of the City. 

C. This subsection shall apply to cigars, cigarillos and any other cigar product regardless of 

the terminology used for the product. 

9.30.066  FLAVORED TOBACCO PRODUCTS PROHIBITED.  

 

A. No Tobacco Retailer, nor any of the retailer’s agents or employees, shall sell or offer for 

sale, or possess with intent to sell or offer for sale, any Flavored Tobacco Product. 

 

B. For the purpose of this Section, “Flavored Tobacco Product” means any Tobacco Product 

(other than cigarettes as defined by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration) that contains a 

constituent that imparts a characterizing flavor. This includes cigars, little cigars, pipe tobacco, 

hookah tobacco, snuff, chewing tobacco, dipping tobacco, bidis, blunts, and electronic cigarettes 

or electronic smoking devices. 

  

 (1) For purposes of this definition, “constituent” means any ingredient, substance, 

chemical, or compound, other than tobacco, water, or reconstituted tobacco sheet, which is added 

by the manufacturer to a tobacco product during the processing, manufacture, or packing of the 

tobacco product. 

  

 (2) Further, a Tobacco Product is presumed to be a Flavored Tobacco Product if a 

manufacturer or any of the manufacturer’s agents or employees has: 

 (a) Made a public statement or claim that the Tobacco Product has or 

produces a characterizing flavor, including, but not limited to, text and/or images 

on the product’s labeling or packaging that are used explicitly or implicitly to 

communicate information about the flavor, taste, or aroma of a tobacco product;  

  or 

139 of 200



 (b) Taken actions directed to consumers that would be reasonably expected to 

result in consumers believing that the tobacco product imparts a characterizing 

flavor. 

 

C. The provisions of this Section 9.30.066 are voluntary until January 15, 2020.  The City 

may begin enforcement after such date without further notice. 

 

 

9.30.070   ADMINISTRATION AND IMPLEMENTATION. 

   Except as otherwise provided, this chapter shall be administered by the City Manager, or his or 

her designee, who may develop guidelines to ensure implementation of this chapter.  

 

9.30.080   VIOLATIONS.  

   A.   The City Manager shall review, and if determined appropriate, act upon any written 

complaint submitted by any private citizen or city officer or employee concerning any 

advertising or promotion prohibited by this chapter. The City Manager may serve a written ten-

day notice upon the person responsible for the alleged advertising display sign or promotion or 

self-service display prohibited by this chapter. The written notice shall require the person to 

whom it is sent to either correct the violation within this ten-day period or submit, in writing, a 

response to the claim of violation. The City Manager shall investigate any written response and 

determine whether or not a violation has occurred. This determination shall be in writing and a 

copy of the determination shall be sent to the person making the written complaint and to the 

person who is alleged to have engaged in the violation. 

   B.   Failure to correct specified violations may result in enforcement by any remedy provided 

by this code. If three notices requiring the correction of any violation of this chapter, whether the 

violation involves the same or different displays or promotions, are served on the same person 

within a thirty-day period, an enforcement action, including but not limited to the imposition of a 

fine, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9.30.160, may be initiated against that person without 

the serving of another notice, if an additional violation occurs within ninety days of the serving 

of the third notice. 

   C.   Each separate display of tobacco advertising or promotion prohibited by this chapter shall 

be considered a separate violation. 

   D.   For purposes of determining liability of persons, firms or corporations, controlling 

franchises or business operations in multiple locations, each individual franchise or business 

location shall be deemed a separate entity.  

 

9.30.090  INTENT AS TO ADDITIONAL LEGAL RESTRICTIONS AND REMEDIES. 

   Nothing in this chapter is intended to alter the obligations or restrictions which apply to any 

person under any other law governing signs, billboards, tobacco advertising or any other matter 

covered by this chapter. The remedies set forth in this chapter are not exclusive. if any action 

prohibited by this chapter is also unlawful under any other law, the penalties and remedies under 

such other law may be pursued in addition to those provided in this chapter.  

 

9.30.100  TOBACCO RETAILER LICENSE. 

140 of 200



   A.   It is unlawful for any retailer, individual or entity to sell or offer for sale any tobacco 

product without first obtaining and maintaining a valid tobacco retailer's license for each location 

where such sales are conducted. 

   B.   This license must be renewed annually.  

 

9.30.110  RETAILER LICENSE APPLICATION PROCEDURE.  

   A retailer, individual or entity who is required to obtain a tobacco retailer license pursuant to 

this code shall submit an application in the name of the retailer, individual or entity and be 

signed by the retailer, individual or entity or agent with written authority to act for same. All 

applications shall be submitted on a form supplied by the City Manager and shall contain the 

following information: 

   A.   The name, address and telephone number of the business owner and manager; 

   B.   The business name, address and telephone number of each establishment where tobacco is 

to be sold; 

   C.   Such information as the City Manager determines is necessary.  

 

9.30.120  ISSUANCE AND DISPLAY OF LICENSE.  

   Upon receipt of a completed application for a tobacco retailer's license, including payment of 

the license fee, and the completion of an inspection of the premises, if required by the City 

Manager, to determine compliance with this chapter, the City Manager shall issue a license. Each 

licensee shall prominently display the license at the location where tobacco sales are conducted.  

 

9.30.130  FEES.  

   The fee for a tobacco retailer's license shall be set by Council resolution in an amount which 

covers the city costs for processing the application, inspecting the tobacco retailer's business 

premises to determine compliance with the standards contained in this chapter and implementing 

the licensing program.  

 

9.30.140  LICENSE NOT TRANSFERRABLE. 

   A tobacco retailer's license is not transferable. If there is a change in location, a new tobacco 

retail license shall be issued for the new address upon receipt of an application for a change of 

location. The new license shall retain the same expiration date as the previous one.  

 

9.30.150  SUSPENSION OF LICENSE. 

   A.   A tobacco retailer's license may be suspended by the City Manager upon a finding, after 

notice and hearing, that a violation of this chapter, or any other applicable state or federal law 

governing the sale and distribution of tobacco, has occurred at the licensee's business premises. 

   B.   The City Manager may suspend the licensee's license to sell tobacco products for up to 

sixty days the first time the City Manager makes a finding of violation. The second time the City 

Manager makes a finding of violation, within twelve months of the first violation, the 

licensee's license may be suspended for up to one hundred twenty days. The third time the City 

Manager makes a finding of violation, within twelve months of the first violation, the licensee's 

license may be suspended for up to one year. 

   C.   Any suspension of a tobacco retailer's license may be appealed to the City Council within 

ten days of receipt of the city manager's decision to suspend the license. Such appeal shall be in 

141 of 200



writing and must be accompanied by payment of the applicable appeal fee specified in the master 

fee schedule.  

 

9.30.160  ADMINISTRATIVE FINE. 

   A.   If the City Manager finds, after notice and hearing, that a person required to have a 

tobacco retailer's license is selling or offering tobacco products for sale without a license, that 

person may be subject to an administrative fine of up to one hundred dollars for a first violation, 

up to two hundred dollars for a second violation within one year, and up to five hundred dollars 

for the third and subsequent violation within one year. 

   B.   Each day that tobacco products are offered for sale without a license by a tobacco retailer 

required to have a license, shall constitute a separate violation. A finding of “offering for sale” 

shall be made if tobacco products are actually sold or displayed in the retail establishment. 

   C.   Notice of the city manager's intention to impose a fine shall be served on the tobacco 

retailer or the person who is the owner of the establishment, by certified mail. The notice shall 

contain an advisement of the right to request a hearing before the City Manager to contest the 

imposition of the fine. Such hearing must be requested within ten days of the date of the notice 

of the fine. 

   D.   Any fine imposed by the City Manager may be appealed to the City Council within ten 

days of the decision of the City Manager. The appeal must be in writing and must be 

accompanied by the appeal fee as specified in the city's fee schedule.  

 

9.30.170  DISCLAIMERS. 

   By prohibiting the advertising or promotion of tobacco products in outdoor or publicly visible 

locations, prohibiting the distribution of tobacco related promotional items and self-service 

displays of tobacco products, the city is only protecting the general welfare. It is not assuming, 

nor is it imposing on its officers and employees, an obligation for which it may be liable in 

money damages to any person who claims that such breach proximately caused injury.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3321850.2  

142 of 200



   
 

 

CITY COUNCIL   
REPORT                                                          7G 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                            

                                                             

 
 
 

 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019  
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH 

INTERACTIVE RESOURCES FOR PREPERATION OF DESIGN AND 
SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE FARIA HOUSE IN AN ADDITIONAL 
AMOUNT OF $6,017 FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $91,397, AND AMEND THE BUDGET APPROPRIATION  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution to: 
 

1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment in standard form to the 
contract with Interactive Resources for preparation of design and specifications 
for the Faria House in an additional amount of $6,017 for a total of $91,397; and 

 
2. Authorize the Finance Director to make the necessary amendments to the 

adopted budget to allocate $6,017 from the General Fund Fund Balance. 
   
BACKGROUND 
 
Over the past year, the City has discussed the use and economic viability of the Faria 
House.  However, because the Faria House was never truly improved following its 
relocation and has been vacant for many years, in order to utilize the House for any 
purpose it will require some significant renovations.  The interior of both floors require 
numerous renovations including new interior paint, new fixtures, repair of walls, 
electrical, plumbing and renovated flooring.  Moreover, the property would be subject to 
compliance with Americans with Disability Act (ADA) requirements, which will require 
significant renovations including an elevator to provide access to the second floor. 
 
On September 6, 2016, several members of the public including the Faria family spoke 
in support of the house being used as a museum.  Following a Council discussion, the 
City Council agreed that the Faria House would be used as a Museum. 
 
In an effort to obtain a cost estimate of the improvements needed to bring it up to 
standard building code requirements, on June 19, 2018, the City Council approved 
Resolution No. 2018-53 approving a contract in the amount of $85,380 with Interactive 
Resources Inc (IR) for architectural design services for the Faria House. 
 

143 of 200



City Council Meeting 7G 
September 17, 2019  2 

 

 

 
The scope of the work included:   

 Development of drawings and schematics of improvements need for the interior 
of the house.  

 Develop specifications suitable for public bidding. 
 Evaluate the Structural engineering for the installation of an elevator for ADA 

access to the second floor; and 
 Provide mechanical, electrical, and plumbing design as part of the schematics. 

 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
Over the past year, the City has been working with IR and providing them with 
documents and information.  During the information gathering process, several issues 
arose including lack of available information from the City which required supplementary 
research and work on the part of the consultant resulting in additional work hours 
outside of the base proposal.  
 
In short, the additional services were for time and design services spent on the location 
of the elevator as well as some minor structural work based on trying to avoid existing 
conditions.  
 

 Elevator Issue: on February 25, 2019 IR met with the City and the Museum 
Board to suggest two possible locations for an elevator to make the House ADA 
compliant.  IR was seeking approval of one of the locations within the week.  
Between the initial meeting date and the final approval for the location of the 
elevator, April 22, 2019, additional information was requested by the City in 
conjunction with the Museum Board, which exceeded the scope and hours in the 
initial proposal.   The request from the City resulted in additional billing hours.  
The additional hours and costs are as follows: 

 
Project Manager:       30.5 hours at $160 per hour = $4,720 
Drafter:                       8.5 hours at $120 per hour = $1,020  
Structural Engineer      1.5 hours at $185 per hour = $   277 
 

Total:                                                            $6,017 
 
The additional work included two additional site visits by the Project Manager and one 
by the Structural Engineer, additional research on the various types of elevators, 
analysis if the various elevators would fit within the House footprint, graphics, and 
response correspondence. Staff was not aware of the additional cost impact of this 
work, and has advised the consultant that in the future any anticipated increase in the 
contract must be brought to the City before incurring the costs. 
 
As a result in the delay of selecting an elevator location (approx. two months), IR 
couldn’t complete the base drawings to provide to the Mechanical, Electrical, and 
Plumbing (MEP) consultant without knowing the elevator location or knowing if utilities 

144 of 200



City Council Meeting 7G 
September 17, 2019  3 

 

 

would have to be re-routed. Because of the delay, the MEP consultant reallocated their 
staff to other work which is further delaying completion of the drawing.  IR is currently 
rescheduling a time with the MEP to complete the drawings.  
 
IR Inc is schedule to provide the City with the improvement costs and the design and 
specification within the next two month, pending no further delays. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The originally approved contract was for the amount of $85,380.  This amendment will 
increase the contract by $6,017 for a total of $91,397.  A total of $46,574 has been paid 
through July 30, 2019.    
 
The additional $6,017 is to come from the General Fund Fund Balance. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution  
B. IR Contract Amendment  
 

145 of 200



ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

CONTRACT  WITH INTERACTIVE RESOURCES INC FOR PREPERATION OF 
DESIGN AND SPCIFICATIONS FOR THE FAIRA HOUSE IN AN ADDITIONAL 

AMOUNT OF $6,017 FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 95,061, 
AND AMENDING THE BUDGET APPROPRIATION  

 
WHEREAS, the Faria House, located at 2100 San Pablo Avenue, is one of the 

oldest structures in the City of Pinole; and 
 
 WHEREAS, since the City acquired the Faria House, there have been ongoing 
discussions regarding turning the property into a museum celebrating the history of 
Pinole; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council approved use of the Faria House as a museum and 
the Pinole History Museum Board, a California non-profit benefit corporation, desires to 
operate a history museum out of the Faria House; and 
 
 WHEREAS, renovations are required in order to make the Faria House 
accessible to the public for any use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 19, 2018, the City approved a contract with Interactive 
Resources Inc in the amount of $85,380 for preparation of Architectural Design 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend the contract with Interactive 
Resources for an additional $6,017 for additional services needs to complete the design 
and specifications in order for the project to be ready to bid; and 

 
WHEREAS, the additional cost for a contract is to be funded from the General 

Fund Fund Balance.  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole does 
hereby: 
 

1. Approve an amendment to the contract with Interactive Resources Inc. for an 
additional amount of $6,017, for a total contract amount not to exceed $95,061; 
and  
 

2. Authorize the Finance Director to appropriate $6,017 from Fund 100 – 
General Fund Fund Balance.   

 
 
 
 

146 of 200



Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2019- 
Page 2 

 

 
   
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Pinole held on the 17th day of September 2019, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:    
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 17th day of September, 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk    
 

147 of 200



ATTACHMENT B 

  

AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 

INTERACTIVE RESOURCES INTERNATIONAL 
 

 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated June 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and Interactive Resources International (“Consultant”) (together sometimes 
referred to as “Parties”) is approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 

3. Compensation  
 

1. Fees and Invoices.  CONSULTANT fees shall not exceed $91,397. 
CONSULTANT shall submit invoices to CITY not more often than once per 
month during the term of this Agreement.  Invoices shall contain:  (i) the 
beginning and ending dates of the billing period; (ii) a description of the work 
performed during the billing period; and (iii) the total amount payable.  

 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated June 20, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date 
signed by the City 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
 
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
 
Approved as to Form Attest: 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Eric S. Casher     Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Attorney      City Clerk 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: _____________________ 
    
 

148 of 200



149 of 200



   

  CITY COUNCIL 
  REPORT 10A

  
 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREA MILLER, FINANCE DIRECTOR  

TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/ 
CITY ENGINEER 

 
SUBJECT: APPROVE THE CITY OF PINOLE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2019-20 

THROUGH 2023-24 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
AND ADOPT THE FY 2019-20 CAPITAL BUDGET 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Council approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 through 
2023-24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan and Adopt the FY 2019-20 Capital 
Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As provided by Section 2.04.150 of Title 2 of the Pinole Municipal Code, the City 
Manager has compiled budget recommendations for City capital projects for the next 
five (5) fiscal years.  The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is reviewed and updated 
annually for capital projects and programs that support City goals and objectives. 
Capital improvement projects usually result in a permanent addition to the City’s 
assets, including the design, construction, or purchase of land, buildings, or facilities, 
or major renovations of the same.  The Proposed FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-
Year Capital Improvement Plan is comprised of projects that fall into the following 
broad categories:  
 

 Facility Maintenance 
 Parks 
 Sewer Collection 
 Sewer Treatment 
 Stormwater 
 Streets and Roadways 

 
 
 
 
 
 

150 of 200



City Council Report 10A 
September 17, 2019  2 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Proposed FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
was reviewed by the Finance Subcommittee at their August 21, 2019 meeting, and 
by the Planning Commission at their August 26, 2019 meeting.  
 
At the August 21st Finance Subcommittee meeting, it was recommended to add 
funding for the following projects: 

 Fowler House Lot Reuse - $200,000 
 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation - $200,000 
 Fernandez Park Baseball Field Rehabilitation - $200,0000 

 
Funding for these projects would need to come from Measure S 2014 fund balance.  
 
Capital Improvement Plan Funding 

 
The Capital Improvement Plan is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific 
purposes. Listed below are various funding sources and their restrictions: 
 
Funding Source Description 
Measure S 2014 Fund - 106 Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent 

Local Use Tax which levies 0.5% each on all 
merchandise. Although these are unrestricted 
General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use Taxes 
have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding 
priority. 

Gas Tax Fund - 200 Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) 
State imposed excise taxes on gasoline and 
diesel fuel sales within the City limits. Gas Tax 
funds are restricted for use in the construction, 
improvement and maintenance of public 
streets.  

Measure J Fund - 215 Accounts for special override sales tax 
revenues collected by Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority (CCTA) and 
reapportioned to cities for local street projects.   

Parkland Dedication – 275 Accounts for impact fees received from 
developers paid under the Quimby Act.  These 
funds are disbursed for approved park projects. 

Growth Impact Fees - 276 Accounts for impact fees received from building 
activities and used to offset costs associated 
with City growth. 

City Street Improvements - 325 Accounts for funds set aside by the City of 
Pinole to fund street improvement projects. 

Park Grants - 327 Accounts for funds received from a federal 
bond for park projects. 

151 of 200



City Council Report 10A 
September 17, 2019  3 

Funding Source Description 
Arterial Street Rehabilitation -377 Accounts for funds set aside by the City of 

Pinole to fund arterial street rehabilitation 
projects. 

Sewer Enterprise Fund - 500 Accounts for fees charged to residents and 
businesses for sewer utilities.  Fees are used to 
operate the Pinole-Hercules Water Pollution 
Control Plant which services the Pinole and 
Hercules areas. 

Sewer Plant Expansion Fund - 503 Accounts for fees charged to residents and 
businesses for sewer utilities set aside 
specifically for plant upgrades.   

 
FY 2018-19 Completed Projects 
 
Due to the amount of time required for the WPCP Upgrade Project and various 
development projects, numerous priority assignments on the list of completed 
projects are constrained again this year.  The completed projects include: 
 

 2548 Charles Ave. (Fowler House) Demolition and Remove Asbestos  
 Replaced lighting at Louis Frances Park 
 Installed Trash Capture Devices – New Area 
 Purchased New Street Sweeper - Street Sweeping Schedule is available on 

City’s website at: 
https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/public_works/streets_and_roads/street_
sweeping_schedule 

 Tree Maintenance and Removal (Various Locations) 
 Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade (Substantial completion September 

2019)  
 Public Safety HVAC Repair 
 Miscellaneous Roadway Repair (Various Locations) 
 Sidewalk Maintenance (Various Locations) 
 Sign Replacement (Various Locations)   

 
Prior Year Projects Carried Forward 
 
As noted above, Fiscal Year 2018-19 activities were primarily focused on the $54 
million Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade Project, which is now anticipated to be 
substantially completed by September 2019.  In addition, the following projects were 
planned for FY 2018-19 and are either partially completed, or were not initiated, and 
are recommended for action in FY 2019-20. 
  

 Replace HVAC and portion of Roof at Senior Center   $110,000
 Rehabilitation of Play Fields at Fernandez Park $40,000
 Replace Chips with Rubber Matting at select parks  $50,000
 Restrooms in Fernandez Park (in progress) $333,603

152 of 200



City Council Report 10A 
September 17, 2019  4 

 Senior Center Parking Lot Maintenance (now complete) $67,196
 Hazel Street Pump Station Rehabilitation $1,200,000
 Inflow and Infiltration Monitoring Program $60,000
 Inflow and Infiltration Rehabilitation Program: Basin 3.1 $350,000
 Rodeo Outfall $242,342
 Storm Drainage Master Plan – Carried forward over three years $25,000
 Pavement Maintenance and Rehab Program (in progress) $2,079,959
 San Pablo Avenue Pedestrian Bridge – Engineering/Design  $999,753
 Sharrow Pavement Markings $19,000

 

 
Prior Year Projects Deferred Until FY 2020-21 
 

 Citywide Roof repairs and Replacement $272,000
 Paint City Hall (inside and out) $70,000
 Pinole Valley Road Underground District $5,750

 
New Projects 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan includes funding for a previously unfunded project, 
Replace HVAC at City Hall, in the amount of $120,000.  In addition, $695,000 in 
funding for three other new projects listed below is included in the FY 2019-20 
capital budget for a total of.  Finally, funding of $600,000 for the projects 
recommended by the Finance Subcommittee is also included.  That brings the total 
for new projects to $1,415,000. 
 

 Replace HVAC at City Hall – Previously unfunded $120,000
 Fowler House Reuse $200,000
 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation  $200,000
 Fernandez Park Baseball Field Rehabilitation   $200,000
 Hazel Street Drainage Improvements $200,000
 City Street Paving Equipment $395,000
 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent – Engineering & Planning $100,000

 
The following projects are included which do not have an identified funding source: 
 

 Prepare a Park Master Plan $55,000
 Uniform Park Signage $35,000
 Roble Road Drainage Improvements $200,000
 Hazel Street Gap Closure – Partially funded in FY2019-20 $18,500

 
Detailed project description sheets for projects that exceed $100,000, and those of 
specific community interest, are included within the Capital Improvement Plan.  
Projects that include a project description sheet are highlighted in green.  
 
 
 

153 of 200



City Council Report 10A 
September 17, 2019  5 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Proposed FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
includes $18.1 million in identified projects of which, $308,500 are listed as 
unfunded.  Staff is requesting Council to adopt budget appropriations for the first 
year of the Plan which constitutes the Proposed FY 2019-20 CIP Budget in the 
amount of $9,296,317.  This amount includes $1.250 million for the Water Pollution 
Control Plant expansion project, which is near completion. 
 

FY 2019-20 FY 2019-20 Use of 
SOURCES BY FUND Revenue Request Fund Balance 
Measure S 2014 - 106 192,000 1,497,799 1,305,799
Gas Tax - 200 100,000          837,118  737,118 
Measure J - 215 120,000 209,650  89,650 
Parkland Dedication - 275                 -             15,509               15,509 
Growth Impact Fees – 276                 -  39,500 39,500
City Street Improvements - 325 100,000 1,928,889 1,828,889
Park Grants - 327                 -             24,491               24,491 
Arterial Street Rehab - 377        250,000 1,141,019             891,019 
Sewer Enterprise - 500 942,342       2,352,342  1,410,000 
Sewer Plant Expansion - 503     1,250,000 1,250,000                        - 

Sources Total   2,954,342 9,296,317       6,341,975 
 
There is sufficient Fund Balance in each of these sources to cover the requests.  If 
approved as proposed, the CIP will necessitate an amendment to the Measure S 
2014 5-Year Plan previously adopted.  If needed, Staff will bring forward an agenda 
item on October 1st. 
 
Years two through five of the Plan will be used to forecast funding needs.  Staff will 
provide Council with updated CIP budgets for each future Plan year during the 
appropriate fiscal year.    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan  
 
B – Resolution Approving the FY 2019-20 through 2023-24 Five-Year Capital 

Improvement Plan and Adopting the FY 2019-20 Capital Budget 
 
C – CIP PowerPoint Presentation  

154 of 200



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

City of Pinole 
FY 2019‐20 

Mission 

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) sets the schedule within which public improvements are 
proposed to be undertaken.  The five-year schedule represents estimated future capital needs 
that may be funded given projected revenue estimates.  The CIP is reviewed and revised 
annually.  Capital expenditures that are expected to have matching revenue are included in the 
Annual Operating Budget that is presented to the City Council as part of the annual budget 
process in June. 

Program Description  

A Capital Improvement Plan is a major public infrastructure and planning tool for municipalities.  
The CIP is a statement of the City’s policies and financial abilities to manage the physical 
development of the community. The development of a five-year CIP provides a systematic plan 
for providing infrastructure improvements within a prioritized framework. 

 

Capital Projects completed: 

 2548 Charles Ave. (Fowler House) Demolition and Remove Asbestos 
 Replaced lighting at Louis Frances Park 
 Installed Trash Capture Devices – New Area 
 Purchased New Street Sweeper 
 Tree Maintenance and Removal (Various Locations) 
 Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade (Substantial completion September 2019)  
 Public Safety HVAC Repair 
 Miscellaneous Roadway Repair (Various Locations) 
 Sidewalk Maintenance (Various Locations) 
 Sign Replacement (Various Locations)   

 

Key Objectives 

Facility Maintenance: Replace HVAC at City Hall and Senior Center 
 Funding: Measure S 2014 

Parks: Replace Restrooms in Fernandez Park 
 Funding: Measure S 2014 

Sewer Collection: Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation 
 Funding: Sewer Enterprise fund 

Sewer Treatment: Upgrades to Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 Funding: Sewer Plant Expansion fund 

Streets and Roadways: Residential Slurry Seal and Rehabilitation Program 
 Funding: Gas Tax/Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation/SB1 funds 

Streets and Roadways: Pavement Maintenance and Rehabilitation Program 
 Funding: City Street Improvements and Arterial Street Rehabilitation funds 

ATTACHMENT A

I-1
155 of 200



C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
Pr

op
se

d 
FY

 2
01

9-
20

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

-2
4

Fi
ve

-Y
ea

r C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n

SO
U

R
C

ES
 B

Y 
FU

N
D

FY
 2

01
9-

20
FY

 2
02

0-
21

FY
 2

02
1-

22
FY

 2
02

2-
23

FY
 2

02
3-

24
5-

Ye
ar

 T
ot

al

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

1,
49

7,
79

9
   

   
 

51
7,

00
0

   
   

 
31

5,
00

0
   

   
 

15
0,

00
0

   
   

 
15

0,
00

0
   

   
 

2,
47

9,
79

9
$ 

   
   

G
as

 T
ax

 - 
20

0
83

7,
11

8
   

   
   

 
37

0,
85

0
   

   
 

31
5,

10
0

   
   

 
31

5,
10

0
   

   
 

31
5,

10
0

   
   

 
1,

83
8,

16
8

$ 
   

   

M
ea

su
re

 J
 - 

21
5

20
9,

65
0

   
   

   
 

81
0,

10
3

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

01
9,

75
3

$ 
   

   

Pa
rk

la
nd

 D
ed

ic
at

io
n 

- 2
75

15
,5

09
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,5
09

$ 
   

   
   

  

G
ro

w
th

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s 

- 2
76

39
,5

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
39

,5
00

$ 
   

   
   

  

C
ity

 S
tr

ee
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
32

5
1,

92
8,

88
9

   
   

 
1,

96
8,

89
7

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
4,

39
7,

78
6

$ 
   

   

Pa
rk

 G
ra

nt
s 

- 3
27

24
,4

91
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,4
91

$ 
   

   
   

  

20
14

 A
rt

er
ia

l S
tr

ee
t R

eh
ab

 - 
37

7
1,

14
1,

01
9

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
1,

89
1,

01
9

$ 
   

   

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
- 5

00
2,

35
2,

34
2

   
   

 
55

0,
00

0
   

   
 

35
0,

00
0

   
   

 
35

0,
00

0
   

   
 

35
0,

00
0

   
   

 
3,

60
2,

34
2

$ 
   

   

Se
w

er
 P

la
nt

 E
xp

an
si

on
 - 

50
3

1,
25

0,
00

0
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
25

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

So
ur

ce
s 

To
ta

l
9,

29
6,

31
7

   
   

 
4,

46
6,

85
0

   
 

1,
48

0,
10

0
   

 
1,

31
5,

10
0

   
 

1,
31

5,
10

0
   

 
16

,5
58

,3
67

$ 
   

 

U
nf

un
de

d 
To

ta
l

18
,5

00
   

   
   

   
20

0,
00

0
   

   
 

$9
0,

00
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l S
ou

rc
es

 R
eq

ui
re

d
9,

31
4,

81
7

$ 
   

4,
66

6,
85

0
$ 

1,
57

0,
10

0
$ 

1,
31

5,
10

0
$ 

1,
31

5,
10

0
$ 

 
18

,1
81

,9
67

$ 
   

5-
Ye

ar
 T

ot
al

PR
J 

#
U

SE
S 

B
Y 

PR
O

JE
C

T
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

B
ud

ge
t U

ni
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 #
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

FA
17

02
C

ity
w

id
e 

R
oo

f r
ep

ai
rs

 a
nd

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t

$2
72

,0
00

$1
40

,0
00

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
10

6-
34

3-
47

20
1

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

FA
17

03
P

ai
nt

 C
ity

 H
al

l (
In

si
de

 a
nd

 O
ut

si
de

) 
$7

0,
00

0
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

10
6-

34
3-

47
20

1
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

FA
17

06
R

ep
la

ce
 H

V
A

C
 a

nd
 a

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 ro

of
 a

t S
en

io
r C

en
te

r
$1

10
,0

00
 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
10

6-
34

3-
47

20
1

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

FA
18

01
R

ep
la

ce
 H

V
A

C
 a

t C
ity

 H
al

l
$1

20
,0

00
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

10
6-

34
3-

47
20

1
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

FA
19

01
Fo

w
le

r H
ou

se
 L

ot
 R

eu
se

$2
00

,0
00

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
10

6-
34

3-
47

20
1

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

P
A

17
04

P
re

pa
re

 a
 P

ar
k 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

$5
5,

00
0

P
ar

ks
 U

nf
un

de
d 

P
A

17
05

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
of

 P
la

y 
Fi

el
ds

 a
t F

er
na

nd
ez

 P
ar

k
$4

0,
00

0
 

P
ar

ks
27

5-
34

5-
47

20
3 

$1
5,

50
9 

32
7-

34
5-

47
20

3 
$2

4,
49

1
 P

ar
k 

Im
pa

ct
/G

ra
nt

s 

P
A

17
06

R
ep

la
ce

 C
hi

ps
 w

ith
 R

ub
be

r M
at

tin
g 

at
 s

el
ec

t p
ar

k 
lo

ca
tio

ns
$5

0,
00

0
P

ar
ks

10
6-

34
5-

47
20

3
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

P
A

17
08

R
es

tro
om

s 
in

 F
er

na
nd

ez
 P

ar
k

$3
33

,6
03

 
P

ar
ks

10
6-

34
5-

47
20

3
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

ATTACHMENT A

I-2
156 of 200



C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
Pr

op
se

d 
FY

 2
01

9-
20

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

-2
4

Fi
ve

-Y
ea

r C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n

PR
J 

#
U

SE
S 

B
Y 

PR
O

JE
C

T
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

B
ud

ge
t U

ni
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 #
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

P
A

17
09

S
en

io
r C

en
te

r P
ar

ki
ng

 L
ot

 P
av

em
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$6
7,

19
6

P
ar

ks
10

6-
34

5-
47

20
3

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

P
A

17
10

U
ni

fo
rm

 P
ar

k 
S

ig
na

ge
 

$3
5,

00
0

P
ar

ks
 U

nf
un

de
d 

P
A

19
01

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

P
ar

k 
S

oc
ce

r F
ie

ld
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

$2
00

,0
00

P
ar

ks
10

6-
34

5-
47

20
3

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

P
A

19
02

Fe
rn

an
de

z 
P

ar
k 

B
as

eb
al

l F
ie

ld
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

$2
00

,0
00

P
ar

ks
10

6-
34

5-
47

20
3

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

S
S

17
02

S
ew

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

S
ew

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
50

0-
64

2-
47

20
1

S
ew

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e

S
S

17
03

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
$6

0,
00

0
S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

50
0-

64
2-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e

S
S

17
04

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
; B

as
in

 
3.

1
$3

50
,0

00
S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

50
0-

64
2-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e

S
S

17
05

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
; B

as
in

 
5.

2 
an

d 
6.

5
$3

50
,0

00
S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

50
0-

64
2-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e

S
S

17
07

U
pg

ra
de

s 
to

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

$1
,2

50
,0

00
S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t

50
3-

64
3-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
xp

an
si

on

S
S

18
01

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
je

ct
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
S

ew
er

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n

50
0-

64
2-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e

S
S

18
02

R
od

eo
 O

ut
fa

ll 
P

ro
je

ct
$2

42
,3

42
S

ew
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t

50
0-

64
1-

47
20

1
S

ew
er

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e

S
W

17
02

A
nn

ua
l S

to
rm

w
at

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

$0
$0

$1
50

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

S
to

rm
w

at
er

10
6-

34
4-

47
20

6
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

S
W

19
01

H
az

el
 S

tre
et

 D
ra

in
an

ge
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$2

00
,0

00
S

to
rm

w
at

er
10

6-
34

4-
47

20
6 

$1
92

,0
00

 
27

6-
34

4-
47

20
6 

$8
,0

00
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4/
 

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s 

S
W

20
01

R
ob

le
 R

oa
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$0

$2
00

,0
00

$0
$0

$0
S

to
rm

w
at

er
27

6-
34

4-
47

20
6

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s/

 
U

nf
un

de
d 

S
W

20
02

A
do

be
 R

oa
d 

R
ep

ai
r a

nd
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

$0
$1

50
,0

00
$0

$0
$0

S
to

rm
w

at
er

10
6-

34
4-

47
20

6
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

S
W

17
03

S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

$2
5,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0

S
to

rm
w

at
er

10
6-

34
4-

42
10

1
 M

ea
su

re
 S

 2
01

4 

R
O

17
07

P
av

em
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
$2

,4
32

,9
23

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

R
oa

ds
32

5-
34

2-
47

20
5 

$8
99

,7
86

 
37

7-
34

2-
47

20
5 

$7
96

,0
19

 
20

0-
34

2-
47

20
5 

$7
37

,1
18

 C
ity

 S
tre

et
 Im

pr
ov

 
A

rte
ria

l R
eh

ab
   

  G
as

 
Ta

x-
R

M
R

A
 

R
O

17
08

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
R

oa
ds

20
0-

34
2-

47
20

5
 G

as
 T

ax
 

R
O

17
09

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 D

is
tri

ct
$5

,7
50

R
oa

ds
20

0-
34

2-
47

20
5

 G
as

 T
ax

 

ATTACHMENT A

I-3
157 of 200



C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
Pr

op
se

d 
FY

 2
01

9-
20

 th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

-2
4

Fi
ve

-Y
ea

r C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n

PR
J 

#
U

SE
S 

B
Y 

PR
O

JE
C

T
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

B
ud

ge
t U

ni
t

A
cc

ou
nt

 #
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

R
O

17
10

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
B

rid
ge

 o
ve

r B
N

S
F 

R
ai

lro
ad

 *
*

$9
99

,7
53

$1
,8

67
,0

00
R

oa
ds

21
5-

34
2-

47
20

5 
$7

0,
65

0 
32

5-
34

2-
47

20
5 

$9
29

,1
03

 M
ea

su
re

 J
/C

C
TA

 
TL

C
 &

 S
ta

te
 F

un
di

ng
 

R
O

17
13

S
ha

rr
ow

 P
av

em
en

t M
ar

ki
ng

s 
$1

9,
00

0
R

oa
ds

21
5-

34
2-

47
20

5
 M

ea
su

re
 J

 

R
O

17
14

H
A

W
K

 a
t A

pp
ia

n 
W

ay
 a

nd
 M

ar
le

st
a

$1
20

,0
00

R
oa

ds
21

5-
34

2-
47

20
5

 M
ea

su
re

 J
/C

C
TA

 
TL

C
 G

ra
nt

 

R
O

18
01

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

$6
62

,0
00

R
oa

ds
32

5-
34

2-
47

20
5 

$7
6,

00
0 

21
5-

34
2-

47
20

5 
$5

86
,0

00
 M

ea
su

re
 J

/C
C

TA
 

O
B

A
G

 2
 G

ra
nt

 

R
O

18
02

H
az

el
 S

tre
et

 G
ap

 C
lo

su
re

 (S
un

ny
vi

ew
)

$5
0,

00
0

R
oa

ds
27

6-
34

4-
47

20
5 

$3
1,

50
0 

 
U

nf
un

de
d 

$1
8,

50
0

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s 

 
U

nf
un

de
d 

R
O

19
01

C
ity

 S
tre

et
 P

av
in

g 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
$3

95
,0

00
R

oa
ds

37
7-

34
2-

47
20

5 
$3

45
,0

00
 

20
0-

34
2-

47
20

5 
$5

0,
00

0
 C

ity
 S

tre
et

 Im
pr

ov
   

G
as

 T
ax

 - 
R

M
R

A
 

R
O

19
02

P
ed

es
tri

an
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t T
en

ne
nt

 (E
ng

in
ne

rin
g 

an
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 O
nl

y)
 - 

B
ay

 T
ra

il 
G

ap
$1

00
,0

00
R

oa
ds

32
5-

34
2-

47
20

5
 W

C
C

TA
C

 S
TM

P
 

Fe
es

 G
ra

nt
 - 

P
en

di
ng

 

U
se

s 
by

 P
ro

je
ct

 T
ot

al
$9

,3
14

,8
17

$4
,6

66
,8

50
$1

,5
70

,1
00

$1
,3

15
,1

00
$1

,3
15

,1
00

$1
8,

18
1,

96
8

5-
Ye

ar
 T

ot
al

LE
G

EN
D

:

• 
Ite

m
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 b
lu

e 
ar

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

• 
P

ro
je

ct
 n

um
be

rs
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 in

 g
re

en
 in

di
ca

te
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

sh
ee

t i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

.

• 
Ite

m
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 o
ra

ng
e 

in
di

ca
te

 a
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ov
er

 fr
om

 p
rio

r f
is

ca
l y

ea
r.

• 
Ite

m
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 in

 p
ur

pl
e 

ar
e 

ne
w

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 o

r n
ew

 fu
nd

in
g 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 F
Y

 2
01

9-
20

.

• 
P

ro
je

ct
 n

um
be

rs
: F

A
 =

 F
ac

ili
tie

s;
 P

A
 =

 P
ar

ks
; S

S 
= 

S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
; S

W
 =

 S
to

rm
 W

at
er

; R
O

 =
 R

oa
ds

.

**
C

al
tra

ns
 fu

nd
ed

 to
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

 c
os

t i
s 

$1
6.

8 
m

ill
io

n 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

s 
be

yo
nd

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 P
la

n 
ye

ar
s.

ATTACHMENT A

I-4
158 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

C
ity

w
id

e 
R

oo
f R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
FA

17
02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

02
0

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

R
oo

f R
ep

ai
r a

nd
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
id

en
tif

ie
d

by
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n.

Th
e 

C
ity

 h
ire

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 re

pa
ir

an
d/

or
 re

pl
ac

e 
ro

of
s 

on
 C

ity
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s.

  A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
w

as
 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 o
n 

al
l f

ac
ilit

ie
s 

in
 e

ar
ly

 2
01

5.
 T

he
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
se

ve
ra

l o
f t

he
 ro

of
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 F

Y 
20

20
-2

1.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

$4
12

,0
00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
To

ta
l:

41
2,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$2
72

,0
00

$1
40

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
$2

72
,0

00
$1

40
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

ATTACHMENT A

I-5
159 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

Fo
w

le
r H

ou
se

 L
ot

 R
eu

se

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
FA

19
01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

D
et

er
m

in
e 

re
us

e 
of

 th
e 

fo
rm

er
 F

ow
le

r H
ou

se
 lo

t..

R
ep

ur
po

se
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 F
ow

le
r H

ou
se

 lo
t f

or
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
pa

rk
in

g 
or

 re
cr

ea
tio

n.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

$2
00

,0
00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
To

ta
l:

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$2

00
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

$2
00

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

ATTACHMENT A

I-6
160 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

R
es

tro
om

s 
in

 F
er

na
nd

ez
 P

ar
k

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
PA

17
08

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ne
 2

01
8

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

9

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

R
ep

la
ce

 R
es

tro
om

s 
in

 F
er

na
nd

ez
 P

ar
k

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

re
st

ro
om

is
 b

ey
on

d 
its

 u
se

fu
l l

ife
. I

t h
as

 
be

en
 re

ha
bi

lit
at

ed
 s

ev
er

al
 ti

m
es

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
, t

he
 

co
nc

re
te

 fl
oo

rin
g 

an
d 

bl
oc

k 
w

al
ls

 c
an

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 b

e 
ke

pt
 c

le
an

 a
nd

 o
do

r f
re

e.
 N

ew
 re

st
ro

om
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

be
tte

r a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r a
ll 

pa
rk

 u
se

rs
. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
24

,2
05

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
31

8,
60

3
$ 

   
   

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l:
35

7,
80

8
$ 

   
   

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

24
,2

05
   

   
   

   
 

$3
33

,6
03

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
24

,2
05

   
   

   
   

 
$3

33
,6

03
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ATTACHMENT A

I-7
161 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
PA

19
01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

P
ar

k 
S

oc
ce

r F
ie

ld
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

R
eh

ab
ilit

at
e 

Pi
no

le
 V

al
le

y 
Pa

rk
 s

oc
ce

r f
ie

ld
.

S
oc

ce
rf

ie
ld

s 
ar

e 
a 

hi
gh

 u
se

 a
re

a 
of

 th
e 

P
in

ol
e 

Pa
rk

 s
ys

te
m

an
d 

w
ar

ra
nt

 ro
ut

in
e 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 p
la

y.
 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
20

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-8
162 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
PA

19
02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

Fe
rn

an
de

z 
P

ar
k 

B
as

eb
al

l F
ie

ld
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

R
eh

ab
ilit

at
e 

Fe
rn

an
de

z 
Pa

rk
 b

as
eb

al
l f

ie
ld

.

B
as

eb
al

lf
ie

ld
s 

ar
e 

a 
hi

gh
 u

se
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
P

in
ol

e 
P

ar
k 

sy
st

em
an

d 
w

ar
ra

nt
 ro

ut
in

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 p

la
y.

 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
20

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-9
163 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

P
re

pa
re

 P
ar

k 
M

as
te

r P
la

n

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
PA

17
04

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

02
1

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

A
 m

as
te

r p
la

n 
fo

r p
ar

ks
 w

ill 
ai

d 
th

e 
C

ity
in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 p

ar
k 

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

n.
 

M
as

te
rp

la
nn

in
g 

al
lo

w
s 

th
e 

C
ity

 to
 q

ua
nt

ify
 a

nd
 q

ua
lif

y 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pa

rk
 s

ys
te

m
, i

de
nt

ify
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s,

 d
ev

el
op

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 c
os

t t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n,
 o

pe
ra

te
, a

nd
 if

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 
ar

is
es

, e
xp

an
d 

th
e 

pa
rk

 s
ys

te
m

. M
as

te
r p

la
nn

in
g 

se
rv

es
 c

an
 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 C

ity
 in

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 p
la

tfo
rm

 fo
r r

es
po

nd
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
ca

lly
 to

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
To

ta
l:

55
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

U
nf

un
de

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$5

5,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$5

5,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-10
164 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

U
ni

fo
rm

 P
ar

k 
S

ig
na

ge
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
PA

17
10

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

02
1

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

S
ig

na
ge

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
pa

rk
 s

ys
te

m
 h

as
 e

vo
lv

ed
 o

ve
r t

im
e 

to
 a

 p
at

ch
w

or
k 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

by
 p

la
in

 a
nd

 s
om

et
im

es
 a

gi
ng

 
si

gn
ag

e.
 R

ec
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f 

P
in

ol
e 

C
re

ek
ha

s 
illu

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 s
ig

na
ge

 is
 a

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 

pa
rk

 s
ys

te
m

. F
rie

nd
s 

of
 P

in
ol

e 
C

re
ek

 h
as

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

 
de

si
re

 fo
r v

er
y 

ar
tis

tic
 s

ig
na

ge
. A

 u
ni

fie
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 is
 a

ls
o 

D
ev

el
op

a 
un

ifo
rm

 s
ig

na
ge

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 a
ll 

pa
rk

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

lin
ea

r p
ar

ks
. U

pg
ra

de
 s

ig
ns

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 p

ar
k 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
To

ta
l:

35
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

U
nf

un
de

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$3

5,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$3

5,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-11
165 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t:

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
SS

17
02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

8
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

A
ug

us
t 2

02
0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

S
ew

er
 P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n

B
ot

h 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
ns

 h
av

e
re

ac
he

d 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
ei

r u
se

fu
l l

ife
 a

nd
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

ed
.

P
er

fo
rm

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
ft

he
 tw

o 
se

w
er

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

ns
. A

dd
re

ss
is

su
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 th
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 a

t 
H

az
el

 S
tre

et
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
on

 a
 th

ro
ug

h 
ro

ad
. 

g

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

22
,5

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

En
gi

ne
er

in
g/

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
88

4,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

14
3,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l:
1,

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$1
,0

00
,0

00
$2

00
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ATTACHMENT A

I-12
166 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
P

ro
gr

am

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
SS

17
03

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

9
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fo

cu
se

d
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

te
st

in
g 

of
 

th
e 

se
w

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 to
 re

fin
e 

w
or

k 
ef

fo
rts

.

Th
e 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
5 

 I/
I S

tu
dy

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 

m
on

ito
rin

g
du

rin
g 

st
or

m
 e

ve
nt

s 
be

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 to

 
pi

np
oi

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r f

oc
us

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

m
iti

ga
te

 s
to

rm
 w

at
er

 in
flo

w
. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$6

0,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$6

0,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

ATTACHMENT A

I-13
167 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

S
17

04

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
; B

as
in

 3
.1

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
, T

ar
ge

t l
oc

at
io

n 
Ba

si
n 

3.
1,

 to
 re

du
ce

 in
flo

w
 a

nd
 in

fil
tra

tio
n 

(I/
I).

 

Pi
no

le
 h

as
 fa

irl
y 

hi
gh

 I/
I r

at
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

w
er

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
 re

su
lti

ng
fro

m
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 in

flo
w

 a
nd

 in
fil

tra
tio

n.
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

ca
n 

re
du

ce
 tr

ea
tm

en
t c

os
t a

nd
 fr

ee
 c

ap
ac

ity
 fo

r 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 u

se
s.

 S
tu

di
es

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

ev
er

al
 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 th
at

 w
ar

ra
nt

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-14
168 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

S
17

05

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am
; B

as
in

 5
.2

 a
nd

 6
.5

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
, B

as
in

 5
.2

an
d 

6.
5 

to
 re

du
ce

 s
to

rm
 w

at
er

 in
flo

w
. 

Pi
no

le
 h

as
 fa

irl
y 

hi
gh

 in
flo

w
 ra

te
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

w
er

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
 re

su
lti

ng
fro

m
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 in

flo
w

.  
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

ca
n 

re
du

ce
 tr

ea
tm

en
t c

os
t a

nd
 fr

ee
 c

ap
ac

ity
 

fo
r e

xp
an

de
d 

us
es

. S
tu

di
es

 h
av

e 
al

re
ad

y 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

se
ve

ra
l a

re
as

 o
f t

he
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 th
at

 w
ar

ra
nt

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-15
169 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

P
in

ol
e-

H
er

cu
le

s 
W

at
er

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
C

on
tro

l P
la

nt
 U

pg
ra

de

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
SS

17
07

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 

M
ay

 2
01

6
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
9

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t: 

 *

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

C
om

pl
et

e
up

gr
ad

e 
to

 th
e 

P
in

ol
e 

H
er

cu
le

s 
W

at
er

 
P

ol
lu

tio
n 

C
on

tro
lP

la
nt

.

Th
e 

up
gr

ad
e

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 fo
r o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

er
m

it 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e.

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

2,
85

1,
78

9
$ 

   
   

  
En

gr
/A

dm
in

:
5,

00
5,

21
1

$ 
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
43

,1
43

,0
00

$ 
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

3,
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

54
,5

00
,0

00
$ 

   
  

   
  *

 1
00

 %
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

t s
ho

w
n,

 s
pl

it 
eq

ua
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f H

er
cu

le
s

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

Se
w

er
 P

la
nt

 E
xp

an
si

on
 - 

50
3

$2
6,

66
5,

19
1

$1
,2

50
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  *

 5
0 

%
 P

in
ol

e 
po

rt
io

n 
on

ly

To
ta

l
$2

6,
66

5,
19

1
$1

,2
50

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

ATTACHMENT A

I-16
170 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

S
18

01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

In
flo

w
 a

nd
 In

fil
tra

tio
n 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
je

ct
 - 

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

An
nu

al
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 to
 

re
du

ce
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 in

flo
w

. 

Pi
no

le
 h

as
 fa

irl
y 

hi
gh

 in
flo

w
 ra

te
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
se

w
er

 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
 re

su
lti

ng
fro

m
 s

to
rm

 w
at

er
 in

flo
w

.  
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
w

as
te

w
at

er
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l B
oa

rd
 (R

W
Q

C
B)

. F
ur

th
er

 s
tu

dy
 w

ill 
ai

d 
pr

io
rit

iz
in

g 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
of

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 th
at

 w
ar

ra
nt

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

35
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00
$3

50
,0

00

ATTACHMENT A

I-17
171 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t:

R
od

eo
 O

ut
fa

ll 
P

ro
je

ct

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
SS

18
02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ly

 2
01

8
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

R
od

eo
 S

an
ita

tio
n 

op
er

at
es

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

 d
ee

p 
w

at
er

 o
ut

fa
ll 

w
hi

ch
 is

 u
se

d 
by

 P
in

ol
e-

H
er

cu
le

s 
W

P
C

P
. T

he
 o

ut
fa

ll 
w

as
 re

ce
nt

ly
 in

sp
ec

te
d 

as
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
pe

rm
it.

 T
he

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

po
rt 

st
at

es
 th

is
 w

or
k 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 p
re

-
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
co

st
 s

ha
rin

g 
ag

re
em

en
t.

R
od

eo
S

an
ita

tio
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 n
ee

ds
 to

 re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ou
tfa

ll 
va

lu
e,

 c
le

an
 th

e 
ou

tfa
ll 

di
ffu

se
rs

, a
nd

 
re

st
or

e 
th

e 
ca

th
od

ic
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

24
,2

34
$ 

   
   

   
  

En
gi

ne
er

in
g/

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
19

3,
87

4
$ 

   
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

24
,2

34
$ 

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l*:
24

2,
34

2
$ 

   
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
02

0-
21

FY
 2

02
1-

22
FY

 2
02

2-
23

FY
 2

02
3-

24
FY

 2
02

4-
25

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

Se
w

er
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
- 5

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

$2
42

,3
42

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$2

42
,3

42
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

* T
ot

al
 c

os
t i

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

$3
18

,0
00

: S
pl

it 
as

 fo
llo

w
s 

(P
in

ol
e/

H
er

cu
le

s)
/R

od
eo

 - 
($

13
7,

60
3/

$1
04

,7
39

)/$
75

,6
59

. P
in

ol
e 

w
ill

 b
ill

 H
er

cu
le

s 
fo

r t
he

ir 
po

rt
io

n.

ATTACHMENT A

I-18
172 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

W
17

02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
A

nn
ua

l
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
O

ng
oi

ng

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

A
nn

ua
l S

to
rm

w
at

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
S

ys
te

m
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

R
eh

ab
ilit

at
e

ex
is

tin
g 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

sy
st

em
 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

to
 p

er
fo

rm
 to

 c
ur

re
nt

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sy
st

em
 re

qu
ire

s
on

go
in

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

an
d 

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n.
 In

 s
om

e 
ca

se
s,

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
 is

 
ne

ed
ed

. F
ai

lu
re

s 
or

 lo
ss

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 c

an
 le

ad
 

to
 o

th
er

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 is
su

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 e

ro
di

ng
 

em
ba

nk
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
ro

ad
w

ay
s.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

36
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

45
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

$0
$0

$1
50

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

 To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
$0

$0
$1

50
,0

00
$1

50
,0

00
$1

50
,0

00

ATTACHMENT A

I-19
173 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

W
19

01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

0

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

H
az

el
 S

tre
et

 S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

C
on

ve
rt

ex
is

tin
g 

st
or

m
w

at
er

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

op
en

 
ch

an
ne

l t
o 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

pi
pe

 a
nd

 a
dd

 d
ra

in
ag

e 

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sy
st

em
is

 a
n 

op
en

 tr
en

ch
 a

nd
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
co

nv
er

te
d 

to
 a

n 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
co

nv
ey

an
ce

 s
ys

te
m

 to
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
of

 a
 th

ro
ug

h 
ro

ad
. C

on
ve

rti
ng

 th
e 

sy
st

em
 to

 u
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

 a
ls

o 
ai

ds
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
M

SP
4 

by
 re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l o

f c
on

ta
m

in
an

ts
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
lit

te
r f

ro
m

 e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
st

or
m

w
at

er
 s

ys
te

m
.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

$1
92

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
G

ro
w

th
 Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

s 
- 2

76
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
$8

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
To

ta
l

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
$2

00
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 

ATTACHMENT A

I-20
174 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

W
20

01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

02
0

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

1

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

R
ob

le
 R

oa
d 

S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

As
se

ss
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

 a
t R

ob
le

 a
nd

 E
nc

in
a 

fo
r 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 a
nd

 h
yd

ra
ul

ic
 p

ro
fil

e 
an

d 
up

gr
ad

e
sy

st
em

 a
s 

w
ar

ra
nt

ed
. 

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sy
st

em
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 h
av

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 is

su
es

 
th

at
 w

ar
ra

nt
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 u
pg

ra
de

. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

16
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

G
ro

w
th

 Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
s 

- 2
76

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

$2
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
*U

nf
un

de
d

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

$2
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
  -

 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 

ATTACHMENT A

I-21
175 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
S

W
20

02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

02
0

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

1

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

A
do

be
 R

oa
d 

S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

In
st

al
lc

ul
ve

rt.
 R

eg
ra

de
 a

re
a 

an
d 

re
st

or
e 

ro
ad

 
su

rfa
ce

. 

Ad
ob

e
R

oa
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

 fa
ilu

re
 d

ue
 to

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
im

pa
ct

s.
 T

he
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

ro
ad

 to
 b

e 
re

bu
ilt

. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

12
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

$1
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
 To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
$1

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

  -
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

ATTACHMENT A

I-22
176 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
SW

17
03

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
Ju

ly
 2

01
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

Ju
ne

 2
02

2

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

S
to

rm
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

P
re

pa
re

 a
 s

to
rm

 d
ra

in
ag

e
m

as
te

r p
la

n 

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 a

 s
to

rm
 d

ra
in

 m
as

te
r p

la
n 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
sy

st
em

. T
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill 
in

de
nt

ify
 s

ys
te

m
 d

ef
ic

ie
nc

ie
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 c

ap
ac

ity
, 

fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y,

 a
nd

 p
er

m
it 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e.

 T
he

 p
la

n 
ca

n 
se

rv
e 

to
 g

ui
de

 fu
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

t a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

sy
st

em
.  

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4 

- 1
06

$2
5,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
$2

5,
00

0
25

,0
00

   
   

  
25

,0
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

ATTACHMENT A

I-23
177 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
17

07
20

18
-1

9 
S

B
1 

P
ro

je
ct

s:
R

es
id

en
tia

l S
lu

rry
 S

ea
l -

 $
13

6,
32

8
R

es
id

en
tia

l R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
- $

20
0,

10
0

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
20

19
-2

0 
S

B
1 

P
ro

je
ct

s:
R

es
id

en
tia

l S
lu

rry
 S

ea
l -

 $
12

5,
00

0
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
A

nn
ua

l
R

es
id

en
tia

l R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
- $

20
1,

71
9

Es
tim

at
ed

 E
nd

 D
at

e:
 

A
nn

ua
l

20
19

-2
0 

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s:
P

av
em

en
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n 

- $
1,

76
9,

77
6

To
ta

lE
st

im
at

ed
C

os
t:

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

P
av

em
en

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
P

ro
gr

am

R
ou

tin
e 

R
oa

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Pr

og
ra

m
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 fu
nd

s 

Th
e 

Pa
ve

m
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

9 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 P
av

em
en

t C
on

di
tio

n 
In

de
x 

(P
C

I) 
fo

r m
os

t r
oa

ds
 w

ith
in

 
Pi

no
le

 o
f 6

7.
 T

he
 R

ep
or

t h
el

ps
 id

en
tif

y 
ro

ad
s,

 th
at

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
ir 

PC
I, 

sh
ou

ld
 re

ce
iv

e 
pa

ve
m

en
t m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

r r
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

th
e 

in
te

nt
 o

f e
xt

en
di

ng
 th

e 
us

ef
ul

 li
fe

 o
f t

he
 ro

ad
.  

Fu
nd

in
g 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

is
 li

m
ite

d 
an

d 
in

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

PC
I 

of
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ro
ad

 s
ys

te
m

.  

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

68
3,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

17
0,

80
0

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
4,

15
6,

12
6

$ 
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

68
3,

19
9

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

l:
5,

69
3,

32
3

$ 
   

   

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

C
ity

 S
tr

ee
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
32

5 
*

$3
9,

09
5

$8
99

,7
86

$2
50

,0
00

$2
50

,0
00

$2
50

,0
00

$2
50

,0
00

A
rt

er
ia

l S
tr

ee
t R

eh
ab

 - 
37

7 
*

$1
,3

02
$7

96
,0

19
$2

50
,0

00
$2

50
,0

00
$2

50
,0

00
$2

50
,0

00
G

as
 T

ax
 (R

M
R

A
/S

B
1 

Fu
nd

s)
 - 

20
0 

**
$1

,4
08

$7
37

,1
18

$3
15

,1
00

$3
15

,1
00

$3
15

,1
00

$3
15

,1
00

To
ta

l
$4

1,
80

4
$2

,4
32

,9
23

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

$8
15

,1
00

**
 R

M
R

A
/S

B
1 

fu
nd

in
g 

is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 p
en

di
ng

 c
on

fir
m

at
io

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l s

ou
rc

es
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

  P
ro

je
ct

 s
iz

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 to

 m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

* O
rig

in
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
 is

 M
ea

su
re

 S
 2

01
4

ATTACHMENT A

I-24
178 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
17

09

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

17
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
20

20

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
  2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d 
U

nd
er

gr
ou

nd
 D

is
tri

ct

U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

in
g

ut
ilit

ie
s 

on
 P

in
ol

e 
Va

lle
y 

R
oa

d 
to

 
co

m
pl

em
en

t t
he

 P
in

ol
e 

Va
lle

y 
H

ig
h 

Sc
ho

ol
 P

ro
je

ct
. 

Th
e

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

di
st

ric
t w

ill 
al

lo
w

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e 
to

 u
se

 R
ul

e 
20

A 
cr

ed
its

, f
un

ds
 p

ai
d 

by
 P

G
&E

 to
 th

e 
PU

C
, t

o 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
ov

er
he

ad
 u

til
iti

y 
lin

es
. A

s
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

un
de

rg
ro

un
d 

pr
oj

ec
t, 

th
e 

C
ity

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 a

dd
 

a 
st

re
et

lig
ht

 th
at

 m
us

t b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
R

ul
e2

0A
 p

ro
gr

am
. T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill 
be

 c
oo

rd
in

at
ed

 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

11
,0

22
$ 

   
   

   
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

13
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

U
til

ity
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n:

1,
30

0,
00

0
$ 

   
  

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
13

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
To

ta
l:

1,
57

1,
02

2
$ 

   
  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

R
ul

e 
20

A
 C

re
di

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$1
,5

60
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
as

 T
ax

 - 
20

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$5
,7

50
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

M
ea

su
re

 J
 - 

21
5

$3
15

,5
52

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l

$3
15

,5
52

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

$1
,5

65
,7

50
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

ATTACHMENT A

I-25
179 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
17

08

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

20
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
20

20

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
  2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

P
in

ol
e 

V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

on
Pi

no
le

 V
al

le
y 

R
oa

d 
at

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 P

in
ol

e 
Va

lle
y 

H
ig

h 
Sc

ho
ol

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.

As
pa

rt 
of

 th
e 

hi
gh

 s
ch

oo
l c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

pr
oj

ec
t 

W
C

C
U

SD
 w

ill 
pr

ov
id

e 
ro

ad
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 fr

on
ta

ge
. I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 P

in
ol

e 
Va

lle
y 

R
oa

d 
-f

ro
m

 S
he

a 
to

 G
ra

na
da

 -
w

ill 
ex

te
nd

 th
e 

us
ef

ul
 

lif
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

ve
m

en
t. 

Th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

pa
ve

m
en

t s
co

re
 is

 
hi

gh
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a,
 s

o 
a 

sl
ur

ry
 s

ea
l w

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
tre

at
m

en
t. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
an

d 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e:
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
87

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
To

ta
l:

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

A
ct

ua
l

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

G
as

 T
ax

 - 
20

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$5
0,

00
0

$5
0,

00
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

ATTACHMENT A

I-26
180 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
17

10

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

17
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
B

ey
on

d 
5 

ye
ar

 te
rm

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
  2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

Sa
n 

Pa
bl

o 
Av

en
ue

 B
rid

ge
 o

ve
r B

N
SF

 R
ai

lro
ad

R
ep

la
ce

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
B

rid
ge

 ( 
B

rid
ge

# 
28

C
00

62
)

Th
e 

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
B

rid
ge

 is
 a

n 
in

te
gr

al
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 a
re

a'
s 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

sy
st

em
. T

he
 a

ge
 o

f t
he

 b
rid

ge
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
su

pp
or

t r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t. 
Fu

rth
er

, t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
br

id
ge

 d
oe

s 
no

t m
ee

t t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r p

ed
es

tri
an

 a
cc

es
s.

  C
al

tra
ns

 h
as

 p
la

ce
d 

th
e 

B
rid

ge
 in

 th
ei

r 
fu

nd
in

g 
pl

an
 a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 $

87
9,

10
3 

in
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 8
8.

5%
 o

f t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l c
os

t. 
Th

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

os
t f

or
 th

e 
br

id
ge

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t h

as
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 $
37

,7
75

,6
00

. W
e 

ha
ve

 re
ap

pl
ie

d 
fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
ar

e 
aw

ai
tin

g 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

bu
dg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 8

8.
5%

 o
f t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
co

st
.  

Th
is

 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

pa
rti

al
ly

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

C
TA

 T
LC

 P
ro

gr
am

.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

2,
52

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

ED
C

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

3,
76

6,
35

0
$ 

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
25

,1
10

,0
00

$ 
   

 
R

/W
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
6,

27
7,

25
0

$ 
   

   
To

ta
l:

37
,7

75
,6

00
$ 

   
 

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

20
21

FY
 2

02
1-

22
FY

 2
02

2-
23

FY
 2

02
3-

24
B

ey
on

d
A

ct
ua

l
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
C

ity
 S

tr
ee

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 - 

32
5 

*
43

,2
47

$ 
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$4

07
,0

00
St

at
e 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
87

9,
10

3
$ 

   
   

   
1,

64
2,

89
7

$ 
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$3
0,

88
9,

85
3

M
ea

su
re

 J
 (T

LC
) -

 2
15

 *
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

,6
50

$ 
   

   
   

  
22

4,
10

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$9
3,

24
7

O
th

er
 (f

un
di

ng
 s

ho
rt

fa
ll)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
$6

,3
85

,5
00

To
ta

l
$4

3,
24

7
$9

99
,7

53
$1

,8
67

,0
00

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

$3
7,

77
5,

60
0

* 
Fu

nd
in

g 
in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f $
38

8,
00

0 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fro

m
 th

e 
C

C
TA

 T
LC

 P
ro

gr
am

. 

ATTACHMENT A

I-27
181 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
17

14

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

17
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
Ju

ne
 2

02
0

T
t

lE
ti

t
d

C
t

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
  2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

H
A

W
K

 a
t A

pp
ia

n 
an

d 
M

ar
le

st
a

In
st

al
l a

 H
ig

h-
In

te
ns

ity
 A

ct
iv

at
ed

 C
ro

ss
 W

al
k 

(H
AW

K)
 

Be
ac

on

Th
e 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

of
 A

pp
ia

n 
an

d 
M

ar
le

st
a 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 

hi
gh

 tr
af

fic
 v

ol
um

es
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
.  

As
 a

 re
su

lt,
 a

 H
AW

K,
 o

r H
ig

h 
In

te
ns

ity
 

Ac
tiv

at
ed

 C
ro

ss
 W

al
k 

Be
ac

on
 , 

w
ill 

in
cr

ea
se

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

.  
Th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 is

 p
ar

tia
lly

 
fu

nd
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
C

TA
 T

LC
 P

ro
gr

am
.

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

15
,6

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
10

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

To
ta

l:
12

4,
60

0
$ 

   
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

20
21

FY
 2

02
1-

22
FY

 2
02

2-
23

FY
 2

02
3-

24
A

ct
ua

l
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

C
ity

 S
tr

ee
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
32

5 
*

4,
60

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
M

ea
su

re
 J

 (T
LC

) -
 2

15
 *

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l
4,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
12

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
* 

Fu
nd

ed
 $

12
0,

00
0 

by
 th

e 
C

C
TA

 T
LC

 P
ro

gr
am

. 

ATTACHMENT A

I-28
182 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
18

01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

20
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
20

21

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
R

eh
ab

ili
ta

tio
n

C
ol

d 
m

ill
 2

 1
/2

 in
ch

es
 o

f a
sp

ha
lt 

co
nc

re
te

 p
av

em
en

t a
nd

 
re

pl
ac

e 
w

ith
 n

ew
 H

M
A

, r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

 ~
12

 c
ur

b 
ra

m
ps

, r
ep

la
ce

d 
da

m
ag

ed
 s

id
ew

al
k,

 a
nd

 c
lo

se
 s

id
ew

al
k 

ga
p.

Th
e 

P
av

em
en

t M
an

ag
em

en
t R

ep
or

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

9 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 P
av

em
en

t C
on

di
tio

n 
In

de
x 

(P
C

I) 
fo

r m
os

t r
oa

ds
 

w
ith

in
 P

in
ol

e 
of

 6
2;

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

fro
m

 7
0 

in
 J

an
ua

ry
 o

f 2
01

6.
 

Th
e 

R
ep

or
t h

el
ps

 a
rte

ria
ls

 to
 b

e 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

ed
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

"F
ix

 it
 

Fi
rs

t" 
ap

pr
oa

ch
. D

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
as

 a
n 

ar
te

ria
l, 

it 
is

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
P

C
I a

t a
 m

in
im

um
 

of
  7

0.
  C

ur
re

nt
ly

, t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 P
C

I o
n 

S
an

 P
ab

lo
 A

ve
nu

e 
 is

 
67

. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
66

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l:
66

2,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

C
ity

 S
tr

ee
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
32

5 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

$7
6,

00
0

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

ea
su

re
 J

 (O
B

AG
 2

) -
 2

15
 *

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$5

86
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
$6

62
,0

00
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
* 

Fu
nd

ed
 $

58
6,

00
0 

by
 th

e 
C

C
TA

 O
B

A
G

 2
 P

ro
gr

am
. 

ATTACHMENT A

I-29
183 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
19

01

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

19
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
20

20

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

C
ity

 S
tre

et
 P

at
ch

in
g 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

P
ur

ch
as

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t f

or
 C

ity
 c

re
w

s 
to

 u
se

 to
 p

at
ch

 a
sp

ha
lt 

pa
ve

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

ou
t t

he
 C

ity
. E

qu
ip

m
en

t t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

sk
id

 
st

ee
r l

oa
de

r w
ith

 a
tta

ch
m

en
ts

, c
ra

ck
 s

ea
lin

g 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

an
d 

as
ph

al
t p

at
ch

in
g 

tru
ck

 e
qu

ip
pe

d 
w

ith
 fe

at
ur

es
 to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 

E
qu

ip
m

en
ta

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
w

ill 
en

ab
le

 th
e 

C
ity

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

re
w

s 
to

 s
el

f p
er

fo
rm

 c
ra

ck
 s

ea
lin

g 
an

d 
pa

tc
h 

pa
vi

ng
 fo

r r
es

id
en

tia
l a

nd
 a

rte
ria

l s
tre

et
s 

m
or

e 
fre

qu
en

tly
 

th
an

 o
ur

 c
ur

re
nt

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 m
od

el
 o

f c
on

tra
ct

in
g 

ou
t f

or
 

pa
tc

h 
pa

vi
ng

. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

39
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l:
39

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
G

as
 T

ax
 (R

M
R

A/
SB

1 
Fu

nd
s)

 - 
20

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
ity

 S
tr

ee
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
37

7
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

39
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

ATTACHMENT A

I-30
184 of 200



Pr
oj

ec
t: 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n:

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n:

Pr
oj

ec
t N

um
be

r:
R

O
19

02

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Ti

m
in

g:
Es

tim
at

ed
 S

ta
rt

 D
at

e:
20

19
Es

tim
at

ed
 E

nd
 D

at
e:

 
20

20

C
ity

 o
f P

in
ol

e
C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

rs
 2

01
9-

20
 th

ro
ug

h 
20

23
-2

4

P
ed

es
tri

an
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t T
en

ne
nt

 n
ea

r R
xR

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

to
 T

en
ne

nt
A

ve
nu

e 
at

 th
e 

R
ai

lro
ad

 C
ro

ss
in

g 
to

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

m
ov

em
en

t o
f b

ic
yc

le
s 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
ad

ja
ce

nt
 

to
 v

eh
ic

le
 tr

af
fic

. 

Th
e 

B
ay

 T
ra

il
pr

oj
ec

t r
ec

en
tly

 fi
ni

sh
ed

 b
y 

E
B

R
P

D
 n

ea
rly

 
co

nn
ec

ts
 th

e 
B

ay
 T

ra
il 

th
ro

ug
h 

P
in

ol
e.

 T
he

re
 re

m
ai

ns
 o

ne
 

ve
ry

 s
m

al
l g

ap
 o

n 
Te

nn
en

t A
ve

nu
e 

fro
m

 B
ay

fro
nt

 P
ar

k 
to

 
R

ai
lro

ad
 A

ve
nu

e.
 T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 a

sp
ha

lt
pa

vi
ng

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

id
th

 fo
r p

ed
es

tri
an

s.
 T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill 
im

pr
ov

e
th

e 
cr

os
si

ng
 c

on
tro

ls
. 

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 C

os
t:

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
es

ig
n:

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e:

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
Eq

ui
pm

en
t:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y:

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

ta
l:

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
:

Pr
io

r
FY

 2
01

9-
20

FY
 2

02
0-

21
FY

 2
02

1-
22

FY
 2

02
2-

23
FY

 2
02

3-
24

Ac
tu

al
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
Pr

op
os

ed

W
C

C
TA

C
 S

TM
P 

Fe
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 

ATTACHMENT A

I-31
185 of 200



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FISCAL YEARS 2019-20 THROUGH 2023-24 FIVE-YEAR 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND  
ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 CAPITAL BUDGET  

        
WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented a Proposed Capital Improvement 

Plan for the City of Pinole for Fiscal Years 2019-20 through 2023-24, and a proposed Capital 
Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-20; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed the draft Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan for consistency with the City General Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has solicited public input on the proposed Fiscal 
Years 2019-20 through 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan and Capital Budget, at a Public 
meeting. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 

 
Section 1.  The Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Years 2019-20 through 2023-24 

and Fiscal Year 2019-20 Capital Budget commencing July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 
are hereby approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.  That appropriations for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year are established by fund, as 
follows: 
 

106 Measure S 2014 1,497,799
200 Gas Tax 837,118
215 Measure J Fund 209,650
275 Parkland Dedication Fund 15,509
276 Growth Impact Fees Fund 39,500
325 City Street Improvements Fund 1,928,889
327 Park Grants Fund 24,491
377 2014 Arterial Street Rehabilitation Fund 1,141,019
500 Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,352,342
503 Plant Expansion Fund 1,250,000

  
               TOTAL CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS  $9,296,317 

 
 
 Section 3.  That the appropriations established for FY 2019-20 by fund shall be 
allocated to individual projects as presented in the Capital Improvement Plan. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B

186 of 200



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day September 2019, by the following vote, to-wit: 
 

AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBER: 
  

 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 17th 
day of September, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT B

187 of 200



1

City of Pinole

Proposed FY 2019-20 Through 
2023-24 Five-Year Capital 

Improvement PlanImprovement Plan

1

September 17, 2019

Highlights

• Total 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan =
$18 181 967$18,181,967

• Proposed FY 2019-20 CIP Budget = $9,296,317

• Project description sheets included for projects
over $100,000 & those of particular community$ , p y
interest

• New projects are highlighted in purple

2

ATTACHMENT C

188 of 200



2

Highlights Continued

• Unfunded projects are highlighted in blue

• Projects carried over from FY 2018-19 are highlighted in
orange

• Project categories:
– Facility Maintenance – 5 projects
– Parks – 8 projectsp j
– Sewer Collection – 5 projects
– Sewer Treatment – 2 projects, 1 in progress
– Stormwater – 5 projects
– Streets and Roadways – 10 projects

3

$9,000,000.0 

$10,000,000.0 

CIP Funding Sources

Sewer Plant Exp

$2 000 000 0

$3,000,000.0 

$4,000,000.0 

$5,000,000.0 

$6,000,000.0 

$7,000,000.0 

$8,000,000.0 

M
ill
io
n
s

Sewer Plant Exp

Sewer Ent

Arterial Street Rehab

Park Grants

City Street Imp

Growth Impact Fee

Park Dedication

$‐

$1,000,000.0 

$2,000,000.0 
Measure J

Gas Tax

Measure S 2014

4

ATTACHMENT C

189 of 200



3

$5,000,000.0 

$6,000,000.0 

CIP Funding Sources w/o Sewer

$

$2,000,000.0 

$3,000,000.0 

$4,000,000.0 

$ , ,

M
ill
io
n
s

Arterial Street Rehab

Park Grants

City Street Imp

Growth Impact Fee

Park Dedication

Measure J

$‐

$1,000,000.0  Gas Tax

Measure S 2014

5

$9,000,000.0 

$10,000,000.0 

CIP Projects by Category

$3,000,000.0

$4,000,000.0 

$5,000,000.0 

$6,000,000.0 

$7,000,000.0 

$8,000,000.0 

M
ill
io
n
s

Roads

Stormwater

Sewer Collection

Sewer Treatment

Parks

$‐

$1,000,000.0 

$2,000,000.0 

$3,000,000.0 

2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23 2023‐24

Facilities

6

ATTACHMENT C

190 of 200



4

$5 000 000 0

$6,000,000.0 

Projects by Category w/o Sewer

$2,000,000.0 

$3,000,000.0 

$4,000,000.0 

$5,000,000.0 

M
ill
io
n
s Roads

Stormwater

Parks

Facilities

$‐

$1,000,000.0 

2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23 2023‐24

7

FY 2018-19 Completed Projects

• 2548 Charles Ave (Fowler House) Demolition - $57,900

Replaced Lighting at Louis Frances Park $10 788• Replaced Lighting at Louis Frances Park – $10,788

• Installed Trash Capture Devices – New Areas - $22,432

• Purchased New Street Sweeper - $284,999

• Tree Maintenance and Removal (Various locations) -
$33 425$33,425

• WPCP Upgrade (in progress) - $26,665,191 Pinole share
through 6/30/19

8

ATTACHMENT C

191 of 200



5

FY 2018-19 Completed Projects Cont…

• Public Safety HVAC Repair - $39,217

Mi ll R d R i (V i l ti )• Miscellaneous Roadway Repair (Various locations) –
$29,253

• Sidewalk Maintenance (Various locations) - $34,219

• Sign Replacement (Various locations) - $40,947

9

Completed Projects

2548 Charles Ave (Fowler House) Demolition = $57,900

• Project #FA1712• Project #FA1712
• Total Project = $57,900

• Start date: 2017
• End date: 2019

10

ATTACHMENT C

192 of 200



6

Completed Projects

Install Trash Capture Devices (New areas) = $22,432

• Project #SW1701• Project #SW1701
• Total Project = $60,441

• Start date: 2017
• End date: 2019

11

Completed Projects

Replaced Lighting at Louis Frances Park = $10,788

• Project #PA1707• Project #PA1707
• Total Project = $15,000

• Start date: 2017
• End date: 2019

12

ATTACHMENT C

193 of 200



7

Completed Projects

Purchased New Street Sweeper = $284,999

• Date Purchased: May 2019
• Street Sweeping Schedule is available on City’s website

13

Prior Year Projects - In Progress

Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade = $1,250,000

• Project #SS1707• Project #SS1707
• Total Project = $54,500,000
• Shared 50%/50% with City of

Hercules

• Start date: May 2016y
• Estimated end date: September 2019
• Total Pinole expenses through 6/30/19 = $26,665,191

14

ATTACHMENT C

194 of 200



8

Prior Year Projects - In Progress

Pavement Maintenance and Rehab = $2.4 million

• Project #RO1707• Project #RO1707
• Includes $1.4 million from prior

year appropriations

• Estimated start/end date: Annual program

15

Prior Year Projects Carried Forward
• Replace HVAC & Portion of Roof at Senior Center

- $110,000
• Replace HVAC at City Hall - $120,000
• Rehabilitation of play Fields at Fernandez Park * -

$40,000
• Replace Chips with Rubber Matting at select

parks - $50,000p
• Restrooms in Fernandez Park * - $333,603

* Project is in progress
16

ATTACHMENT C

195 of 200



9

Prior Year Projects Carried Forward
• Senior Center Parking Lot Maintenance ** -

$67,196
• Hazel Street Pump Station Rehabilitation -

$1,000,000
• Inflow and Infiltration Monitoring Program -

$60,000
• Inflow and Infiltration Rehabilitation Program;g

Basin 3.1 - $350,000
• Rodeo Outfall Project * - $242,342

* Project is in progress
** Project is now complete 17

Prior Year Projects Carried Forward

• Storm Drainage Master Plan- $25,000

P t M i t P * $2 432 923• Pavement Maintenance Program* - $2,432,923

• San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad* -
$999,753

• Sharrow Pavement Markings - $19,000

* Project is in progress

18

ATTACHMENT C

196 of 200



10

New Projects

Hazel Street Drainage Improvements = $200,000

• Project #SW1901j

• Total Project = $200,000

• Estimated start date: July  2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

19

New Projects

City Street Paving Equipment = $395,000

• Project #RO1901• Project #RO1901
• Total Project = $395,000

• Estimated start date: July 2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

20

ATTACHMENT C

197 of 200



11

New Projects

Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent = $100,000

• Project #RO1902• Project #RO1902
• Total Project = $100,000

• Estimated start date: July 2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

21

New Projects

Fowler House Reuse = $200,000

• Project #FA1901• Project #FA1901
• Total Project = $200,000

• Estimated start date: July 2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

22

ATTACHMENT C

198 of 200



12

New Projects

Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehab = $200,000

• Project #PA1901• Project #PA1901
• Total Project = $200,000

• Estimated start date: July 2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

23

New Projects

Fernandez Park Baseball Field Rehab = $200,000

• Project #PA1902• Project #PA1902
• Total Project = $200,000

• Estimated start date: July 2019
• Estimated end date: June 2020

24

ATTACHMENT C

199 of 200



13

Funding by Source

SOURCES BY FUND

FY 2019‐20
Revenue

FY 2019‐20
Request

Use of 
Fund Balance

Measure S 2014 ‐ 106 192 000 1 497 799 1 305 799Measure S 2014 ‐ 106 192,000  1,497,799 1,305,799 

Gas Tax ‐ 200 100,000 837,118  737,118 

Measure J ‐ 215 120,000  209,650  89,650 

Parkland Dedication ‐ 275 ‐ 15,509  15,509 

Growth Impact Fees ‐ 276 ‐ 39,500  39,500 

City Street Improvements ‐ 325 100,000  1,928,889  1,828,889 

Park Grants ‐ 327 ‐ 24,491  24,491 

25

Arterial Street Rehab ‐ 377 250,000  1,141,019 891,019 

Sewer Enterprise ‐ 500 942,342 2,352,342 1,410,000

Sewer Plant Expansion ‐ 503 1,250,000 1,250,000 ‐

Sources Total 2,954,342 9,296,317 6,341,975

Questions and Discussion

26

ATTACHMENT C

200 of 200


	Agenda 2019-09-17
	7A
	7A-1
	7B
	7C
	7D
	League of California Cities Resolutions Staff Report
	DATE: SEPTEMBER 17, 2019
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS

	Rule 20A
	Criteria for Rule 20A Projects
	ATTACHMENTS

	2019 Annual Conference Resolutions Packet.
	Guidelines for Annual Conference Resolutions
	200 South Pine Avenue, Long Beach

	City of Ventura.pdf
	Concurrence Letter - Ventura

	City of Rolling Hills.pdf
	Concurrence Letter - Rolling Hills

	City of Rolling Hills Estates.pdf
	Concurrence Letter - Rolling Hills Estates

	City of Palos Verdes Estates.pdf
	Concurrence Letter - Palos Verdes Estates

	City of La Canada Flintridge.pdf
	Concurrence Letter - La Canda Flintridge

	KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS.pdf
	KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS (Continued)



	7E
	CSG amendment
	CSG funding RESO
	CSG Task Order Amendment

	7F
	Pinole - SR Second RedingTobacco Ordinance 9.9.19
	ATT A Pinole - SR Tobacco Ordinance 8 28 19
	Pinole - Ordinance amending Chapter 9.28 & 9.30 re Tobacco 9.9.19
	Pinole -Tobacco Ordinance Text (Exhibit A) 9.9.19

	7G
	SR IR Contract Amendment 9-17-19
	RESO  Amendment to IR Contract
	IR first contract amendment

	10A

	Return to AG: 


